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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B %5 58 2

HK$ Million, except otherwise stated
BEATT ' BRRBEIEBEEN

Revenue from continuing operation

Profit for the year from continuing operation
Profit attributable to owners of the Company
Profit per share (HK cents)

Average inventory turnover day (days)
Average trade receivable turnover day (days)
Average trade payable turnover day (days)
Total assets

B EEB A
SEEEEBNF LR
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FHFEREBRE(R)
FHRKE S REREERE(K)
FHRNESERAERE(R)
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2023
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(Re-presented)
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Total liabilities =Rk
Financial position Revenue
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREHMES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”),
| hereby present the audited consolidated financial results of Link-
Asia International MedTech Group Limited. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2024 (the “Year”).

In Year 2024, the global economic recovery is sluggish, and many
uncertainties such as geopolitical conflicts, inflationary pressures and
industrial chain restructuring continue to ferment. At the same time,
the China’s economic transformation is facing phased challenges. The
Group’s business declined slightly due to the complex internal and
external environment and the weakening demand from Europe and
the United States. As a result, the revenue from continuing operations
of the Group slightly decreased from approximately HK$491.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately HK$479.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2024.

In view of this, the Group is accelerating the transformation of the
energy storage business. In terms of the new energy economy, the
government regards energy storage as a key supporting technology
to achieve the “dual carbon” goals (carbon peak before 2030 and
carbon neutrality before 2060) and build a new power system. Driven
by the policies of the government, the Group has commenced the
energy storage business in 2023. During the year ended 31 December
2024, the Company generated approximately HK$11.9 million revenue
from real estate supply chain services and energy storage products
segments.

At present, the global industry is in a critical window period of
technological upgrading and demand differentiation. The management
of the Company will maintain its core business and explore structural
opportunities as the keynote, steadily develop the Group’s EMS
business, and follow the use of proceeds of the funds raised by the
Company through the placing during the year 2024.

AANERREF((EEDe(ESEDRE=2
ROBREFMREEARAR(F2F]) &
HfE AR (S A RE)BE T _MNF
TZA=1T—BLEFE(FFE)) 2ETZER
BYBRE -

ZENE - RIREBEEEZ N MEBURE
®BRE)  EXERBEERZTHEEHER
ERERNE o AN PRAOEE A EERR R
B - XAINRIFEM  BMEFB KRB EREZ
FE AEBEEBKEETE - At - AEEX
ARECEEBENNERBE S _=F1+=
A =+—B1EFE##491,600,000 % T & il
BAEHE-_TE-_NF+-_A=+—HILtFE
#9#9 479,300,000 7T °

BRRM - AEBIEMRBEEEBHEL -
FERBEREETE - BT BHEEATRE
k] BE(ZE=FaERRENER =
SRNTFEMBEEBTM) METHENERRN
FREERN TBNBREOEST A&
BER-—T_=—FHBMEXK BEZ-ZT
“HFE+ZAZ+—BHLFE  ARFRKERE
HEMREERGE RFEEEMDBOWEN A
11,900,000 & JT °

B AT - 2REXRIERNEMARME R
BARREH KRR EEERAZEZLE
% BRAEBERERER  BIERAKE
MEFRERKER  YEEARTAR_-F
“MEEBRESEESNERBR -

Annual Report F ¥ 2024 5



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREHRES

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our staff for their diligence and dedication during the
year. | would also thank all our shareholders, stakeholders, customers
and business partners for their unfailing supporting and trust for the
Group.

Lin Dailian
Chairman

30 April 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year 2024, the global economic environment is facing
complex and multiple uncertainties. In addition, China’s economic
transformation has slowed down than expected, with the property
crisis, local debt problems and lack of consumer confidence
weighing on China’s economic growth. As a result, the revenue
from continuing operations of the Group slightly decreased from
approximately HK$491.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
to approximately HK$479.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2024,

At the same time, Russia-Ukraine war and the situation in the Middle
East has been affected the European market in the past few years. In
2024, the revenue of EMS segment was increased by approximately
HK$10.9 million was mainly due to the increase in the business of
European market.

In terms of the new energy economy, the government regards
energy storage as a key supporting technology to achieve the “dual
carbon” goals (carbon peak before 2030 and carbon neutrality before
2060) and build a new power system. Driven by the policies of the
government, the Group has changed its name to China Energy Storage
Technology Development Co., Ltd. in 2023 and commenced the
energy storage business in 2023. During the year ended 31 December
2024, the Company generated approximately HK$11.9 million revenue
from real estate supply chain services and energy storage products
segments.

The Group commenced a Money Lending business in 2022 which
generated approximately HK$0.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2024.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had bank and cash balances from
continuing operations totaling approximately HK$312.1 million (2023:
HK$271.6 million) with efforts made to maintain a healthy financial
position.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E & W DT

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
The EMS and Distribution of Communications Products Businesses

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the revenue from EMS
increased by 2.5% to HK$455.1 million (2023: HK$444.2 million),
whereas the revenue from Distribution segment decreased by 98.0%
to HK$0.2 million (2023: HK$10.4 million).

In EMS segment, there are two main groups of products, namely
communication and non-communications products whereas non-
communication products mainly included appliances and appliances
control products and multimedia products.

The increase in the revenue of EMS segment was resulting mainly from
the increase in the business of European market.

The Distribution segment was discontinued due to continuing
decreasing demand of the business line telephone system product in
North America. The common practice of work from home or choosing
hybrid work model or online meeting via internet become more
popular which lessen the use of communication product in office. Thus,
we plan to close down the subsidiary in the Distribution Segment in
coming year.

Real Estate Supply Chain Services and Energy Storage Products (the
“RES and ESP”)

Revenue from the Real Estate Supply Chain Services operation
provides two types of services, comprising the real estate advisory
service and real estate purchase service related to investment
opportunities in Southeast Asia and Pan Asia markets on behalf of
customers. In 2023, the Company changed the Company name to
China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited in order to
develop the energy storage business. Revenue of Real Estate Supply
Chain Services is recognised at a point in time upon completion of
each service. The revenue from RES and ESP segment decreased by
approximately 40.1% to HK$11.9 million (2023: HK$19.8 million) for the
year ended 31 December 2024. The decreased RES and ESP’s revenue
due to the ESP business decreased by approximately HK$2.8 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W AT

Securities and Other Assets Investment and Others

The Securities and Other Assets Investment and Others business
contributed revenue of approximately HK$19.0 million (2023: HK$27.3
million) to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Money Lending

The money lending operations of the Group was commenced in 2022,
and are managed through our wholly-owned subsidiary — Be Smart
Finance Limited with money lenders licenses issued under the Money
Lenders Ordnance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The
Group’s money lending business is broadly classified into four loan
categories, including: (i) property mortgage loans; (ii) other secured
loans; (iii) guaranteed loans; and (iv) unsecured loans. During the
year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s money lending business
was focused on unsecured loans. The Group plans to explore further
potential money lending business opportunities and the Group’s
assessment of achieving reasonable risk and returns. There is no
specific target customer group. The source of customers of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2024 were mainly through the
referrals of past and existing customers of the Group. The source
of funds for the money lending business is generally funded by the
internal resources of the Group.

Loan Portfolio

During the year ended 31 December 2024, we had 4 active loan
accounts, all of them are individual customers and unsecured loans.
The interest rate of all the loans accounts were 10% per annum. As at
31 December 2024, all loans have been collected during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s money
lending segment generated revenue of approximately HK$0.2 million,
accounting for approximately 0.03% of overall revenue. Operating
profit from this business segment amounted to approximately HK$0.5
million.

The management remains alert and will prudently maintain effective
controls and procedures for loan approvals, credit monitoring as well
as recovery and compliance matters applicable to all aspects of the
money lending business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E & W DT

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no (2023: 4) active accounts,
all of them were individual loans unsecured loans (2023: 4).

During the Year, interest income generated from the top five
customers accounted for approximately 0.05% (2023: 0.05%) of the
Group’s total revenue, while the single largest customers accounted
for approximately 0.01% (2023: 0.02%) of the Group’s total revenue.

As at 31 December 2024, the entire of the loan and interest receivables
balance have been collected.

Internal Control

The Group is dedicated to achieving a robust balance between
its business operations and risk management by adhering to
comprehensive credit policies designed to safeguard the quality
of its loan portfolio. In light of heightened economic uncertainties,
management remains vigilant and is committed to prudently
maintaining stringent controls and procedures across loan approvals,
credit monitoring, recovery efforts, and compliance. This cautious
approach includes a proactive stance on recognising impairments
where necessary, ensuring potential risks are addressed promptly to
protect the Group’s financial stability.

The Group has established strict credit policies and controls to reduce
all associated credit risks. Various approval criteria are carefully
considered during the credit assessment stage, including verification
of identity, repayment ability, and relevant investigative results after
carrying out due diligence during the application procedure. The
Group’s management are responsible for assessing and approving
loans within predetermined credit limits. They also regularly
oversee the Group’s credit policies and credit quality of the Group’s
loan portfolio. Increasing effort has also been put in the recovery
procedures for loans receivables. Legal actions will be taken on a
case-by-case basis, having considered the normal market practice as
well as the actual circumstances during the Group’s credit collection
processes and negotiations with relevant customers in order to
minimise any possible credit losses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W AT

The size of the loans and determination of Loan Terms

As at 31 December 2023, the size of the loan receivables from
these four customers ranges from approximately HK$500,000 to
HK$800,000, and totaling approximately HK$2.4 million. These four
loan receivables were granted in August 2022, the credit period
for each was one year and repayable in August 2023, at the initial
agreement, respectively. Each of the loan receivables complies with
the credit assessment policy at the initial grant of the loans. The
interest rate for the loan receivable was at market rate. In view of
the assets proof provided by the borrowers, no security has been
considered necessary. During the year ended 31 December 2023, each
of the borrowers of these loan receivables requested an extension for
1to 2 years, with the reasons of capital need, respectively. During the
negotiating of the extension, the borrowers and the Group mutually
agreed to maintain the interest rate, as a result of careful assessment
of the historical repayment records and assets proofs. As of the year
ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this report, the entire
of the loan and interest receivables balance have been collected.

Borrowers’ natures and their credit assessment

Each of the borrowers of the loan receivables is an independent
third party. Credit assessments have been performed on each of the
borrowers and complied with the Company’s credit rating policy.

Loan Approval

Before any loan applications can be granted, internal credit
assessments would have to be performed to decide the proposed loan
size and interest rate charged. The internal credit assessment include,
but is not limited to, (i) verification and background checking, such
as the identity documents and statutory records (i.e. identity card,
address proof, business registration certificate, latest annual return,
etc.); (ii) income or asset proof of the borrower and guarantor, such
as share certificates, bank statements and securities statements, etc,;
(iii) the evaluation of the value of collateral; and (iv) the verification of
the authenticity of the information provided. Furthermore, the Group
would perform public searches on the borrower and guarantor to
ensure compliance with the relevant requirements and regulations
of anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist financing (“AML &
CTF”). There are no specific requirements on their income and/or
asset threshold set by the Group. Normally, the management would
determine and approve the loan amount and interest rates based on
the relevant financial strength, repayment ability as well as the overall
quality of borrowers/guarantors and the respective collaterals, subject
to business negotiations and market conditions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E & W DT

Loan Renewal

For loan renewal, the Group would carry out an updated assessment
similar to that during the loan approval stage. In addition, the Group
would assess the borrower’s past repayment record and changes in
market circumstance before making a decision on loan renewal and
the relevant interest rate charged.

The management should prudently considered each of the extension
requests with all the information obtained at the application, the
repayment records of the borrowers, and the assets proof.

The loan impairment policies and the basis of impairment assessments

The Group adopted the requirements in respect of the expected credit
loss (“ECL”) assessment set forth in HKFRS 9 issued by the HKICPA in
determining the impairment loss allowance for its loan receivables. The
Group regularly perform impairment assessment on each of the loan
and interest receivables under money lending business. The Group’s
impairment losses relate primarily to the ECL allowance for loans
and interest receivables. Generally speaking, ECL assessments are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience adjusted
for factors that are specific to particular debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions as at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions. The
ECL on loans receivables are assessed individually for those debtors
with significant balances. Each grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure that each of its constituents continues to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIRE RO

For the purpose of impairment assessment, loans of the Group are  FEEI(EM S @ AEBWNERIBERITE

classified as stage 1, 2 and 3 according to the prevailing accounting *#R|AIHEASE— —R=FEK o
standard.
Stage 1 are loans with no significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since their initial

R

Stage 2
FPEER

Stage 3

FE=FEER

recognition.
EEVERRUReRTANEER R MABEZIEMAERK -

are loans with increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since their initial recognition.

B YRR AR SR TANEERRBFMEMNER -

loans has significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition and
considered as credit-impaired. Impairment was assessed for each of the loans and the ECL model
for internal impairment assessment has taken into account the following:

ERERERANR @R TANGEERBRERBZELEN  TRERSEELEEERE OHEE
ERCGETTRERE - BEREDREN N EREEEBEEADZERUATRIE -

(1) expected life and contractual terms of a financial instrument
T EMTEEF IR A HEK

(2) market probability of default
TIGE AR

(3) market loss given default or discounted recovery rate and
I H)YERK BT 45 5 18 Sk B 3R U B 3

(4) forward-looking market data.

RTE ETI58E -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E & W DT

Loan collection

The management will continuously monitor the credit quality of each
borrower regularly.

In order to minimise the Group’s exposure to credit risk and follow
up closely with its customers as to the deadlines in payment of
interest and principal of the loans, (i) the relevant staff of Be Smart is
responsible for monitoring the status of loan repayment and keeping
accounting records for monthly audit of the loan balance to ensure
that all borrowers have made repayment on time in accordance with
the terms of the relevant loan agreement; (ii) the relevant staff of
Be Smart will communicate regularly with the borrowers regarding
their financial positions and credit profile to have an up-to-date
understanding of their repayment ability and creditworthiness; (iii)
the relevant staff is required to report to the directors of Be Smart
immediately in the event of late repayment, material change to the
repayment ability or creditworthiness of the borrowers or any other
events which indicate the recovery of the loan may be at risk; and (iv)
the management is required to report the repayment status of all the
Group’s loans to the Directors on a quarterly basis so that the Directors
can review the loan portfolio and discuss actions to be taken. In any
case if it may think fit, legal action will be taken against the borrowers
to minimise any possible credit losses.

Recovery and Compliance Matters

After the loan is granted, the Group would conduct review on the
repayment records and loan portfolio on a regular basis, and in
particular, any past due loan accounts. When considered appropriate,
the Group would further (i) obtain relevant updated information and
documents from the borrower; and (ii) perform public searches on the
borrower to assess the recoverability of loan. Putting every possible
effort on loan recovery, appropriate course of actions, such as sending
legal demand letters, legal proceeding arrangements, etc., would be
considered by the Group, subject to the recovery situation of the loans
and negotiation with customers.

As a licenced money lender in Hong Kong, the Group shall ensure
compliance with the applicable laws, regulations and codes of all
the relevant regulatory authorities, in particular, the Money Lenders
Ordinance and the relevant requirements and regulations of AML &
CTF.

EWE L

EEERTAREERSRERANEEREE

%c
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FABRAEHEZMHRERPHEIRE - ()
Be Smart M E TEAREREREER IR
RIFgitat: WEGAEZERGERS - BIR
FTE BRABRBEEE R IHEOGRRIRRE
X5 (iDBe Smart B ME R 8 T4 HAB (BN A R
HE SR REERETER  UEHHE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W AT

In order to ensure the compliance with the abovementioned
requirements throughout the course of conducting the money lending
business, loan transaction review would be conducted upon the grant
of the loan as an on-going monitoring purpose. The overall internal
control system, which includes the implementation of the Group’s
credit policy, operation manual and other related internal control
measures would be reviewed by the management on a regular basis
and the policies would be devised and revised from time to time when
considered necessary.

Interest rates

In addition to the aforementioned factors included in the Group’s
credit approval policy, when deciding the interest rate for loans, the
Group would also take a holistic view in the assessments of setting
loan terms based on the general market environment at the time,
interest rate of competitors at the time, the amount of the Group’s
funds available and also the overall quality of the borrower.

For the Group’s existing loan portfolio as at 31 December 2024, the
effective interest rates were matched and charged to customers
of differing risk levels, at 10% per annum. The major terms of loans
granted include loans receivable, interest rate and maturity date.

All the Group’s loans have been collected during the year ended
31 December 2024. The effective interest rates were matched and
charged to customers of differing risk levels, at 10% per annum during
the year ended 31 December 2024. The major terms of loans granted
include loans receivable, interest rate and maturity date. For the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Group has not recorded any impairment
loss on loans and interest receivable. The Group’s impairment losses
relate primarily to the expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance for loans
and interest receivables. Generally speaking, ECL assessments are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience adjusted
for factors that are specific to particular debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions as at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions. The ECL
on loans receivables are assessed individually for those debtors with
significant balances and/or those collectively using a provision matrix
with appropriate groupings. Each grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure that each of its constituents continues to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E & W DT

Geographical Analysis

Revenue from the major European countries (Switzerland, Belgium
and France) totalled approximately HK$188.9 million (2023: HK$174.6
million), and accounted for approximately 39.4% (2023: 35.5%) of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024. The U.S.A.
market contributed approximately HK$99.3 million (2023: HK$112.5
million) in revenue and accounted for approximately 20.7% (2023:
22.9%) of the Group’s revenue. The PRC (including Hong Kong) and
other countries accounted for approximately HK$56.7 million (2023:
HK$84.9 million) and HK$134.5 million (2023: HK$119.6 million),
respectively, representing approximately 11.8% (2023:17.3%) and 28.1%
(2023: 24.3%) of the Group’s revenue.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue Generated from Continuing Operations

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded total
revenue of HK$479.3 million (2023: HK$491.6 million).

The Group’s reporting segments are strategic business units that
offer different products and services. There are two broad groups of
business units for segment accounting purpose, EMS and Distribution
whereas the latter representing the distribution of communication
products. In EMS segment, there are two main groups of products,
namely communication and non-communications products whereas
non-communication products mainly included appliances and
appliances control products and multimedia products.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the revenue from EMS

increased by 2.5% to HK$455.1 million (2023: HK$444.2 million).

The increase in the revenue of EMS segment was resulting mainly from
the increase in the business of European market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W AT

The Distribution of communications products segment was
discontinued due to continuing decreasing demand of the business line
telephone system product in North America. The common practice of
work from home or choosing hybrid work model or online meeting via
internet become more popular which lessen the use of communication
product in office. Thus, the Group plans to close down the subsidiary
in the Distribution of communications products segment in coming
year.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales is slightly decreased of approximately HK$4.1 million of
approximately HK$355.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023: HK$359.8 million). The decreased of cost of sales was in line
with the decreased of revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Gross Profit

Gross profit decreased by 6.2% from HK$131.8 million to HK$123.6
million, while the gross profit margin slightly decreased by 1.0% which
was mainly affected by the change in product mix during the year.

Impairment losses

The Group made overall reversal of impairment losses of
approximately HK$21.3 million on certain assets for the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: impairment losses of approximately HK$7.5
million). It was mainly comprised of impairment losses on intangible
assets of approximately HK$7.2 million and impairment losses on trade
receivables of approximately HK$2.1 million, which offset by reversal
of impairment losses on loan to other parties (net) of approximately
HK$22.6 million and reversal of impairment losses on other receivables
(net) of approximately HK$7.9 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E & W DT

Other Income

The other income is increased from approximately HK$13.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately HK$17.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2024. The increase was mainly
due to the compensation from revision of intangible asset term of
approximately HK$6.8 million and the increase of interest income on
bank fixed deposit and bank deposit which offset by the decrease of
interest income on loan to individual D and loan to independent third
party C.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of HK$38.4 million (2023: HK$36.5
million) accounted for approximately 8.0% in 2024 and 7.4% in 2023
of the Group’s revenue respectively. The increase are mainly caused
by the increase in the staff cost of approximately HK$2.9 million.

Administration expenses

Administration expenses of HK$99.1 million (2023: HK$85.6 million)
accounted for approximately 20.7% in 2024 and 17.4% in 2023 of the
Group’s revenue respectively. The increase are mainly caused by the
increased equity-settled share-based payments of approximately
HK$7.9 million.

Research and development expenditure

Research and development expenditure slightly decreased by
approximately HK$0.3 million from approximately HK$13.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately HK$12.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs were approximately HK$4.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2024 and HK$3.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023, represented approximately 1.0% and
0.6% of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024
and 2023, respectively. The finance costs increased was mainly due
to the increase of finance lease liabilities and interest expenses on
borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W AT

Income tax expense

Income tax expense during the year ended 31 December 2024
included approximately HK$3.9 million of current tax charge (2023:
HK$3.2 million). The tax charges mainly represented the income tax
provision at the applicable tax rate in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations in Hong Kong, the PRC and the U.S.A..

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The profit attributed to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$6.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023 HK$5.2
million). The Group’s net profit margin from the continuing operations
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2024 was approximately 1.3% (2023: profit margin 1.1%).

Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling interests

Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling interests amounted
to approximately HK$1.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023: loss of approximately HK$92,000).

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations and capital expenditure by
internally generated cashflows.

As at 31 December 2024, the bank and cash balances from continuing
operations amounted to approximately HK$312.1 million (2023:
HK$271.6 million), representing a increase of approximately HK$40.5
million from 2023. Respective sum of approximately 18.4%, 70.4% and
11.2% of the bank and cash balances was denominated in RMB, USD
and HKD, respectively.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s current ratio remains in a healthy
position at 2.7 times (2023: 2.6 times).

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of the borrowings
and bonds payable were approximately HK$14.2 million and HK$25.0
million respectively. The borrowings represented the loans from
financial institutions and loan from an independent third party of
approximately HK$14.3 million (2023: HK$4.2 million) and HK$nil
million (2023: HK$0.5 million), respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E & W DT

Exchange risk exposure

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise
from the business operations in the PRC and Hong Kong denominated
in RMB and USD, respectively. As at 31 December 2024, the Group
had minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities were principally denominated in
the respective functional currencies, i.e. RMB and USD, used by the
respective group entities, or in USD for the respective group entities
with HKD being the functional currency. As HKD is pegged to USD, the
Group considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between
HKD and USD to be insignificant for transactions denominated in
USD. The RMB is not freely convertible into other foreign currencies
and conversion of the RMB into foreign currencies is subject to rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. As at 31 December 2024, the Group does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of its foreign currency
assets and liabilities. The Group had no investment in any financial
derivatives, foreign exchange contracts, interest or currency swaps,
hedging or other financial arrangements for hedging purposes to
reduce any currency risk nor made any over-the-counter contingent
forward transactions. The Group will closely monitor its foreign
currency exposure and will consider using hedging instruments
in respect of significant foreign currency exposure as and when
appropriate.

Capital commitments and expenditures

Capital expenditure for 2024 amounted to HK$2.5 million and capital
commitments as at 31 December 2024 amounted to HK$1.0 million.
Both the capital expenditure and capital commitments were mainly
related to the acquisition of plant and machinery to maintain the
capacity of the business volume.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had no pledged assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W AT

Financial guarantee contract

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had an outstanding
guarantee (the “Guarantee”) to one of the suppliers of an overseas
subsidiary (the “Disposed Subsidiary”), which was disposed on 7
October 2015, for payment in relation to a sum of US$2.6 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$20.3 million), representing a trade
balance under dispute between the Disposed Subsidiary and the
supplier. The supplier subsequently sold the trade balance to a third
party.

During 2017, the Disposed Subsidiary had agreed with the third party
for a final settlement by instalment of US$650,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5.1 million). In this regards, as at 31 December 2024
and 2023, the Group had an outstanding guarantee of the sum limited
to US$650,000, subject to the full payment of the final settlement
effected by the Disposed Subsidiary.

The Disposed Subsidiary had issued counter guarantee to the
Company to indemnify the Company for any loss in relation to the
Guarantee.

Contingent liabilities

The Group and the Company did not have any significant contingent
liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E & W DT

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS
FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Except for disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 13 December
2024 in related to the Major Transaction and the disposal of a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company as disclosed, there was no significant
investment held, material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and
associates by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2024.
The Group will make every endeavor to keep abreast of the changing
market conditions, proactively identify investment opportunities in order
to broaden the revenue base of the Group, enhance its future financial
performance and profitability.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had approximately 835 employees
in various operating units located in Hong Kong, U.S.A. and the
PRC. In order to attract and retain high quality talents to ensure
smooth operation and cater for the Group’s constant expansion, it
offers competitive remuneration packages, with reference to market
conditions, individual qualifications and experience.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended and decided
by the remuneration committee and the Board respectively, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

Share option scheme

On 17 February 2020, the Company proposed to the shareholders of
the Company at the extraordinary general meeting to be held on 10
March 2020 (the “2020 EGM”) to terminate the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 31 December 2010 (the “2010 Share
Option Scheme”) and to approve and adopt a new share option
scheme (the “2020 Share Option Scheme”). Details of the New Share
Option Scheme are set out in the circular of the Company dated 17
February 2020.
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On 10 March 2020, at the 2020 EGM, the proposed adoption of the
2020 Share Option Scheme and the termination of the 2010 Share
Option Scheme were duly passed by the Shareholders by way of poll.

On 28 January 2021, 35,671,850 share options to subscribe for the
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the share capital of the Company
were granted to certain Directors and employees of the Group (the
“Grantees”), subject to acceptance of the Grantees, under the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 10 March 2020. The share
options granted shall vest in the Grantees in accordance with their
respective the timetable.

Details of the grant of share options are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 28 January 2021,

On 14 June 2022, 53,328,000 share options to subscribe for the
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the share capital of the Company
were granted to certain employees of the Group, subject to
acceptance of the employees, under the share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 10 March 2020.

Details of the grant of share options are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 14 June 2022.

On 8 June 2023, at the annual general meeting (the “2023 AGM”), the
Company proposed adoption of 2023 Share Option Scheme and 2023
Share Award Plan and termination of the 2020 Share Option Scheme
were duly passed by the Shareholders by way of poll. Details of the
2023 Share Option Scheme and 2023 Share Award Plan are set out in
the circular of the Company dated 11 May 2023 and the poll result of
the 2023 AGM are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
8 June 2023.
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On 3 November 2023, 15,695,082 share options to subscribe for the
ordinary share of HK$0.2 each in the share capital of the Company
were granted to certain employees and Director of the Group, subject
to acceptance of the employees and Directors, under the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 8 June 2023. The share
options granted shall vest in the guarantees in accordance with their
respective timetable. Details of the grant of share options are set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 3 November 2023 and 13
November 2023.

The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the dates on which share options were exercised
during the year ended 31 December 2024 was HK$0.325 per share (31
December 2023: HK$1.9 per share).

As at 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024, the total number of
share options available for grant under the share option scheme were
1,557,836 respectively.

The total number of shares that may be issued in respect of options
granted under all schemes of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2024 divided by the weighted average number of Shares in
issue for the year ended 31 December 2024 was approximately 8.8%.

As at the date of the 2024 Annual Report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 18,316,378,
representing approximately 8.2% of the issued shares of the Company
as at such date.
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Details of the share option movements during the period from 1
January 2024 to 31 December 2024 under the New Share Option

AR _E-_WNE—A—HBE_ZT_N&E+=
BA=+—HHMMERETZB TR EREE

Scheme are as follows: BT
Number of share options
BREHA
Grant Exercised Lapsed/
Exercise  Outstanding during the during the cancelled  Outstanding
price asat year ended year ended during asat
Holder of per Share 1January 31December 31December 31December 31 December
Share Options Date of Grant Exercise period (note 2) 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024
#Hz
BZ g2 —Z-mf R
®» Sl 113 “E-mE +=A “E-NE
—E-mE +=A +=A =t+-H +=A
BRITHEE -A—H =t+-A =t+-A LEE =+-A
BRESEA R A fTEEE (FizE2) MATE  LEERH LCEEETE  AREH i RATHE
(HK$)
(B)
Executive Directors
g17EE
Lin Dailian 28-Jan-21 2021.7.28-2026.1.27 3.46 533,309 - - - 533,309
MR ——&#—R=+)\R —E-—F+A=-1/\AZ
ZE-RFE-AZt++tA
3-Nov-23 2024.13 —2026.112 25 1,725,291 - - - 1,725,291
Z=#+—fA=H C—Z-ME+-A=RZF
ZTRET-AZH
Bian Sulan 3-Nov-23 2024113 —2026.112 25 1,725,291 - - - 1,725,291
TEH “=%#+-f=A —Z-NEt+-A=HE
ZZZRET-AZH
Employees 28-Jan-21 2022128 — 2026127 3.46 2,087,987 - - - 2,087,987
&8 ——%-RZ+/\B ZZZZF-R={+/\AZ
S s =
Employees 3-Nov-23 2024.11.3 —2026.112 25 12,244,500 - - - 12,244,500
=] Z=5+—-A=ZA CZZZQEF+-A=HZE
ZZZRET-AZH
Total 18,316,378 - - - 18,316,378
st
Notes: HiaE -

m The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date (28 January

2021) on which the share options were granted was HK$0.35.

2) The exercise price per share of share options has reflected the adjustment in relation to
the share consolidation which completed on 30 March 2023.

3 The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date (2 November
2023) on which the share options were granted was HK$1.9.

4) The number of share option available grant as at 31 December 2024 was 1,557,836.

M

@

(©)]

4

ARARBENREERIBRER( T -_—F—A
ZHN\H) AR TRERO03ISET

BRENERITEEERBEEN T -_=F=A=+
B TR HIR D & B EE o

ARBBEOREERHBERERR(—FE_=F+—A
ZH) BT TERLIBTT

REZZ-WFE+=—A=+—0 @ JHEFHERESE
51557,83617 ©

Annual Report 3 2024 25



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E & W DT

Summary of matters relating to the share option scheme reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee

Grant of share options under the scheme

Having considered that the past performance and contributions to the
Group of the Grantees, the Remuneration Committee and the Board
consider that the grant of such share options with a short vesting
period:

(i) aligns the interests of the Grantees with that of the Company
and the shareholders of the Company as a whole;

(i) rewards and recognises the contribution of the Grantees to the
Group; and

(iii) provides incentive to the Grantees to continue to work for the
success and improved performance of the Group. All of these are
consistent with the purpose of the Scheme.

Performance target

There is no performance target attached with the share options. The
Remuneration Committee has noted that the purpose of the share
option scheme is to provide incentive or reward to the Grantees for
their contribution to the Group and that the share option scheme
does not restrictively specify the contribution. The Remuneration
Committee has also considered (a) the importance of the roles
and responsibilities of the Grantees; (b) the past performance and
contributions of the Grantees; and (c) the expected contributions of
the Grantees to be made to the future development of the Group and
is of the view that the grant of share options without any performance
target aligns with the purpose of the share option scheme.

Clawback mechanism

There is no clawback mechanism attached to the share options.
The share options granted shall lapse and cannot be exercised with
immediate effect if the Grantees, who is an employee (including any
director), ceases to be an employee of the Group or a Director on the
ground including, but without limitation to, that he or she has been
guilty of serious misconduct.
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Eligible Participants

Eligible participants include any (i) Employee Participant; (ii) Related
Entity Participant; and (iii) Service Provider.

The maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of shares issued or to be issued in respect of
all options and awards granted to a participant at any one time or
in aggregate under the 2023 Share Award Plan and all other share
schemes (excluding any options and awards lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the respective share schemes) in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such relevant grant should not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company (the “Individual
Limit”) Where any award to a participant may result in exceeding the
Individual Limit, the Company shall not grant such Options unless it
is separately approved by the Shareholders in general meeting, with
such Selected Participant and his close associates (or Associates if the
Selected Participant is a Connected Person) abstaining from voting.

Where any award to an independent non-executive Director or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of his associates
would result in the shares issued and to be issued in respect of all
options and awards granted to such person under the 2023 Share
Award Plan and all other share schemes (excluding any options or
awards lapsed in accordance with the terms of the respective share
schemes) in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant, representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the issued share capital
of the Company, such award must be approved by the Shareholders
in general meeting, with such Selected Participant, his associates and
all core connected persons of the Company abstaining from voting in
favour at such general meeting.

The remaining life of the Share Award Plan

Subject to any early termination determined by the Board in
accordance with the rules of the Share Award Scheme, the
Share Award Scheme is valid and effective for a term of 10 years
commencing on its adoption date (i.e. 8 June 2023 to 7 June 2033).
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In respect of the share options granted during the year ended
31 December 2023, the Remuneration Committee considers that
the Scheme is intended to reward eligible participants who have
contributed to the business development of the Group and to
encourage eligible participants to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. In addition, the Remuneration Committee also consider
that: (@) the Grantees are eligible participants under the Scheme
who would contribute directly to the overall business performance
and sustainable development of the Group; (b) the granting of share
options to the Grantees is a recognition for their past contributions to
the Group; and (c) the share options are subject to the terms of the
share option scheme which provides for circumstances under which
the share options may lapse. Saved as disclosed above, the Company
did not make any grant of share options to the directors and/or senior
managers of the Group as set forth in Rules 17.03F, 17.06B(7) and
17.06B(8) of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2024,

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2024

(i)  Placing of new shares

On 29 April 2024, an aggregate of 11,260,000 shares of the
Company with a nominal value of HK$0.2 each has been
successfully placed at HK$1.59 per share. The net proceeds
from the placing shares (after deduction of commission and
other expenses of said placing of new shares) amounted to
approximately HK$17.5 million. The Placing Shares have been
placed by the Placing Agent to not less than six (6) Placees
at the Placing Price of HK$17.5 per Placing Share. The closing
price per share of the Company on the Stock Exchange on 29
April 2024 was HK$1.9. The net price per Placing Share was
approximately HK$1.55. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, the
Placees and their ultimate beneficial owners (where applicable)
are Independent Third Parties, and none of the Placees has
become a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company as a result of the Placing. For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 15
April 2024 and 29 April 2024.

HEE-_T-_=F+_A=t+—RHILFEH
THERENS FTWEEERE  EIEHE
REEAEBEBERIELERMNEERSHE
& UEHEAEAKRSEEAANT RERERN
BEAZMENRARIRNEE - 1IN - F
MEEENRE QERAABFENEER
2HE  REBEHAEENBRBERRE R
REZRRELEERR OREARAKTE
BEAERESBEAHAEBMERR : R©
BREZSINERESSNER EPEE
FERRRE P BE R IB N © BR LSRRI R & A -
BE_Z-_NWFF+_A=+—HIEFE AR
A0 AR BB T AR Al 2817.03F ~ 17.06B (7) &
1706B ®GEMAEREER HEREREA
B 1% T T AR AE o

BE_Z-_NWE+_A=+—HILFE

HEKEIE

() BEEFRD
RZZ_WMEMA-+HHBE > ARFAE
11,260,000 fx & IR EE 0.2 & TTHI IR 19
EIRSREMISOBILKINEE - B S
EIEFT1S RIEF 58 (R B &S 3T AR Y
Bl M e REAF ) £ 417,500,000 %
T MERNMEBEERERESES
RECERR M 175 ITRE T LR G)
HEBLA o AR ERKRORZ=ZZF =Y
FOAZTNBEBZAAWTERO
BT - BREERDAFERL AR5
T BEREL —YARERRBFEM
BELERE ARAREGRERESR
ANIER) Y RBYE = 0 BREEE
BEARRSESEEMKAERARG 2 EZR
F(ERRLEMHRA) - FBEBLHAR
FAEHA S _NFNA+RABAE-ZE
“PUFENA -+ AHMRE -

28 China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited F B f# e R 2R BR A 7



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR E & W AT

)

(i)

Placing of new shares

On 7 October 2024, an aggregate of 17,256,000 shares of
the Company with a nominal value of HK$0.2 each has been
successfully placed at HK$1.51 per share. The closing price per
share of the Company on the Stock Exchange on 7 October 2024
was HK$2.35. The net price per Placing Share was approximately
HK$1.28. The net proceeds from the placing shares (after
deduction of commission and other expenses of said placing or
new shares) amounted to approximately HK$22.1 million. The
Placing Shares have been placed by the Placing Agent to not less
than six (6) Placees at the Placing Price of HK$1.51 per Placing
Share. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, the Placees
and their ultimate beneficial owners (where applicable) are
Independent Third Parties, and none of the Placees has become
a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company as a result of the Placing. For details, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 16 September 2024
and 7 October 2024.

Proposed Right Issue, proposed change in board lot size and

major transaction in relation of the assignment of distribution

rights

(@) Proposed Right Issue
The Board is pleased to announce that on 13 December
2024, the Company proposes to raise gross proceeds
of up to approximately HK$94.2 million (assuming full
subscription under the Rights Issue) by way of issuing up
to 448,578,370 Rights Shares (assuming no change in the
number of Shares in issue on or before the Record Date)
at the Subscription Price of HK$0.21 per Rights Share on
the basis of two (2) Rights Shares for every one (1) existing
Share held by the Qualifying Shareholders at the close of
business on the Record Date.

Assuming there will be no change in the number of Shares
in issue on or before the Record Date and full subscription
of the Rights Issue, the maximum net proceeds from the
Rights Issue (after deducting the estimated expenses
of approximately HK$2.2million) is expected to be
approximately HK$92.0 million.
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®)

©

The net price per Rights Share after deducting the relating
expenses of the Rights Issue will be approximately
HK$0.205. The Company intends to apply the net proceeds
from the Rights Issue as to (i) approximately 29.3% (or
approximately HK$27.0million) as procurement costs
to suppliers; (ii) approximately 48.9% (or approximately
HK$45.0 million), for acquiring the rights under the
Agency Distribution Agreement; (iii) approximately
10.9% (or approximately HK$10.0million) for research and
development of energy storage system technology; and (iv)
approximately 10.9% (or approximately HK$10.0 million)
for enhancing general working capital of the Group.

Proposed change in board lot size

On 13 December 2024, the Company proposed that the
board lot size of the Shares for trading on the Stock
Exchange will be changed from 4,000 Shares to 8,000
Shares.

Major transaction in relation of the assignment of
distribution rights (the “Major Transaction”)

The Board is pleased to announce that on 13 December
2024 (after trading hours of the Stock Exchange), the
Assignor, as the assignor, the Assignee, as the assignee,
and the Company, entered into the Deed of Assignment,
pursuant to which the Assignor conditionally agreed to
assign to the Assignee, all his rights, obligations, title,
interests, and benefit in and to the Agency Distribution
Agreement in accordance with the terms and conditions
set out in the Deed of Assignment, at the consideration of
HK45,000,000.

The completion of proposed Right Issue, proposed change
in board lot size and major transaction in relation of
the assignment of distribution rights are subject to the
Conditions Precedent stated in the announcement of the
company on 13 December 2024.

The details of the proposed Right Issue, proposed change
in board lot size and major transaction in relation of the
assignment of distribution rights, please refer to the
announcement of the Company on 13 December 2024.
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(iv) The disposal of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the company (iv) HEARB—H2EHERR

On 18 November 2024, the Group entered into a sales and R-ZE-_WWFE+—F+/\H  AQ7FHE
purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose —EZBUE=FEINHERE UARE
of 100% equity interests of Zhongxixin Trading (Shenzhen) Co. REEEmEORI) BRAREFE
Ltd and Zhongxixin Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd (collectively EREB(LB)ERAR(KBHEIHES
referred as the “Disposal Group”) at a cash consideration E ) M00%kiE  BeREAARK
of RMB575,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$621,000). 575,000 70 ( #8 & 7 #9621,0007% 7T ) °
The Disposal Group was principally engaged in trading of HESEBEFTENEESTESTEM - RE
electronic products. The consideration was satisfied by cash on RZZBEZME+—_AZ+=ZRAUBEEX
23 December 2024. Upon the completion of the disposal, the Fo HEZKE  HEEBTBAAR
Disposal Group has ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company RIZMBAR  EYMBEEIITHLEA
and its financial results is no longer be consolidated into the AREE 2 iR E M EERE -

consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

Fund Raising Activity of the Company in the Past Twelve Months

Set out below is the summary of equity fund raising activity of the
Company during the past twelve months immediately preceding the

date of this report:

Net proceeds

PRISIR A &

ARBBET—EANKELRS

TXHIARRRERAREBRFBET =
EAMBREEEBHME :

Actual use of net proceeds as

Date of announcement Fund raising activity (approximately) Intended use of net proceeds 31 December 2024
SRR R R-Z-MOE+=A=+-H
AEBRH SEEH (B4) FEREFERERE FEREFEERARE
15 October 2021, Rights issue on the basis HK$58.7 million  Approximately (i) HK$34.2 million Approximately (i) HK$34.2 million
1 November 2021 and of one (1) rights share for the expansion of the Group’s  was utilized for the expansion
22 November 2021 for every two (2) 58,700,000 87T product range under the EMS of the Group’s product range
existing shares held on and Distribution Products under the EMS and Distribution
—Z-—%+A+AA- the record date Businesses; (i) HK$17.1 million  Products Businesses; (ii)
—E--F+—-A-Hk for the funding of potential HK$4.8 million was utilised

2 —F+—fF=+=H
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BRESEHEREAQ
REEREE— )
RERBH HEEES
i

%

merger and acquisition
opportunities of assisted
reproductive services-licensed
providers located in regions in
the PRC; and (iii) HK$7.4 million
for general corporate and
working capital purposes.

(i) 34,200,000 & AR ERE A S
BrETRERB RO HERE
BTZERZF : (i)17,100,000
BTARNRHESMEREZE
MR RS REE
EIEGHEHE ¢ R (il) 7,400,000
BTRE-REEREEESH
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for general corporate and
working capital purposes.

The remaining proceeds of
approximately HK$17.1 million
has been change the use of
proceeds on 19 December
2023. The remaining proceeds
of approximately HK$17.1
million was utilised for general
working capital. (Notes 1)

#)(7) 34,200,000 BT AR ERAE
S FRERBROHERE
BT ZEMZRS : (i) 4,800,000
BTRE-ROCEREEESH
i o RIERPTISFXIE4917,00,000
BTERZZ_=F+-A1+N
RERFGHRIERS - FIBRFTIS
HIEXI17,100,000 B L E B IE—
REEES - (D



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIRE R AT

Notes:

M

Reference to the announcement on 19 December 2023, due to Covid-19 pandemic
outbreak in the past few years, the financial conditions of most enterprises in the market
have not yet been recovered and the Target Group’s business has not resume to the
best financial situation. In addition, the Group’s administrative expenses still in high
value for maintaining the daily operation. The Company’s administrative expenses for
the year ended 31 December 2022 and for the six months ended 30 September 2023
was approximately HK$105.0 million and HK$51.1 million respectively.

In view of aforementioned, the Board has resolved to re-allocate the Unutilised Net
Proceeds of approximately HK$17.1 million for general working capital of the Group.
The reallocation of the Unutilised Net Proceeds as set out above would enable more
resources for the operation and in line with the current business strategy of the Group.

The revised unutilised net proceeds are expected to be fully utilised by the end of 2024.
The Board considers that the aforementioned change of the use of unutilised net
proceeds is fair and reasonable and will not have any material adverse effect on
the existing business and operation of the Group, and is in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The use of the unutilised original net proceeds in the revised manner is set out as below:

Revised allocation
of the unutilised

Azt -

M

Actual use of

ZRIRONRZZ=_=F+-_A+hBRHEL%  BARB
LHFBREFRERRASRE M LERASHOENT
AR A ARRIE - T B IR E MR A R B 1S B ER
AR o BEAh - AEEAITHREA HREE A EEEM
T NESEE -BE-_S-—E+-A=+—HIEE
FEE-Z_=FHA=THIEXEA  KRENITEK
FI3 5 B4 £105,000,000 % 7T & 51,100,000 7T ©

HR EXAl c EE S0 HRBADAMBRBFED
17100000 BT EHM A EAAEE —RLEES - Ll
RBAMGHREFENETNIEEAEGEERMES
BIR - WA AEBEIRITEBRE o

BEEERA - LAERHAMER
BIE - A NEUAEEREEBREEENEFNEAT
FFE  UNEAATRERREERENS -

FERGE AT

REA RIS RS ENEERT BRI M T

original net utilised original net Unutilised Net
proceedsas  proceeds up to the Proceeds as at the
disclosed in date of change of date of change of  Revised allocation Net proceeds
the Right Issue  use proceedsasat  use proceeds as at of the original net utilised as of
Prospectus 19 December 2023 19 December 2023 proceeds  31December 2024
BEmRETE
RE2BAH REFERE
et g3 RE2HAH Bz
HRERAMKE +=A+hB —E-=F pnt- Sl £:3
FEBARR 2B TZAthAE +ZA=t+-H
P RIEEER R frE%E FREAMETE RiaFreTE EBAMERE
RBETIE FENERAR FE OFENRBTIR 2]
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million
BEER BEER BEET BEET BEBET
(approximately) (approximately) (approximately) (approximately) (approximately)
(#4) (#4) (#49) (#4) (#4)
Expansion on EMS and BAETFEERSE R
Distribution Products Business DEERES 342 342 - - 342
Potential merger and MEHEFE
acquisition opportunities of HEABRSREED
ARS-licensed providers BIERE 171 - 171 - -
General working capital (note 1) —KEEES (M) 74 74 - 171 171
58.7 41.6 171 171 58.7
Note I: et

The proceeds were used as general working capital, which approximately HK$6.8 million
was used for office rental expenses and approximately HK$10.3 million was used for
staff cost, from the completion of the Right issues up to 31 December 2024.

BRREREE_T_NF+_A=+—0H ' Ff5%E
AE—MEEES - HP 46800000 T AEMRA
AL KX #%710,300,000 8 TAEES TR -

frey
=
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Net proceeds Actual use of net proceeds as
Date of announcement Fund raising activity (approximately) Intended use of net proceeds 31 December 2024
R-E-MF+=-A=t—8
NERE SEED FEREFE (BR)EREFRRERR FEREFRERAR
13 September 2022 and Subscription of new HK$95.5 million (i) approximately HK$14.0 (i)  approximately
6 February 2023 shares under specific million for the repayment of HK$14.0million was used

mandate 95,500,000/ 7T borrowings; for the repayment of
“Z-_FAAT=HER borrowings;
—T-=%-AAXA RERHEEREFRD () #914,000,0008 T ARNEERL

E

(i) approximately HK$19.5
million for the expansion of
product portfolio of the EMS
and Distribution Products
Businesses;

(i) #919,500,0008 TR EAE

THERB RO HEREBLM (D)

Emis

(i) approximately HK$21.0
million for upgrading the
equipment of the EMS
and Distribution Products
Businesses; and

(i) #921,000,000&TARARE

TRERB RO HEREHD

B R

(iv)  approximately HK$41.0
million as general working
capital of the Group

(iv)  #941,000,0008 T AEAEE
M—ReELES
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() #714,000,00058TC ARE

EE

(i) approximately HK$19.5
million was utilized for
the expansion of product
portfolio of the EMS and
Distribution Business;

m 19,500,000/ L ARMEA
FRUERB R D HERE
ﬁ%ﬁ']?uu,



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIRE RO

Date of announcement

Fund raising activity

5EED

Net proceeds
(approximately) Intended use of net proceeds

i

N
TA

BFE (BN AR ERERERE

Actual use of net proceeds as
31 December 2024
W-g-mE+=A=1-A
FERERRERAR

(iif)

(iif)

(iv)

(iv)

approximately HK$3.5
million was utilised for
upgrading the equipment
of the EMS and Distribution
Business and remaining
proceeds of approximately
HK$17.5 million will be fully
utilised as intended by 31
December 2025 (Notes a
and b); and

#3,500,000 78 TL AR T
ETRERBRABESR
EWMRE  FISHIERE
#917500,000 BTTHR =T
“RE+-A=1+-HA%
BERBREER (MR
b &

approximately HK$41.0
million was fully utilised as
general working capital of
the Group

#141,000,000 BTLEAEA
(FAEEN-REEES
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Net proceeds Actual use of net proceeds as
Date of announcement Fund raising activity (approximately) Intended use of net proceeds 31 December 2024
R-E-MF+=-A=t—8
NERE REEH FEREFE (BR)EREFRRERR FEREFRERAR
28 September 2023 and Placing of new shares HK$30.9 million  Approximately HK$30.9 millionto  Approximately HK$30.9 million
20 October 2023 under general mandate the development of renewable was used to the development
30,900,000/ 7T energy charging solutions of renewable energy charging
ZEZ=FARZTNARR BE—REREEHTRNR specialized for electric vehicles solutions specialized for electric
ZF--F+A=tA vehicles.
#930,900 oooi%ﬁﬁwfﬁé’*%@ﬁ@
ERTBEERRRERARTR  £30,9000008TE ARRESEA
EEABEERRERANR
15 April 2024 and 29 April 2024 Placing of new shares HK$17.5 million  Approximately (i) HK$6.9 million will (i) approximately HK$1.0
under general mandate be utilized for the development million was used to for the
-z 7E$EH +HER 17,500,000 1T of renewable energy charging development of renewable
“ECNFENAZTAA BE—REERETRR solutions specialized for electric energy charging solutions

vehicles; and (ii) HK$10.6 million
will be utilized as working capital

of the Group

#1(1)6,900, ooo;%ﬁ%mﬂé’*ﬁbﬁ%

HRNBLERRRERARR K

(O 10,600,0001%7EWF$5E< )
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specialized for electric
vehicles and HK$10.6 million
was utilised as working
capital of the Group. The
remaining unutilised net
proceeds of approximately
HK$5.9 million will be fully
used as intended by 31
March 2025 (note ¢)

() #91000000&LEBRAZE
EREERTBLERER
ERFRAE 110,600,000
BTEREATEERNEE
B - B TARIAMEHEA
5900000 B LR —E =R
Fﬂ =t+—HakETH
\\\\\ SRR (M)

(i) approximately HK$10.6
million was fully utilised as
general working capital of
the Group

(i) #910,600,0008 LE EHA
EREEN—K2EES



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Net proceeds Actual use of net proceeds as
Date of announcement Fund raising activity (approximately) Intended use of net proceeds 31 December 2024
RZB-ME+=A=+-H
AERH REEH FEREFE (BR)EREFRRERR FERERRERAR
16 September 2024 Placing of 17,256,000 new HK$25.3 million  For (i) development of energy HK$3.2 million have been utilised;
shares at the placing storage system equipment and the remaining HK$22.1
“E-mFEAA+RA price of HK$1.51 per 25,300,000 7T specialized for renewable energy  million will be utilised as intended
placing share under charge for electric vehicles; and before 31 March 2025.
general mandate granted (i) general working capital of the
to the Directors at the Group 23200000587 T
2024 AGM 22]00,000 B TR EIR =T
BROFAEEHIEEZATEELELE —RF=A=T—HAEA -
BER-ZF-_NERRE ENRHERGRE  R(VAKE
FRELETESZM— —REEES
RERIUGREE RN
LSLATHEEBEE
17,256,000 & #TAR 17
Notes: HiaE -
(a) The expected timeline for utilising the remaining net proceeds is made based on the (a) FAFIAMERIEEE 2 BRI ERARQTKE

(b)

©

best estimation of the Company taking into account, among others, prevailing and
future market conditions and business developments and need, and therefore is subject
to change.

The unutilised net proceeds from the subscription of new shares under the specific
mandate are expected to be used in accordance with the Company’s plan as disclosed
in the circular except the original timeline for utilising the remaining net proceeds
as disclosed in the circular has been delayed due to, among others, the business
environment being affected by the global economic challenging such as the impacts of
high interests rates, geopolitical tension and going military confrontation in East Europe
and Middle East regions. The Group is still under communication with the production
department for planning the upgrade of facilities.

The management consider to integrate the EV Charging Solution and ESS Equipment
when selling to the charging point operator. Therefore, the remaining proceeds will be
fully used as intended by 31 March 2025.

()

©

B(EPRF)BITRARTR - EBEREFHEER
ZEAEMAE - RU TR ARES -

BB ERERBHRZ REAAEFRFEEHBR
BT IRE 2 A A BRBIER - B ATE 2 (2
RIS REFRECREREARE (AT EBRE
ERREERR (S MK - AR RRARRE R
FERILEMNFERYE) 2P EMAMEE - REBDE
HEAEIPIER  LRBIREAR

EEEEREABLERAERRTRRATBERRT
BHRFERGRE MABBUEEEHE - At - 88
THAGFREFR-_E-RAF=A=+—HaREERR
BEER -
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B E & W DT

The remaining unutilised net proceeds as at 31 December 2024
of approximately HK$45.5 million is estimated to be fully utilised
according to the intentions in the year 2025.

PROSPECTS

The China’s energy storage industry is ushering in a period of rapid
development, driven by the “dual carbon” goals (carbon peaking and
carbon neutrality) and the transformation of the energy structure.
The PRC government has listed energy storage as a key development
direction in the energy sector and has issued various policies. In
addition, various provinces have launched mandatory energy storage
ratio policies, and the peak-to-valley electricity price gap has widened
to stimulate energy storage demand. At the same time, the electronic
energy market is being reformed, the ancillary service market and the
spot market are gradually improving, and energy storage can obtain
benefits through peak regulation and frequency regulation.

In view of the above, the Group believes that the China’s energy
storage industry will maintain rapid growth, driven by policy,
technology and market demand, mainly lithium battery energy storage
in the short term, and develop in the medium and long term in the
direction of multi-technology route and multi-scenario integration. The
Group needs to pay attention to technological innovation, business
model optimization and global layout to seize the energy storage
dividend in the carbon neutrality era.

At present, the global economy is facing different challenging,
including high interest rates, geopolitical conflicts, debt crises, and
repeated inflation, which have weakened growth momentum. The
Group will continue to closely monitor the market conditions and take
necessary measures to adjust the business development strategy.

R-ZE-NMFE+ -/ =+—HBWHBRTABEF
18 N IBF 58 49 45,500,000 LA B R =&
“AERBTRRREIA -

BlS

[0 B AR (BOZE R M) FRER &R
BN T PEIRETRDARRRER
H o MBS RERITENERER
JTIA  WHEH T ZHEEK © 1o B REE
HoRBIERRELL PIR - BREEZENK -
RIBFERER K - B - EFELRM IS EHETT
HE - WRETSNMRETSEELTE - f#
RE AT LASE B 8 14 S SR 1S e -

BERY  AEERRTERHEERERR
RAMTMTISHEROEE T - 52 RS RS AE
BHREEATHREIER  FREASRZ RN
BE - ZESRANTAERER - AEEFTET
ERTalFE - AERABEMER(CHE - 8
R MBS A RHBEAT R -

B 2XEFEEESME  MEBUAER
BEHEH  BYRESKE KRB RS -
AEBEBFETVRITSNL - KL EE
TR RIS R R RS o
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to protect the interests of the shareholders of
the Company.

The new Corporate Governance Code (the “New CG Code”) as set out
in existing Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules has come into effect on 1
January 2022, their requirements are applicable to the financial year
commencing on 1 January 2022. Currently, the Company has adopted
the code provisions on Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Previous CG Code”) as set out in the
previous Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules before the New CG Code
came into effect.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has complied with
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) under Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2024, except for the deviation from code provision C.2.1
and C.1.6 of the Code as described below.

Code Provision C.2.1

Under code provision C.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual. The Company does not have any officer with the
title of “chief executive officer” and this is deviated from the code
provision C.2.1 of the Code.

Mr. Lin Dailian, who acts as the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company since 12 July 2019, is also responsible for overseeing the
general operations of the Group. The Board will meet regularly to
consider major matters affecting the operations of the Group. The
Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Group. The roles of the respective executive directors and senior
management, who are in charge of different functions complement
the role of the chairman and chief executive officer. The Board
believes that this structure is conducive to strong and consistent
leadership enabling the Group to operate efficiently.

TEER
ARBBAERSRENDEER
NEBRA RIS

" LAMREEZR

FHNRAE LR AM ST R EE A SR
(TFeEERIU)ER=ZE=_=_F—A—
£ EETEAR _ZE-_—_F—A—B8HK
MPTREE - B - AQRRDEAFTLEEAR
SFRVAE AT AT _E AR RIBH 8% TP Fr i (b 3 &
ATRIREEERRE (XA EEEERTA])
FTa#k <P RIMESC -

EEZRA ARARHBE_T_MOF+_-A
=t+t—BLEFEA-—BEETEHFLTHRA
TERHRADMWEATHO(EEERTRD
(TP R ) Pretmy < BIMERSC - HE TR SRRttt st Al
BT RIME S C2 1 B 38 C16 1A PrimBE A 1S
SLERSN o

SPRIERSCEE C20 ik

IRIR ST B ST RGOSR C2045 - £/ RITHAR
ZnAatEIMETEHF—ALEE - A2
A BRI R [1THAE ] /e RBE -
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WEK$H°§$QEﬁ% EERBEFEM
AEBERE 2MOENTGNER - THT
EERTETRBRENSHEEENAERT
F‘Zi??ﬂ&ﬁ@%&ﬁﬁfﬁéﬁ$ﬁ$ﬁ$ﬁﬁ%‘°E§%§f5$ﬁ1§ :
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Code Provision C.1.6

Under the code provision C.1.6, independent non-executive directors
should generally attend general meetings to gain and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Due to other
pre-arranged business commitments, Mr. Liu Zhiwei and Ms. Lin
Xiaoshan were not able to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 3 June 2024.

The Company understands the importance to comply with the code
provision C.2.1 and C.1.6 and will continue to consider the feasibility to
comply with the said code provision. If compliance with the said
provision is determined, appropriate persons will be nominated to
assume the different roles of chairman and chief executive officer.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as the required standard for securities
transactions by the directors. The Company has made specific
enquiries of all Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and
its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The three independent
non-executive Directors account for more than one-third of the Board.
The composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman)

Ms. Lin Xiaoshan

Mr. Liu Zhiwei

Ms. Bian Sulan

Mr. Wang Qi (appointed on 24 September 2024)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Li Huiwu

Mr. Wu Chi King

Ms. Zhang Xiulin

ST RIERSCEE C16 16

RIFTRIGRE C16 15 BIUIFAITERT R
EEFERRAE WERRZBEREREZT
g - ANEMFRLTHE 2 EHAGH - BIEET
ERMEMZ L REHFEARRNR T _MF
NAZBETHRRBEARE -

RNATRAEESFFRNEE C21ERE C16 &
MEBEBE - WBEEEEET E s AIEX
AT o IR E B ST ElE - AR RIS
BENENRIETERERITRES 2B -

ETRF X HIEEST R

RN BB BRA LT AR B M 8 CIPrEt £ 37T
ABFETEFRZNFEETA ([REFA )
EREEFETESFXHMBHIRE - AT
RAZREZEENENRER  AEEFHER
FERBE-_T-_NF+-_A=+—HILFE
BEETRETHEHINMBERERBERESE
TRHFZHITRTA

E
EEeRNAARRTEST R =RBIIFNTT
MK - Z=BBUIFRTEFHEFE=
DZ—AE - BEFEEHREMT

HITEF -

MAE ST (Z/E)
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The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 53 to 56 in this
annual report. The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills
and experiences appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of
the Group and to exercise of independence and is well balanced. Each
of the Directors has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and
strategic planning experiences that may contribute to the business of
the Group. The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. All independent
non-executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of
their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of the
Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of
other stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in
setting forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its
statutory responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic
plans, key operational initiatives, major investments and funding
decisions. It also reviews the Group’s financial performance, identifies
principal risks of the Group’s business and ensures implementation of
appropriate systems to manage these risks. Daily business operations
and administrative functions of the Group are delegated to the
management.

Independent Non-executive Directors

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a
fixed term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and still considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent as at the date
of this annual report.

EENERFBREBERAERFESIE56 81
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Board Meetings, Annual General Meeting and Procedures

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision C.1.3 of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has been
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings
are sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days
prior to the meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their
views at meetings and major decisions will only be taken after
deliberation at Board meetings. Directors who are considered having
conflict of interests or material interests in the proposed transactions
or issues to be discussed will not be counted in the quorum of meeting
and will abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes
are prepared after the meetings and the draft minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment on the final version of which are endorsed
in the subsequent Board meeting.

The Board meetings and Shareholder meetings attended by each
Director during the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out below:

Exges BRABFRELEFR

FERBEEHTE  ROMREHER
NEZERITERBE - RIBTRIZ 7RG E
CI3GRZRE  EFEARPITERARHE
DIAFTBR - NEMBESHRELT - BRE
FeflTeR 2 ARS  BREEXMHTIIRGHEA
BEBEA(RI=ZRINBEXTHEES - &
ERELRFCR - MERMEXRKIGEL
EXEQERTARRITEE - FENESE
ERXZFRIAFIRFELRAEHRIEKX
Mg - AR AZREBEEAR A
BHREBABRRRE - @R BRETESH
% BERAREBESTZ  KKTRANE
REFGEHLELS -

e
8
il

\

BEEREE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILHF
ERLFENEES SR IRERSOT ¢

Number of
meetings attended/held
HESEIEY BHERAE

Shareholder Board
meeting meeting
Name of member REHE BRAE EEgel
Executive Directors: HITEF -
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) RS () 11 19/19
Ms. Lin Xiaoshan MREsE R 22 £ 0N 2/19
Mr. Liu Zhiwei RER S E 0/1 10/19
Ms. Bian Sulan TERE 2+ 1 18/19
Mr. Wang Qi ? TR A? N/A AN B 6/7
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIBITESE -
Mr. Li Huiwu TERLE 11 16/19
Ms. Zhang Xiulin RAB T 11 16/19
Mr. Wu Chi King T AR A& 1/1 9/19

! Appointed on 24 September 2024

The Board has reviewed the contribution required from each Director
to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and is satisfied that
each Director has been spending sufficient time in performing his/her
responsibilities during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Newly appointed Directors are provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the
Company’s business and operations, as well as awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision C.6.5 of the Code, the Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills, so as to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Directors committed to participating in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by way of attending training or
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities. During the year ended 31
December 2024, the Directors have been provided with regular
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties. The Directors are also briefed on the latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements from time to time. All directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development programs to
develop and refresh their professional knowledge and skills.
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Training for Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2024 the Directors participated in
the following trainings:

S50

BE_Z-_NWF+_A=1+—HIFE E=F
2MMATES I

Type of training

g
Executive Director: BITESE
Mr. Lin Dailian MRAREESE A, B
Ms. Lin Xiaoshan R 22+ A, B
Ms. Bian Sulan TERE AT B
Mr. Liu Zhiwei RIER ST E A B
Mr. Wang Qi (appointed on 24 September 2024) FHEA(RZZE_MFNLAZTHAEEL(E) B
B
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BIIHITES -
Mr. Wu Chi King TR E B, C
Mr. Li Huiwu FERLE B,C
Ms. Zhang Xiulin RAEW LT B
A: attending in house training sessions. A 2 NANEBEEFIRE ©
B: reading newspapers, journals and updates distributed by the Group relating to B HEASESENEHLE  —REKLEESENR
economy, general business and regulatory matters. @ BT REFTEE
C: attending training sessions required by the relevant professional bodies of which he is a C S MEFMERBEXERERAFIIRE -
member.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company to allow shareholders of the
Company to share the Company’s profits and for the Company to
retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed for a
specific term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, at least one third of the
Directors are required to retire from office by rotation. Each Director
shall retire from office at least once every three years and shall include
those who have been longest in office since their last election or re-
election.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, new Directors appointed by the Board during the year shall
retire and submit themselves for re-election at the annual general
meeting immediately following their appointments.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established specific committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
with written terms of reference to assist them in the efficient
implementation of their functions. Specific responsibilities have been
delegated to the above committees.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from
time to time to facilitate the Company’s operations.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 31 December 2010.
As at 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee had three members
comprising three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wu Chi King (Chairman), Mr. Li Huiwu and Ms. Zhang Xiulin.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Group. The written terms of reference which describes the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee have been revised by the
Board on 24 February 2016 to conform to the provisions of the
Revised Code, a copy of which is posted to the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The works performed by the Audit Committee in 2024 included the
following:

. to review the financial results and reports of the Company;

. to review the reports from external auditor, management letters
and management response;

. to review the matters in relation to internal audit and the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management

system;

. to review the Group’s compliance with statutory and regulatory
requirements;

. to review corporate governance matters; and
. to review the re-appointment of the external auditor.
Three meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year

ended 31 December 2024 and the individual attendance of each
member is set out below:
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« EHLEEREE R
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IFFEERITT ZREELEKENER L FEX

Number of meetings

attended/held
Name of member REHR HESBAE BITEBXH
Mr. Li Huiwu FER LA 3/3
Mr. Wu Chi King (Chairman) TR A () 3/3
Ms. Zhang Xiulin R 3/3

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2024
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AARBEZZT-_NF+-_A=1+—HIEFE
MEEEECEREXTEGHEITEM -
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 31 December 2010.
The Remuneration Committee had three members comprising two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wu Chi King
(Chairman), Mr. Li Huiwu and one executive Director, namely Mr. Lin
Dailian.

The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of reference,
which have been revised by the Board on 30 March 2012 and further
revised on 31 March 2023 pursuant to the Revised Code. The terms of
reference are currently available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to (i)
review and determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses
and other compensation payable to the Directors and senior
management; (ii) to make recommendation to the Board on the
Group’s policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management; and (iii) making recommendations on the
remuneration packages of the non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors). No Director shall participate in
any discussion about his or her own remuneration. The remuneration
of the Directors was determined with reference to their respective
experience, responsibilities with the Group and general market
conditions.

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the
year ended 31 December 2024 to review the remuneration package of
the Directors and senior management. The individual attendance of
each member is set out below.
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Number of meetings
attended/held

Name of member REHE HESEAY LT8R
Mr. Wu Chi King (Chairman) PR A () 2/2
Mr. Lin Dailian RACHS S A 2/2
Mr. Li Huiwu TERLE 2/2
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 31 December
2010 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provision of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include the making of recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the Directors.
The specific terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
currently available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2024:

. review the structure, size composition (including but without
limitation, the skills, knowledge and experience) and diversity of
the Board;

. reviewing the board diversity policy;

. review the retirement of Directors by rotation and the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors at the 2024 Annual General
Meeting;

. review the re-appointment of Directors during the year; and

. reviewing and assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee consisted of three members, comprising
one executive Director, namely Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Huiwu and Mr. Wu
Chi King.

Two meetings of the Nomination Committee were held during the
year ended 31 December 2024 and the individual attendance of each
member is set out below.
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Number of meetings
attended/held

Name of member REHE HESEAY LT8R
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) WRACE S A () 2/2
Mr. Li Huiwu EEREE 2/2
Mr. Wu Chi King [ G 2/2
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Board diversity policy

The Company recognises that the Board with a reasonable balance of
skills and experience and sufficient diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the business and operation of the Group would be
beneficial to the Company and its shareholders as a whole and
enhance the quality of its performance.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity
on the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, educational background,
professional experience and qualifications, relevant industry
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be made according to the merits of candidates and their
contribution to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises eight Directors.
Three of them are independent non-executive Directors, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process. The
Board is also characterised by significant diversity, whether considered
in terms of age, educational background, professional experience,
skills, and knowledge.

DIRECTORS" INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against is Directors.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.

The statement by the auditor of the Company about its responsibilities
for the financial statements is set out in the independent auditor’s
report contained in the Annual Report. There are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company engaged McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited as
its external auditor for the Year. Analysis of the remuneration in
respect of audit services provided by the external auditor is included
in note 13 to the financial statements in the Annual Report. For the
Year, the total fee paid in respect of the non-audit services is
approximately HK$Nil. The non-audit services was paid for tax filing
services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tam Mei Chu (“Ms. Tam”) is the company secretary of the
Company, with effective from 31 August 2021. For the year ended 31
December 2024, Ms. Tam had complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
Ms. Tam is @ member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of system of internal controls and risk management
within the Group. The system is set up to address key business risks of
failure to meet corporate objectives and to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
purpose of such system is to manage and control risks properly, but
not eliminate it.

The Board has through the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls, internal audit
and risk management, including financial, operational and compliance
controls on annual basis. The Board considered the system is effective
and adequate. The review has also considered the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff in respect of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget. The Board ensures the existing
resources, qualifications and experience of staff and their training
programmes and budget should be adequate in respect of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.
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In view of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the Group,
the Board has appointed external independent professionals to
perform internal control review. As approved by the Audit Committee,
the external independent professionals made assessment on various
business and operation risks of the Group. Internal control review of
business and operation cycles is conducted under rotation basis every
year. The Audit Committee reviewed the findings from the external
independent professionals periodically and discussed the
recommended actions needed to be taken to develop and improve the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. The Board will
continue to improve the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems through periodic reviews and recommendations from the
external auditors during their audit and external independent
professionals during their internal control review.

Regarding the procedures and internal control for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of its
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“Inside Information Provisions”),
and any information required to be disclosed under Rule 13.09 of the
Listing Rules or any inside information required to be disclosed under
the Inside Information Provisions should be announced immediately.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting is referred to
as an extraordinary general meeting.

According to article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary
general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings shall also be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.
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Shareholders who wish to move a resolution at general meetings may
follow the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board recognised that effective communication to shareholders
and potential investors is very important to gain their confidence and
attract new investors.

The Group has taken following measures to enhance the
communication with shareholders and investors of the Group:

(1 Annual and interim reports are prepared and issued to all
shareholders within the prescribed period stipulated by the
Stock Exchange. All results announcements and reports are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website www.link-asia.com.hk.

(2) The Group releases business update through voluntary
announcement posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website to keep all shareholders updated about the
business development of the Group.

(3) The Group has provided enquiry mailbox (enquiry@1143.com.hk)
and phone number on the Company’s website. Shareholders,
investors and interested parties are welcome to make their
enquiries through email and phone and the management will
provide their timely response.

Constitutional Documents

During the Year, the Company has amended its Articles of Association
to among other things, confirm with the amendments to the Listing
Rules and applicable laws of the Cayman Islands. The current version
of the Articles of Association is available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EHERFS

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Dailian (“Mr. Lin”), aged 44, joined the Group in July 2019.
Mr. Lin graduated from Anhui University of Finance and Economics
and later studied at Fudan University. He is a well-known venture
capitalist in China. Mr. Lin has over 17 years of experience in
entrepreneurship and investment, successfully led or participated
in the equity investment and listing of nearly 30 projects. Mr. Lin
has been adhering to the concept of value investment, real estate
finance, corporate strategic planning and business model shaping.
He has extensive practical experience and professional knowledge in
business management, mergers and acquisitions, and restructuring of
companies. With rich entrepreneurial experience and value investment
philosophy, Mr. Lin has been recognized in the financial industry. He
has won the Top 100 Best Venture Capitalists of Hurun 2016 and the
Top 30 Outstanding Innovative People of China’s Equity Investment in
China.

Ms. Lin Xiaoshan (“Ms. Lin”), aged 35, holds a Bachelor of
Communication and Information System Management* (13 B21{3 &
ZHAEI) from Chinese People’s Liberation Army National University
of Defense Technology, School of Information Communication*
(P ARBHNERF R KE(E B BIEZET). She has over 10
years of experience in operation management and medical business
management. Before joining the Group, she was a general manager of
oversea projects of Shenzhen Jinjiayuan Import and Export Limited*
OFRYIE = REHOAFRE A7), the managing director of Chaoshang
Investment (Shenzhen) Holdings Limited* (8 & #&% & # B & 31D
AR A 7], and executive director of Qianhai Aesthetics and Plastics
Surgery Medical Group (Shenzhen) Holdings Limited* (B /& &3
SECFRIDIZERERARD.

Mr. Liu Zhiwei (“Mr. Liu”), aged 55, obtained a Specialist Certificate
of General Higher Education in Clinical Medicine from Sun Yat-sen
University of Medical Sciences in 1992, a Bachelor’s Degree in Clinical
Medicine in Chinese and Western Medicine from Hunan University of
Chinese Medicine in 2015 and an EMBA degree from Jilin University
in 2017. In addition, Mr. Liu is currently an executive vice president of
the Meixian Chamber of Commerce in the PRC. Prior to joining the
Group, he was the chairman of Shenzhen Xinxin Medical Technology
Development Co., Ltd* ORI TS BB R HER AR A A)) and
the chairman of Yuanta Chinese Medicine Chain (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
Mr. Liu has over 30 years of experience in Chinese medical business
and over 20 years of experience in the operation and management of
Chinese medicine healthcare institutions. He also has solid theoretical
knowledge in the field of Chinese medicine technology and health
preservation by food.
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Ms. Bian Sulan (“Ms. Bian), aged 57, has over 30 years of working
experience in marketing, promotion and media business management.
Before joining the Group, Ms. Bian worked as the general director of a
company mainly engaged in social media business in the PRC, mainly
responsible to manage the company’s daily operations, including
but not limited to marketing promotion, customer management,
product sales and review of the company brand development. She has
extensive experience in sales planning, marketing management and
wide personal networks in different industries.

Mr. Wang Qi (“Mr. Wang”), aged 40, has over 15 years of working
experience in operations management, resource management and big
data management. Before joining the Group, Mr. Wang worked (i) as a
purchasing manager at the England branch of Redcave Industry Ltd in
2010, mainly responsible for telecommunications value-added service
management, food retail and wholesale (Redcave Industry Ltd was a
supply chain management company affiliated with Cadbury Foods,
the largest food company in the west of the UK); (ii) from 2013 to 2017,
Mr. Wang worked in Xinhua (Daging) Property Rights Exchange Co.,
Ltd * (FFE(KB)EEERXR S FTBMR A A)) as the director of Market
Center, mainly responsible for the development of national market
and the establishment of operation center. Xinhua (Daging) Property
Rights Exchange Co., Ltd., which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Xinhua (Daging) International Petroleum Information Center Co., Ltd*
(GhEKE)BER A M E O ABR AR, provided venues and
platform services for various property rights, public resources, assets,
environmental energy trading activities; property rights transaction
visas services, information, consulting, training, and financial advisory
services as a comprehensive trading platform; and (iii) from 2018 to
2024, Mr. Wang served as the Chief Executive Officer of Shenzhen
Doudou Interactive Technology Co., Ltd* ORI T E S E B R E
F2 2 &]), mainly responsible for the daily operation management and
business activities of the company which was a domestic start-up
cloud computing and data service provider. Mr. Wang has extensive
experiences in marketing management in different industries and in
pursuing extensive personal network.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Chi King (“Mr. Wu”), aged 43, received a Bachelor of
Computer Science from Monash University and is a Certified Practising
Accountant (CPA) of Certified Practising Accountant Australia. He
has accumulated extensive experience in finance and accounting by
working in various listed and sizable companies in Hong Kong. Mr.
Wu is currently the financial controller of Hang Heung Cake Shop
Company Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability which is a food product manufacturer. Mr. Wu is also
an independent non-executive director of (i) Palinda Group Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 8179) since September 2022; (i) Mansion
International Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange(Stock Code: 8456) since June 2021; and
(iii) Wan Cheng Metal Packaging Company Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8291)
since June 2020.

Ms. Zhang Xiulin (“Ms. Zhang”), aged 64, has over 20 years
of experience in corporate management and human resources
management. Ms. Zhang served as the executive vice president of
Shanghai Resource Property Consultancy Co., Ltd. ( E)8 SRR B ¥
8 i% 19 A IR A 7)) from 2002 to 2010; from 2011 to 2013, she served
as the general manager of Shanghai Fujie Decoration Construction
Co., Ltd* ( E/B AN E & T A R 22 7)), which is a joint venture
company of Shanghai Resource Property Consultancy Co., Ltd., where
she was mainly responsible for the company’s annual budget planning,
guiding the establishment and improvement of the company’s various
management systems, as well as the organizing and planning of the
company’s important meetings and major events. Ms. Zhang acted
as the deputy secretary-general of the Shanghai Jiaxing Chamber
of Commerce* (£ /8 ™ % # 7 &) from 2013 to 2020, and was
mainly responsible for event coordination and daily administrative
management of the chamber. Ms. Zhang graduated from the
Department of Business Management of Shanghai Polytechnic
University ( £ /& 8 — T % K £)in 1996 with a bachelor's degree,
and later completed a postgraduate program in human resource
development and management at East China Normal University (Z£5&
A &5 R EL) in 2006.
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Mr. Li Huiwu (“Mr. Li”), aged 47, was appointed in October 2019. Mr.
Li obtained a bachelor degree in accounting from Wuhan Polytechnic
University, the People’s Republic of China in June 2002. He is currently
an affiliated member of The Association of International Accountants
and a certified tax planner and a certified intermediate accountant
in the PRC. He has approximately 16 years of experience in financial
accounting, internal audit and risk management. Mr. Li held various
senior positions in the internal audit department in certain companies
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange where he was mainly
responsible for internal control and risk management matters.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present this Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2024 (the “Report”) to provide an overview of
the Group’s management of significant issues affecting the operation,
including environmental, social and governance issues. This Report
is prepared by the Group with the professional assistance of APAC
Compliance Consultancy and Internal Control Services Limited.

PREPARATION BASIS AND SCOPE

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix C2 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) —
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” and has
complied with the “comply or explain” provision in the Listing Rules.

This Report summarises the performance of the Group in respect
of corporate environmental and social responsibility, covering its
operating activities which are considered as material by the Group —
(i) electronic manufacturing services (“EMS”) for consumer electronic
products with the manufacturing plant located in Guangzhou
(“Guangzhou Factory”) through offering one-stop solutions to a
number of international brand owners (the “EMS” business); (ii)
securities and other assets investments in Hong Kong; and (iii)
provision of real estate advisory service and real estate purchase
service in Southeast Asia; (the “Investments and real estate supply
chain services” business) The Group’s headquarter office is located
in Hong Kong and its operation location in PRC with its diversified
customer base covering Japan, Asia-Pacific region, America and
Europe.

REPORTING PERIOD

This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024.

CONTACT INFORMATION

The Group welcomes your feedback on this Report for our
sustainability initiatives. Please give your suggestions or share your
views with the Group via the Group’s social media platforms or email
at enquiry@1143.com.hk.
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INTRODUCTION

The Group is achieving and benchmarking with well-recognized
International Guidelines and protocols of Sustainable development.
As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure the
sustainable development of its business. The Group has complied
with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to its business
including health and safety, workplace conditions, employment and
the environment. The Group understands a better future depends
on everyone’s participation and contribution. It has encouraged
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate
in environmental and social activities which benefit the community as
a whole. The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees,
has enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high-
quality products and services to its customers so as to ensure
sustainable development.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, who (a) have invested or
will invest in the Group; (b) have the ability to influence the outcomes
within the Group; and (c) are interested in or affected by or have
the potential to be affected by the impact of the Group’s activities,
products, services and relationships. It allows the Group to understand
risks and opportunities. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationships with each of its key
stakeholders.

Stakeholders are prioritised from time to time in view of the Group’s
roles and duties, strategic plan and business initiatives. The Group
engages with its stakeholders to develop mutually beneficial
relationships and to seek their views on its business proposals and
initiatives as well as to promote sustainability in the marketplace,
workplace, community and environment.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained from
the stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the
Group’s business activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders
that are important to our business and established various channels
for communication. The following table provides an overview of the
Group’s key stakeholders, and various platforms and methods of
communication are used to reach, listen and respond.
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Stakeholders Expectations Engagement channels
B0 E FEH SHRE
Government *  Compliance with the applicable * Annual reports, interim reports
B laws and regulations and announcements
BFERAEERER FEBE  PHBRERAE
*  Proper tax payment *  Company website
HOENTR NGRS
Shareholders and investors *  Low risk * Annual general meetings and other
BRRREREE KR shareholder meetings
+ Return on the investment BRERBFERE REMRERE
1% & [0 3R » Annual reports, interim reports
* Information disclosure and and announcements
transparency FEHRE  PHRERASE
EERELEAE +  Company website
+ Protection of interests and fair NGIEE DA
treatment of shareholders * Meetings with investors and
REEREESE R A FFB analysts

HEEERDTENE R

Employees » Safeguard the rights and interests +  Training, seminars, briefing
== of employees sessions
RIEE B gl g kgng
*  Working environment *  Newsletters
THEIRIE FrER
» Career development opportunities « Intranet and emails
FERERKE PRI Bt 4 A0 2B 6
* Health and Safety
EREEZ S
Customers » Safe and high-quality products e Annual reports, interim reports
TR 22 REEHER and announcements
+  Stable relationship FEHRE  PHRERASE
BIEAER +  Company website
« Information transparency NGIEED
ERERE +  Email and customer service hotline
+ Integrity BIH MR REELR
HiE +  Regular meetings
+  Business ethics EHEE
[HES L
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Stakeholders Expectations Engagement channels
BHE FEH SHRE
Suppliers and partners * Long-term partnership *  Business meetings and phone calls
PR % R RHAB AR ¥BERLEHE
* Honest cooperation * Regular meetings
B a1 EHEgE
* Fairness and openness * Reviews and assessments
YNSRYNGS it M AT
* Information resources sharing
ERER{E
* Risk reduction
P R b
Financial institutions *  Compliance with the applicable *  Consulting
SRS laws and regulations Eo
BTEAAERES + Information disclosure
+  Disclosure of information EEWE
E R + Annual reports, interim reports
and announcements
FEBE  PHRERAE
Media * Information transparency *  Company website
e SRERE NSIEER
* Interviews
[Eil
Public and communities *  Community involvement ¢ Annual reports, interim reports
ABRUE fLE 2 and announcements
«  Social responsibilities FEHRE PHRERRE
HEEME

Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns of stakeholders. The
feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed decisions,
and to better assess and manage the resulting impact.

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in ESG reporting by
understanding the key ESG issues that are important to the business
of the Group. All the key ESG issues and key performance indicators
(KPIs) are reported in the Report according to recommendations of
the ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules) and the
Global Reporting Initiative Guidelines. The Group has evaluated the
materiality and importance of ESG aspects through the following
steps:
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Step 1: Identification — Industry Benchmarking

. Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of
relevant ESG reports of the local and international industry
peers.

. The materiality of each ESG area was determined based on the
importance of each ESG area to the Group through internal
discussion of the management and the recommendation of the
ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules).

Step 2: Prioritisation — Stakeholder Engagement

. The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG areas
identified above to ensure all the key aspects were covered.

Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

. Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal
discussion among the management, the Group’s management
ensured that all the key and material ESG areas, which were
important to the business development, were reported and in
compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in 2024, those important ESG
areas to the Group were discussed in this Report.

ESG GOVERNANCE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues

Board’s overall vision and strategy in managing ESG issues

The board of directors (“Board”) has a primary role in overseeing the
management of the Group’s sustainability issues. During the reporting
period, the Board and the ESG Sustainability Working Group spent
significant time evaluating the impact of ESG-related risks on our
operation and formulating relevant policies for dealing with the risks.
The oversight of the Board is to ensure the management has all the
right tools and resources to oversee the ESG issues in the context of
strategy and long-term value creation.
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ESG Working Group

To demonstrate our commitment to transparency and accountability,
our Group has established an ESG Working Group, which has clear
terms of reference that set out the powers delegated to it by the
Board. We highly value the opinions of each stakeholder and treat
them as the cornerstone for the development of the Group.

The ESG Working Group is primarily responsible for reviewing and
supervising the ESG process, and risk management of the Group.
Different ESG issues were reviewed by the ESG Working Group at the
meetings. During the reporting period, the ESG Working Group and
the management reviewed the ESG governance and different ESG
issues.

Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for material ESG-
related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of
different stakeholders on our ESG issues, materiality assessment is
conducted each year. We ensure various platforms and channels
of communication are used to reach, listen and respond to our key
stakeholders. Through general communication with stakeholders,
the Group is to understand the expectations and concerns from
stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more
informed decisions, and to better assess and manage the resulting
impact.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance of ESG
aspects through the steps: (1) material ESG area identification
by industry benchmarking; (2) key ESG area prioritization with
stakeholder engagement; and (3) validation and determining material
ESG issues based on results of communication among stakeholders
and the management. Hence, this can enhance understanding of their
degree and change of attention to each significant ESG issue and can
enable us to more comprehensively plan our sustainable development
work in the future. Those important and material ESG areas identified
during our material assessment were discussed in this Report.
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Board reviews progress against ESG-related goals and targets

The progress of target implementation and the performance of the
goals and targets should be closely reviewed from time to time.
Rectification may be needed if the progress falls short of expectations.
Effective communication about the goals and target process with key
stakeholders such as employees is essential, as this enables them to
be engaged in the implementation process, and to feel they are part of
the change that the company aspires to achieve.

Setting strategic goals for the coming three to five years enables
the company to develop a realistic roadmap and focus on results in
achieving the visions.

Setting targets requires the ESG Working Group to carefully examine
the attainability of the targets which should be weighed against the
company’s ambitions and goals. The ESG Working Group specifies
whether the target is to be set on an absolute basis or intensity basis is
essential for target setting.

A, ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

To demonstrate the Group’s commitments to sustainable
development and compliance with applicable Regional Laws
and Regulations relating to environmental protection, we
endeavour to maintain green manufacturing processes and
office operational practices in order to minimize the adverse
environmental impacts of our business activities.

Achieving the balance among another two pillars of society and
economy of sustainable development, the Group is dedicated to
contributing to the environment, the third pillar of sustainability
and following these principles to minimize our adverse impacts
on the environment:

. Complying with all the applicable Regional Laws
and Regulations from all levels and functions of the
organization

. Assuring needs, expectations and/or applicable legal
requirements (if any) of the relevant interested parties;
the person or organization that can affect, be affected by,
like shareholders and/or stakeholders including customers,
suppliers, communities, regulators, non-governmental
organizations, investors and employees relating to
environmental protection being communicated and
understood
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Employing ISO-14001 Environmental Management System
to adopt a systematic approach to effectively protect the
environment and respond to changing environmental
conditions in balance with socio-economic needs

Ensuring sufficient investments and resources for
the environmental-friendly facilities, equipment and
instruments that are operating safely, effectively and more
efficient

Reinforcing promotion of conservation commitments,
educational training, and enhancing staff’s environmental
protection awareness

Incorporating environmental targets and objectives into
our business strategic visions and competitive implications
by aligning them with business priorities and decision-
making

EMISSIONS

The Group acknowledges its responsibility to the
environment and has ethical duties to reduce emissions.
Given the nature of our business, the impacts on the
environment and natural resources are not significant.
In spite of this, we are committed to minimizing our
environmental impacts by responsibly managing our
business operations, reducing our carbon footprint and
using resources effectively.

In the meantime, we have fully complied with all of the
relevant environmental laws and regulations where we
operated such as the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China (2015)
in the PRC, the Motor Vehicle Idling (Fixed Penalty)
Ordinance (Cap. 611), and the Road Traffic Ordinance (Cap.
374) in Hong Kong. Besides, no concluded case (2023:
nil). regarding emissions was brought against us or our
employees during the reporting period.

Al

FAISO-14003RIEEE R4 - M
HAZRSH T A28 HURERSERE
BB LA IRIEA R B 1S
&k 2z R T

BRAZE BUESBEFNIR
REEM - RELTARARHAD

5% HE JE B BB R AR
K B THRREZ

#BAEE

FREAEMFREEXBELIRA
FORFARFE — 2 - i EMATIA

EBRIEES RSB AT

BEX

AEBERBEHRENEE  XF
MAOBERRERER - EREFIE
BOME - BRERAAERNY
EWTEE - BEWL - HAIHH
REBRETERERMNEHE
2 RERDBMANRETREXK
MAER  BRAMRENZER
ERE-

R HAC2EETRALER
M ARBERBAR AR -
I EE(hEARKMBARS
EUaE) (ZE—R1F) BEN
CREsIZE=E(CEREK) GH)D
(F6NE) MCBE BRI (£
374F) o WO ME AR A Y
B HFIB TIREBREBEROE

RERMH(ZFZ=F:8)-

China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited F Bl % se R 2R AR A 7



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R g MERWE

Al.1 Air Pollutant Emissions ALl KRRSFEMHER

The Group attaches great importance to mitigating
the possible adverse impact of its EMS business on
the environment and considers the environmental
protection mindset an important obligation during
its production and operating activities. The Group’s
major environmental aspects mainly include energy
consumption and waste generation. Nevertheless,
the impact on natural resources is minimal due to our
business nature.

During our operation, the petrol consumption
came from vehicle use for business transportation
purposes. The burning of LPG, and the consumption
of diesel and petrol generated nitrogen oxides (NO,),
sulphur dioxides (SO,) and particulate matter (PM)
to the environment nearby. Furthermore, the Group
targets to reduce the emission of air pollutants by 2%
by 2025.

AEEBAERREEET
SUERBEBHRENERE
THEE  IHREBIR
REEEREETHH—IA
EERE - ARENEANR
BHEIERERERBRER
ELBEERY- BEWU K
MM ERBEERE T HMY
BREROZEEN -

REFEES R - JUHER
KERBEERAENE
o RERbARR - A
SR A Th g M ERREE
EREY  ZEITRE
SFRLF o AN AEEH B
BREZ-ZT-_HFMI2%
VZERITRIBEN
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The details of air pollutant emissions during the
reporting period were as follows:

Investment and
real estate supply
chain services

Air Pollutions Unit EMS RERBHE
EREEY By EFHERY HRESE RS
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) kg 31.82 =
&y T
— Stationary combustion kg 31.29 -
— REETHRER T
— Mobile combustion kg 0.53 -
—- REBBMRER T
Sulfur oxides (SO,) kg 0.87 -
k=Rl Rz T
— Stationary combustion kg 0.67 -
— REETHRER T
— Mobile combustion kg 0.20 -
~ REBBMRER T
Particulate matter (PM) kg 4.09 -
BRUYTR Tr
— Stationary combustion kg 3.99 -
— REETHRER T
— Mobile combustion kg 0.10 -
~ REBBRER T

Emissions from production

Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) are the major
organic waste produced during the paint spraying
process for our products. Therefore, the governance
of industrial waste gases containing VOCs is the
focus and control area for our product fabrication
processes. Besides VOCs discharges, benzene,
toluene, xylene, total non-methane hydrocarbons,
lead and tin are also the air pollutant being produced
during our production process. During the reporting
period, a licensed party was outsourced by the Group
to carry out an inspection assessment regarding
to the average density and speed of waste gases
emissions from our factory on a specific date.

China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited #2 Bl g Rl R AR A T

RBERA - ERFRYE
BT

2024 2023

Total Total

—ECNE —To=F

@t Bat

31.82 47.50

31.29 46.93

0.53 0.57

0.87 1.20

0.67 1.00

0.20 0.20

4.09 6.09

3.99 5.98

0.10 0.11
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The assessment results provided by the licensed
party showed that our waste gases emission has
met the standard discharge limit of the relevant
environmental regulations in the PRC, the assessment
results of the density and speed of waste gases
emissions are shown in the following tables:

FETRENFEERET
B BE R AT & B4R
RIRBAMZE RRE -
BE R B E R R R ey T
HAERBIIN T

Average density FHEE
Year 2024 —E_MEF

Lead and its Tin and its
Waste gases of emissions Unit compounds compounds
BER B By thRELEY HBRELEY
Old factory production unit mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) 1.96X10
EFIRLEEEN 257,/ HX R
New factory production unit mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) 2.03X10*
IR EEN 257,/ HX R
Standard Discharge limit mg/m? <0.7 <85
EAEHERPR AR 2R,/ A%
Results - Pass Pass

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ24050909
TEREMRE + SGT-HJ24050909

Sampling Collection Date: 17 May 2024
BERY: —E-mMERA+T+A
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Volatile organic
compounds
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene (voC)
BRER Bfy 3 BE —RE BRMERLEY
Organic waste gas emission fromold ~ mg/m? Not-Detected (ND)  Not-Detected (ND) ~ Not-Detected (ND) 375
factory production unit ER/IHk R R R
REEFIREEENNERER
7314
Waste gas emission from new factory — mg/m? Not-Detected (ND)  Not-Detected (ND)  Not-Detected (ND) 3.26
production unit ER/ IRk i i Kt
REMIHEEENNERIER
Waste gas emission exhaust port from ~ mg/m? 0.01 0n 014 294
plastic injection after waste gas 27,/ ik
treatment
BRERGIBHEENEREND
Waste gas emission exhaust port from  mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) 0.02 0.01 230
assembly pad printing and spray ~ £%,/ A% R
painting after waste gas treatment
BREEGAEBIREREER
BREERD
Standard Discharge limit mg/m? <12 <40 <70 Not-Applicable
BREHRE ER/HK (N/A)
TEA
Results - Pass Pass Pass N/A
7R #iB Eil #il TNEf

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ24050910, SGT-HJ24050909
SFEREHES : SGT-HI24050910  SGT-HJ24050909

Sampling Collection Date: 17 May 2024, 23 May 2024
BERH: —T-MERA++A  E-WERA-F=H
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Average density EHERE
Year 2023 —EB—=

Lead and its Tin and its
Waste gases of emissions Unit compounds compounds
BER B By WRELEY BRELED
Old factory production unit mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) 8.0X10°
ERTIRLEESN ZRr/ MK R
New factory production unit mg/m?3 Not-Detected (ND) 11X104
MIMEESEN 2R/ MK RigH
Standard Discharge limit mg/m? <07 <85
R R B 2R/ MK
Results - Pass Pass

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ23052309
HERE RS - SGT-HJ23052309

Sampling Collection Date: 2 June 2023, 12 June 2023
BEAS: 2 =F <A  _Z-=F<A+=H
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Volatile organic
compounds
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene (voc)
BRER Efy 3 BE ZRE BRUERIEN
Organic waste gas emission from old ~ mg/m? 0.02 0.04 013 169
factory production unit ER/IHK
REEFIREEENNERER
7314
Waste gas emission from new factory — mg/m? 0.06 0.2 0.27 183
production unit 2R/ Ik
REF IR EESUNEREN
Waste gas emission exhaust port from  mg/m? 0.02 0.07 0.2 25
plastic injection after waste gas  2& /7 H#
treatment
BRERGIBEENEREND
Waste gas emission exhaust port from  mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) 05 017 333
assembly pad printing and spray £,/ 7k R
painting after waste gas treatment
BRREABEBIREREED
BREEHRD
Standard Discharge limit mg/m? <12 <40 <70 Not-Applicable
BREHRE 25/ UhK (N/A)
TER
Results - Pass Pass Pass N/A
&R Bib Bif B TER

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ23052308, SGT-HJ23052309
SFERERS + SGT-HI23052308 + SGT-HJI23052309

Sampling Collection Date: 2 June 2023, 12 June 2023

BEES: —E-=FxA-H —E-=F~A1+ZH
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Average speed FHRE
Year 2024 —E-mE

Lead and its Tin and its
Waste gases of emissions Unit compounds compounds
BER B By WRELEY BRELED
Old factory production unit ka/h 6.6X10° 2.6X10°
ERIREESBM NN
New factory production unit ka/h 6.1X10° 2.5X10°
MIMEEEN NIV
Standard Discharge limit kg/h <6.8X10°3 <048
SRR IR R NI =
Results - Pass Pass
HR " BiA

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ24050909
SHERE /ST © SGT-HJ24050909

Sampling Collection Date: 17 May 2024
BERH: —Z-WERA++H
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Volatile organic
compounds
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene (voC)
BREH Efy 3 R ZRE BRUBRLAY
Waste gas emission exhaust port from — kg/h 27X10* 31X10° 3.8X10° 81X10?2
plastic injection factory NN
REABIHEENERAERD
Standard Discharge limit of waste gas ~ kg/h <0.35 <22 <0.70 Not-Applicable
emission exhaust port from plastic ~ Af //\E (N/A)
injection factory NER
RETBIMAENERERAH
REHHRE
Waste gas emission exhaust port from — kg/h 46X10° 18X104 9.1X10° 21X102
pad printing and spray painting NN
REBAREREENERIHRD
Standard Discharge limit of waste gas ~ kg/h <05 <32 <10 Not-Applicable
emission exhaust port from pad ~ Af /& (N/A)
printing and spray painting TER
REBEORBREENERFHON
REHHRE
Results - Pass Pass Pass N/A
& B B @i TER

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ24050910

FEREES + SGT-HI24050910

Sampling Collection Date: 17 May 2024
BERS: —E-METAT+A
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Average speed FHRE
Year 2023 —EB—=

Lead and its Tin and its
Waste gases of emissions Unit compounds compounds
RN By HRELEY BRELEY
Old factory production unit kg/h 6.5X10° 1.0X10°®
EBEIHAEEEN NIV
New factory production unit kg/h 6.2X10° 1.3X10°
MImAEESR Afr/ N
Standard Discharge limit ka/h <6.8X10° <0.48
BB DT/ N
Results - Pass Pass

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ23052309
AHERE MRS« SGT-HJ23052309

Sampling Collection Date: 2 June 2023, 12 June 2023
BEAES: —F-=FA=-H ZZ==F A+=H
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Volatile organic

compounds
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene (VoC)
BRER Bfy 3 EiF ZRE BRUAELAY
Waste gas emission exhaust port from  kg/h 5.1X10* 1.8X10° 5.1X10° 6.4X102
plastic injection factory NN
REFETHAENERERD
Standard Discharge limit of waste gas  ka/h <035 <22 <0.70 Not-Applicable
emission exhaust port from plastic ~~ AFF /v (N/A)
injection factory TER
REAZTHAENERERON
BEEHBE
Waste gas emission exhaust port from — kg/h 45X10° 45X10° 1.5X10° 3.0X10?
pad printing and spray painting NN
REBIREREERERERD
Standard Discharge limit of waste gas ~ kg/h <05 <32 <10 Not-Applicable
emission exhaust port from pad NI (N/A)
printing and spray painting A
REBHREREENERHROM
BREHRE
Results - Pass Pass Pass N/A
£% kol ik ko TEA

Assessment Report Number: SGT-HJ23052308
TARER « SGT-HI23052308

Sampling Collection Date: 2 June 2023
MERS: —E-=F/A-H

China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited R Bl sERI 2R B R A &)
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Al.2

During the reporting period, a licensed party was
outsourced by the Group to carry out an assessment
on 17 May 2024 regarding the number of discharges
of VOCs, benzene, toluene, xylene, and non-methane
hydrocarbons. In addition, the Group also outsourced
the licensed party to carry out another assessment
on 17 May 2024 regarding the amount of lead and tin
emissions.

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”’) Emissions

The Paris Agreement sends a clear signal that the
shift to a low-carbon economy is inevitable, and
everyone must play their part as a corporate citizen.
In order to facilitate such a transition, the Group has
continued participation in the Carbon Disclosure
Project (CDP) supply chain program which aims to
help CDP highlight and spur meaningful action on
tackling climate change by capturing vital data on
climate change.

This can improve collaboration and encourage
transparency. Our GHG emission is reported on the
platform in July on an annual basis. We will strive
to meet our air pollutant reduction target of 2% by
2025.

The GHG emissions produced by the Group mainly
arise from indirect emissions (Scope 2) from
purchased electricity for the production factory.
In addition, we also had direct emissions (Scope
1) principally resulting from the consumption of
liquefied petroleum gas for burning of diesel fuel
and vehicle uses. The GHG scope 1 emission mobile
combustion and GHG scope 2 emission generation
intensity in 2024 remained stable as the effective
implementation of energy saving initiatives strategies
during the reporting period.

Al1.2
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The details of GHG emissions during the reporting RBEHA -
period were as follows: BT ¢
Investment and
real estate supply 2024
Type of GHG emissions® Unit EMS chain services Total
REREHE ~E-pE
RERBRHHES Efy EFHERE RIERER st
Scope 12— Stationary combustion tonnes of CO,-¢ 2.96 - 2.96
HE - ERmER W-ElikEE
Scope 12 — Mobile combustion tonnes of CO,-¢ 583 -
HE 1 -BHNER B-Elhes
Scope 28 tonnes of CO,-¢ 3,463.78 94.56 3,558.34
HEY B-g{Es
Total GHG emissions tonnes of CO,-¢ 347257 94.56 3,567.13
BEREHNGE B-Elhes
GHG emissions intensity tonnes of 458 278
BEREHNTE C0,-e/employee

W-SiREE
&

The calculation of the GHG emission is based on the “Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard” from GHG Protocol published by World Resources Institute and
World Business Council for Sustainable Development.
Scope T: Direct emissions from sources that are owned or controlled by the Group.

Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased electricity consumed by

the Group.

2023
Tota
—E-=f
@3t

445

592

6,032.37

6,042.74

EMS:

137
ETRERS -
7.37
Investment;
434

RE:

434

BERAE R E RN REIRI T Rt R b R OoK A
RHEEMIBERBREZTETH [DESFTAR

EREI A -

EE : NEETES SIZHINER 2 EEBR
HE2  ARBERNCBENEL 2RI -
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A1.3 Hazardous Waste Al3 BEEEEY

The Group is dedicated to managing waste in a
responsible way and strives to optimize the use of
resources. The Guangzhou factory has established
a comprehensive hazardous waste management
system and carries out the disposal of hazardous
waste in accordance with relevant PRC laws and
regulations.

Our hazardous waste mainly includes waste-activated
charcoal with organic matter, waste lubricant and
engine oil, waste emulsion oil, waste paint and paint
residual. There is a separate storage area in the
factory for storing hazardous solid waste. Our factory
also works with institutions which are qualified to
handle disposal of hazardous waste. The amount of
solid hazardous waste generated remained stable
as there was effective implementation of solid
hazardous waste management strategies during the
reporting period. Furthermore, the decrease in the
total amount of hazardous waste generated in 2024
was mainly attributable to effective implementation
of waste reduction strategies during the year. The
Group has set a comprehensive reduction target
by 5% for reducing hazardous waste generation by
2025.

AEBYNRUEEENT
ANEEERY AFRHEL
BRMA - BMNBEEZZ
EENBEEEEYWERER
% WARBHBTBEIERR
EREEEEEED -

BFNEEREDNEIER
BEREYEER  BEE
7B M R M - BRI
FEM\&E& BRY - ZBE

RERAREFRETEBER
MOERERE - BECEE
ERBBEAFEUNEEEERE
B AR WMEHNARE
EEEEEEEMNEER
B MELHERBAESER
MBERFTRE - W K
TECMFEANBETER
MBEOR L HEBHRF
WA 2 E e R BE SR S o AR
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The details of hazardous waste generated by the AEBRBREHNEENSE
Group during the reporting period were as follows: ERFEMFFBT ¢
Investment and
real estate supply 2024 2023
Hazardous wastes generated Unit EMS chain services Total Total
BREREHE —ECME —E-CF
FEENEEEEY Bfy E7HERE HIEERE i Bt
Circuit board tonnes 0.025 - 0.025 0.014
BRI i
Steel bin tonnes 0.286 - 0.286 0.475
# i3
Active charcoal tonnes 0.482 - 0.482 1.071
AR i3
Storage battery tonnes - - 0.023
E%H i3
Rag tonnes 0.010 - 0.097
i [
Light tube tonnes 0.012 - 0.005
EE W
Waste resin tonnes 0.324 - 0.400
g i
Hazardous waste produced tonnes 1.139 - 2.085
— Solidl waste WE
FEERNEEERY - BBEEY
Waste organic solvent tonnes 0.302 - 0.720
BEEHAN 1
Paint tonnes 0.028 - 0.052
R ird
Waste ink tonnes 0.010 - 0.020
BE g
Hazardous waste produced tonnes 0.340 - 0.792
— Aqueous waste [
FEENEEERY - REEED
Total hazardous waste generated tonnes 1.479 - 2.877
FEERNEEERYES i
Hazardous waste generated intensity tonnes/unit of 0.001 - 0.001
MEANGEEENER production
volume
M/ ESEN
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Al.4 Non-hazardous Waste Al4 EEEEY

Our non-hazardous waste generated from the
Guangzhou factory operation mainly consists of
scrap, wasted packaging materials, waste residual
from sewer and filter tanks, as well as other domestic
waste. Wasted packaging materials mainly include
cardboard boxes for product wrap up.

We consider the principle of environmentally friendly
in our packaging design and select more eco-friendly
packaging materials for our packaging process.

In addition, the Group continues to implement the
“Four R’s”, Reduce, Reuse, Recycle, Repurpose, such
as double-sided printing, reminding staff to have
environmentally-friendly photocopying practices
and recyclable waste materials such as paper, wood,
and plastic are collected and sold to third parties
for recycling purposes. Recycling bins are placed
in the office to regularly collect recyclable waste.
Employees are encouraged to read and send files
electronically to reduce printing.

With the increase in the production volume of the
EMS segment during the reporting period, the
amount of Scrap and wasted packaging materials
generated increased. Furthermore, the amount
of waste residual from the sewer and filter tank
generated in 2024 remained stable as the effective
implementation of water-saving policies during the
year. The Group targets to reduce the generation of
total non-hazardous waste of 5% by 2025.

HAEMNBE 2 EMELHN
BEEEEMIZEEERM
BEEBEME - THRKERRE
T REE DA R KL Mo AR BIR e
BEBEMHMEIEREEM
BRARME -

BMERRR; LRFRRE
RATHEBEBEFERE
IRRHBE Y -

SO AREEFEBITAR
CRDER - BEM - BRE
Hm-EWER)RA Bl
ST REE TRIFIR
REFHNEE MR ERE
AN R 78 BB 2 ] [B] I A Y
BERIE T E=FERKA
B MANEHB O - A
TE AU &= AT 1B IR FR A R
Y SWEENE TR M B
BEFXXHE - RATED

BEHRA - BEEETRER
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The details of non-hazardous waste generated by the
Group during the reporting period were as follows:

Investment and
real estate supply
chain services
Non-hazardous waste generated ~ Unit EMS REREHE
FEENEEEEY Bfy ETHERE HREE R
Scrap and wasted packaging kg 73,768 -
materials* N
BRREERENH
Waste residual from sewer kg 120,000 -
and filter tank NIS
TKEREHEE
Domestic waste kg 136,096 132
HERR NI
Total non-hazardous waste kg 329,864 132
generated NIS
FEENNEZRENEE
Non-hazardous waste generated ~ kg/unit of 0.013 -
intensity production
MEANNEZRENTE volume
Dfr/EEBML
tonnes/ 0435 0.006
employee
/g8

wastes and plastic wastes.

Scrap and wasted packaging materials include the packaging

China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited #2 Bl g Rl R AR A T
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2024 2023
Total Total

ZE-ME —E-=F

At B5r

73,768 62,725

120,000 120,000

136,228 136,697

329,996 319,422

EMS:
0.014
Investment:

ETRER

0414
Investment:
0.008
ETRER -
0414
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A2.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group adheres to the concept of energy conservation
and emission reduction for green production. The major
resources used by the Group are principally attributed to
electricity, water and packaging materials consumed at
the factory in Guangzhou. We aim to improve our energy
utilization efficiency to achieve low-carbon practices
and emission reduction throughout our production and
operation and strive to save resources.

The Group has implemented guidelines and policies for
energy-saving management which include in-house rules
for both office and factory employees to follow. Besides,
we have devised a follow-up plan after the third-party
certifications for the ISO-14001 standard. Our environmental
management team helps set up energy-saving targets,
emissions reduction levels and environmental management
programmes. Moreover, our General Affairs Department
is responsible for carrying out the monitoring work for
effective uses of energy and natural resources.

A2.

BIRH A

AEBERBEAERBERNIER - AE
RaBLE ~AEBEANTIER
ﬁiﬁ%lﬂﬁwﬁ%%ﬁm%

KR BEME - RABIRE
EE&W“L&$hE%ﬁﬂ
- BREBREEBE - ABHE
HIER °

$EIE§ B B B 15 5| RIKX
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A2.1 Energy Consumption

We have implemented a range of measures designed
to reduce emissions and minimize the consumption
of energy and natural resources. We also promote
a paperless office and encourage staff to reduce
electricity and water usage in their daily work to
maintain a green office.

In order to reduce the electrical energy consumption,
the Group gradually replaced the traditional lighting
tubes with energy-saving tubes which have higher
energy efficiency and longer life cycles by 6-8 times.

We have established a maintenance and conservation
policy for equipment which aims at enhancing the
optimal use of machinery.

In addition, a number of energy conservation
promotional banners and posters are posted in
various places to remind workers in production
areas. Through catchy slogans and posters, every
worker can pay high attention to environmental
protection and resource conservation. Moreover, we
are engaging in the periodical reporting on energy
consumption surveys conducted by interested parties
like clients and regional governmental bureau.

The Group has set an inclusive total energy reduction
target by 2% by 2025. The energy consumption of
purchased electricity and petrol in 2024 remained
stable as the effective implementation of energy
consumption policies during the year.
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The details of energy consumption were as follows: RETROBFERFIBIOT ¢
Investment and

real estate supply 2024 2023

chain services Total Total

Type of energy Unit EMS RELEHE ZE-ME e S 2

HRER By EFHERE SRS a5t Eh

Purchased electricity MWh 7,355.99 166.61 7,522.60 7539.72
BEE K

Diesel MWh 11.30 - 16.96
£ b9

Petrol MWh 2374 - 2413
i KEE

Total energy consumption MWh 739103 166.61 7,557.64 758081
whERES KEE

Energy consumption intensity MWh/employee 974 490 EMS:

BREREE KaK /€8 924

BTHERE

924

Investment:

579

RE:

579
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A2.2 Water Consumption

Currently, the water supply is mainly from the
municipal water supply. The Group has a strong focus
on water conservation and therefore tries to prevent
water pollution which is mainly generated by workers’
living activities. The Guangzhou factory uses the
sewage bio-chemical treatment facility and adopts
water reuse so as to reduce water consumption and
ensure water is used sustainably.

We build our own sewage treatment facilities in
the factory to undertake sewage treatment before
discharging, the water from the reclaimed water tank
is used for irrigation in staff living quarters. Moreover,
the factory has applied push-button taps instead
of screwdriver faucets in order to reduce water
wastage. The Group targets to achieve the reduction
of the total water consumption by 2% by 2025.
The reduction in water consumption was mainly
attributed to the water-saving policies that were

A2.2 AKX

BA - KEHEEZERE™
Bk - REBE R EK
BRRE HWENERE
EEXATALEERSHK
AR e EINBRE TS KA
WA BB 1 R b K BE K [E
R R BRI REE N

ROKAIHFEFR o

HMERFEARZLTBCH
K BRIR R - 1 R R AT ¥
EKETRE KEIES
Bl Wk A R R B KA R
B e SN BECEAR
EEA /K RETR - ERAC 88 e = 7K
BESE - ARAKRE - K&
BEOHERAN _ZT_hFE
BRAERKERD 2% > MR
PTHEEARBESHAENR

implemented effectively during the reporting period. BAENKERR
The details of water consumption were as follows: FKEBWMT :
Investment and
real estate supply 2024
chain services Total
Water consumption Unit EMS RERENE ZBIME
i3 Efy EFRERK SRS @5t
Water consumption m’ 57,048 1074 58,122
K Ihk
Water consumption intensity m*/employee 7516 3159
FKER THK/EE
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2023
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EMS:

7196
ETRERS -
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Investment:
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RE:
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A2.5 Packaging Material A2.5 B H

Our packaging materials for finished goods mainly
include paper packing materials, plastic bags, labels
and Styrofoam. The Group is dedicated to consuming

HRMNBEMBTIERRE
SR

MBERME - BHER
RBERIGBARER - K&

the least packaging materials possible. It is the B IR EBERESENE
Group’s practice to implement production planning ﬁﬁﬁi o REEMIEN A
on a timely basis so as to assess the least amount of REEMEAEES - A&
packaging materials needed. FERMENRLEE -

The Group is also committed to sourcing recyclable
packaging materials from suppliers with eco-friendly
practices and engagement. The Group targets to
achieve the reduction of the total packaging material
consumption by 5% by 2025. The reduction in
packaging material amount consumed in 2024 was
mainly attributed to the packaging material-saving
policies that were implemented effectively during the
reporting period.

REBETBNRETRRERE
I BEBRAHERRER R
REANBEMH - AEE
MERERI_—_ZT_RFER
BEMEEFEEERM 5% -
—E_NFRRMEERE
AT EZHRBEHAE
ME M BEMFBETKIBR -

During the reporting period, the packaging materials E’\i&iﬁﬂ A BERMEDEFE
consumption was shown in the following table: /RZZDTﬁﬁﬁ/T\ :
Investment and
real estate supply 2024 2023
chain services Total Total
Type of packaging material Unit EMS REREHE —E-NE 2
BEMNRER Bfy ETHERE 1 PSR AR S st it
Label kg 81 - 81 872
B% r
Paper packing material kg 596,18 - 596,118 641113
HEENH r
Plastic bag kg 12,760 - 12,373
BickSE 7
Styrofoam ko 595 - 567
BRLBRAER R
Total kg 610,284 - 610,284 654,925
&t au
Packaging material intensity kg/unit of 0.02 - EMS:
BENHBE production 003
volume ETRERS:
Tr/ESEN 0.3
Investment:
RE:
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A3.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group has established an “Environmental and Safety
Objectives, Indices and Plans Control Procedures” policy
to identify the Group’s environmental targets, implement
environmental plans and validate the achievement results.

The Group acts as a responsible corporate citizen by
complying with all the applicable regional environmental
laws and regulations for our business activities in the PRC.
Besides, the Guangzhou factory has obtained the ISO-
14001 Environmental certification.

It is the Group’s ambition to sustain compliance obligation,
safe production,
mitigation, waste reduction, accident-free, as well as
packaging materials recycling.

resource conservation, pollution

The Group is continuously incorporating environmental
targets into business decision-making, we believe that
protecting the environment is always a crucial concern for
our manufacturing nature business.

A3.1 Significant Impacts of Activities on the Environment
and Natural Resources

Under the rapid pace of industrialization, most of
the provinces and direct-controlled municipalities
are facing smog in the PRC. This weather would
affect people’s lives and it is not beneficial to the
enhancement of sustainability rationale.

Hence, sustainable development could be boosted if
the corporations allocate the work based on the life
cycles and periods of renewable resources during the
growth process.

During the reporting period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations in relation to environmental
protection for our business activities. Still, the Group
has different measures to save energy consumption
and emissions, and to reduce the impacts of the
business activities on the environment and natural
resources.

A3.

RIENBAARER
AEFECHIEREEZE2EIZ -
FEIZE R BT HITE R | BR » LARR
BAEEMNIREBIZ  BEMRIER
2 WIRERARE -

$%VER*1EEEE’U@%@

CETETEABRMERE
@JE’]FEH A 3 [ 3R AR OR 12 MO
oo ks - P EMRE 2R
ISO-140013R 35 3R FE o

AEEHEERBLTE B2 4
ESHER - BESE  ROR
% BEHRERTA QRN -

AEBEBFEREBEREDAAR
REE BARRFRERRE —EHR
BPAREXCENERRIFE -

A3l ¥BEBHHER
NERSE

EIHEHRRERT - F
BARFSEH REEMHAE
RBEREME  ZREFEA
BARE  THRRERETFE

TR o

BEREBRER

Eitt - fwEERIERBESR
RBEAI BEE R LB
NEROETE - AIBENMR
AIRHEER

WMEMBA - REEIL
MM EBSHEEBRR
AR IERNERTER
BN AEEE KB EE
BE - B 49 B8R OE FE K BE R -
WO EBEESHIRFERBEA
BRI E -
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Governance

Our group addresses climate-related risks based on the
nature of the risk to our operations. The physical impacts
of climate change, including extreme weather events, or
damage to facilities have immediate operational impacts
and are treated as operational risks. Long-term challenges,
such as emerging ESG issues and climate-related risks
and opportunities, may be discussed by the Group’s ESG
Working Group.

Supported by our ESG Working Group, our Board oversees
climate-related issues and risks regularly during board
meetings and ensures that they are incorporated into our
strategy.

To ensure our Board keeps up with the latest trends of
climate-related issues, climate competence training will be
provided to ensure it has the necessary expertise and skills
to oversee the management of climate-related issues. Our
Board also seeks professional advice from external experts
when necessary to better support the decision-making
process.

Our ESG Working Group provides effective governance for
integrating and addressing ESG issues, including climate
change, within our business. The ESG Working Group is
responsible for approving operational emissions targets
for the Group and commissioning an ESG benchmarking,
as well as a gap analysis exercise to identify gaps in both
disclosure and policy relative to best practice standards.

Moreover, the ESG Working Group works closely with the
Group’s different operation departments, with an aim to
develop consistent and enhanced approaches to addressing
ESG risk issues and reporting to the management.

A4. CLIMATE CHANGE A4 RIRE{L

s
/A

AR BB IR S R b A 1 Y B
FIEHEBENRRE - & f:mﬂiﬂ’]%@
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B EEEVELEIRR AL
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BN EEITHIRMIRE (g
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ERE @ RERTHENMENX
BT ZEFgnEEgee88ME
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REREEFSR ERIFEBEEN
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Al AREREER BN ENFEME
EERENEBRIEHBEENE
2o BEFEGNNBERAIMNEER
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i&% RoagkEiBE(BREAK
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Strategy

Climate change risk forms part of our overall risk profile
through its role in increasing the frequency and intensity
of certain diseases, and the health and mortality impacts
resulting from natural disasters. We assess the overall
level of risk by taking into consideration a range of diverse
risk factors across the many categories in our product
or service range. This diversity of risk combined with our
business strategy and broad geographic footprint helps us
distribute risk and provide protection against the impacts
of short-term climate change effects.

Our products and services continue to provide protection
for people in our communities against weather and
heat-related disease. Besides, we continue to explore
opportunities to engage our business partners and
encourage them to develop climate resilience and
reduce their operational carbon footprint by taking into
consideration different climate-related scenarios, including
a “2°C or lower scenario” through the following steps:

Step I: Set Future Images Assuming Climate Change Effects

As climate change measures proceed, there is a possibility
that the industry will be exposed to substantial changes,
such as stricter policies including the introduction of
and increases in carbon pricing, as well as advances in
technology and changes in customer awareness.

In light of these climate change effects, based on the
International Energy Agency (“IEA”) scenarios and
others, we developed multiple future images of 2030 as
the external environment that will surround our Group.
With regard to the IEA scenarios, we focus on the 2°C
scenario (2DS) and pictured future images in cases where
climate change measures do not progress and where such
measures progress further (Beyond 2°C scenario).

B B
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Step 2: Consider the Impacts

We considered the impacts on our Group for each of the
future images developed in Step 1. We believe that in such
a society, it will be possible to expand carbon dioxide
reduction effects.

With regard to effects on raw material procurement and
production, the introduction of, and increase in carbon
pricing is anticipated in accordance with the global advance
of climate change measures, leading to the possibility of
higher raw material procurement and production costs.

On the other hand, in the case where climate change
measures are not adequate throughout society, production
interruptions and supply chain disruptions are likely to
increase as a result of higher frequency and intensification
of natural disasters such as flooding.

Step 3: Respond to the Strategies

Our Group will begin promoting the reduction of non-
renewable energy during the production. This strategy will
allow for flexible and strategic responses to each demand
for the regions where the emission factors of purchased
electricity consumptions are high. By promoting real
carbon emissions reductions throughout the world through
these types of initiatives, we are working to achieve zero
carbon emission in the life cycle of the product.

We are also working toward zero carbon emission from
the plants in the production stage and reducing carbon
emissions through comprehensive energy-saving and
the introduction of renewable energy and hydrogen.
With respect to renewable energy in particular, we have
set a new target to achieve a 10% reduction rate for
purchased electricity by 2025. With regard to the ongoing
confirmation of the suitability and progress of the Group’s
strategies, we believe that we will have opportunities for
stable funding and sustainable increases in corporate value
through appropriate information disclosure, and dialogue
with institutional investors and other stakeholders.
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Risk Management

Our Group identifies the climate change related risks
or tests the existing risk management strategies under
climate change with the aid of risk assessment. Hence, the
areas where new strategies are needed could be identified.

The risk assessment takes a standard risk-based approach
using national data, local information and expert
knowledge, which can identify how climate change may
compound existing risks or create new ones. The risk
assessment is conducted through the following steps:

Step I: Establish the context

. Objective/goal

. Scale

. Time frame

. Climate change scenario for most climate variables
and sea level

Step 2: Identify existing risk (past and current)

. [dentify the record of occurrence of climatic hazard in
the past in the area

. Risk management strategies in place to tackle future
occurrence of the hazard

Step 3. Identify future risk and opportunities

. Explore climate change projections for the selected
time frame(s) and emission scenario(s)

. Identify potential hazards

. Investigate whether any existing risk from Step 2 may
get worse under future projected changes

. Identify new risks that can emerge under future
projected changes

Step 4: Analyse and evaluate risk

. |dentify a set of decision areas or systems (i.e.,
geographical areas, business operation, assets,
ecosystems, etc.) that has the potential to be at risk
in future
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As outlined within the Governance section above, the
Group has robust risk management and business planning
processes that are overseen by the board of directors
in order to identify, assess and manage climate-related
risks. The Group is to engage with government and other
appropriate organisations in order to keep abreast of
expected and potential regulatory and/or fiscal changes.

We continue to raise awareness of climate change in
regard to monitoring of carbon and energy footprint
in our daily operation. However, there remains gaps in
understanding how such climate risks and opportunities
may impact our operations, assets and profits. Our Group
assesses how the business addresses climate change risks
and opportunities and takes the initiative to monitor and
reduce their environmental footprint.

A4.1 Significant Climate-related Issues

During the reporting period, the significant climate-
related physical risks and transition risks, which have
impacted and/or may impact may impact our Group’s
business and strategy in (i) operations, products
and services, (ii) supply chain and value chain, (iii)
adaptation and mitigation activities, (iv) investment
in research and development, and (v) financial
planning, as well as the steps taken to manage these
risks, are as follows:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R LG RERRE

BN EEVE— ST - AEREE
ERRAERNEREREREBRE
MR REREXEZRSEE MU
FEE ~ FHE R EERRERER o
AEEHSEBBT R EM S EOE
BIF - BEERE  ZREAHNAE
TEHRIEEE NS B BRI R

BN AR EEP BT ER K
IR - NE IR A R RIRE LR
Bl o A EEMZERIKRER
EHBMAZERMNEE BE
g MhENFETRZE ° N&
B S R Ak S AR R 3 SRR B2 L Y
[\ e Ko b3 - X BRERFE e DA BR 458 3F
MOERBEZE -

A4l EXRRIEEBEEE

RB|ERA - BER AT
EHAKENOZE  Em
MR (D& ER
9 (i) ERMEREE - (v)
MBERERWHBERETE
MEBMRIEEET ENR
RIERANEXNEE E g N8
B - AR SEIEZEFR
R REE R E DI AT

Annual Report ¥ 2024 91



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B e REARE

Climate-related risk description
KARAERA RS (Y FE ak

Financial Impact

BT E

Steps taken to manage the risks

REBZZARMRRNIER

Physical Risk

BERRAE

Acute physical risks

SUEERE

. Increased severity and
frequency of extreme weather
events such as cyclones
floods, and strong wind. Staff
are easily injured. Also, under
extreme weather events,
the costs of transportation,
communications and living
increase, which may lead to
financial loss.

. Tim AR E M (AR E - HoK
Nog =) B ER B A AERIE N
BIRGXE - 1 - TR
RREHT &8 BERE
TERAYE R - Al ge 8 B
BBk -

. Increased likelihood and
severity of wildfire, which
may hinder the operations
of factories. Financial loss
occurs due to the interruption
of supply chain, logistics and
transportation.

. ?’*EIJ.I)\EI’JT%H&}EEEP‘

hn - ATBEPRE TR EE - HE
@@ ) %//\L& ﬁiﬁu‘:':'lifﬁ—fﬁb%@ﬁ(
BATSIER ©
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Operating cost
increases

EIERAIEIN

Expenditures
increase in
monitoring and
execution of the
contingency plan.

B NRITRSGT
SH9FAsTIB M -

Adopted scenario analysis
to disclose an organization’s
planning under future
scenarios, most notably
one with ina 2°C scenario
to collect, manage and
measure the climate change
impacts such as emissions
and use of resources etc.

ERABROMNAREAS
FEL R RIERAETE - EF
BT 2°CIER PR EE S -
AU ER ~ BIEMAE R IR E
e E - MBI EIRE
)EH o

Planned to establish a
natural disaster emergency
plan.
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Climate-related risk description Financial Impact
AR AR R E B B0 S B

Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZSRRMERNEE

For more than a decade,

the Guangzhou factory has
been in the supply chain of
the Automotive Industry. It is
mandatory requirements for
the manufacturing site to have
its contingency plan to satisfy
customer requirements in the
event of an emergency such
as utility interruptions, labour
shortages, key equipment
failure and field returns.
THRER - BNBRE —BER
FEITERMERES - RIBIR
BREIETE - REZBERT
(PR AFREZEFE - 80
R - B R BRI ISR
B) - BLET HESIE R =T E
NmEEP&ER -

Chronic physical risks
|"“"|V§E,\EE

Prolonged hot weather
may increase the energy
consumption.

%%%uﬁiﬁﬂ /J?/)é]%%

B

Expenditures
increase in
monitoring and
execution of the
contingency plan.

BN BMITIE=ET
BRI N -

Revenue is reduced
from decreased
production
capacity and the
negative impacts
of workforce.
ERTERTIAR
INBEETESH
Wasmd e

. Contingency plans were
periodically tested for their
effectiveness. Records were
kept for their compliance.

c EHARESTRNAEX
- WIREEZFERLARL

. Active energy management
and implementation of
various improvement
measures in accordance with
regulations and customer
requirements.

- BEEREEPENRETE
FEEREE WA E S IEME

Efii
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Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZERBRMEIRNEE

Climate-related risk description
KARAERA RS (Y FE ak

Financial Impact
B

Climate change brings
uncertainties to the

Administrative
costs for daily

Engagement with local or
national governments and

environments of production operations local stakeholders on local
and sales. Although direct increase. resilience.

losses will not incur by the

enterprises, they may still

affect and limit the sales and

production of the enterprises

significantly.

RIEE L REEREERES . AEEErITHX B b 8 0 HE i B A b Y
RIEEN - BELETGE G0 © KB LA 0 &S

EEEEER  BEENHER
HEDAIREXBIEBRATZE MR
i e

Prolonged climate change may
detriment the human’s health.
Continuation of temperature
rise can increase the fatality
rates and incidence rates of
some diseases, especially the
one related to cardiac and
respiratory system; the spread
of some climate-sensitive
diseases such as malaria and
dengue fever may increase.

Revenue reduces
from decreased
production
capacity and the
negative impacts
of workforce.

Planned improvements,
retrofits, relocations, or
other changes to facilities
that may reduce their
vulnerability to climate
impacts and increase the
climate resilience in long
term.

FENREELAERBEAR - E#ETREIAR AHEIETTRIGHCE - BUE -
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Climate-related risk description Financial Impact Steps taken to manage the risks
KR AR LB (Y HE B E AEEZSRRMERNEE
. Involving in the Carbon

Disclosure Project (CDP) to

have declaration to:

1. Reporting Scope 1 & 2
emissions,

2. Report an emissions
intensity &/or
allocated emissions,

3. Setanemissions
reduction target,

4. Report emissions

reduction activities.
. Z2HERWEEIAR (COP)UAR

-

1. WMESHELR 28BN
,\%R ,

2. WMEBMEBER 5
feE HERE -

3. RIUBHEREF
WERIES o
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Climate-related risk description

AraINVAN

B /A $&%

A5 48 B [ B B9 i R

Financial Impact

pg

Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZERBRMEIRNEE

Transitional Risk

BE R R
Policy risk
5 3R L b

96

As a result of energy efficiency
requirements, carbon-pricing
mechanisms increase the price
of fossil fuels, or policies to
encourage sustainable land
use, hindering the area of
expansion, which increases the
operation cost.

P ERRE 5K - ik i (B A% Il 4
=AEAREE B - EE
Hb AT +5 48 N R B R PR B <R
oK - B INEERAR ©

Mandates on and regulation of
existing products and services.
Contractors have to spend
much cost (compliance cost)
to update or maintain the
equipment to fulfil the new
regulations.

IR A E m R RFG R AR
B DBRBELERENEK(E
BN ) BTSSR - AT
BIEVE

Operating costs
increase due to
increased insurance
premiums for the
factories.

THRREREEZNE
BUEERK AN

Administrative
costs for regulation
compliance

on mandatory
equipment
standards.

TR IR 1R
BT T TR
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Planned to be involved in
carbon trading

FHEIZEIRR S o

Planned to purchase an
extra amount of renewable
energy sources and

adopt clean energy in the
operations to reduce the
carbon emissions.

AHEIBERINEN I BLE
RERERMESETRASE
RBEIR AR DHRIEIA -
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Climate-related risk description
KR AR LB (Y HE

Financial Impact

Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZSRRMERNEE

Legal risk
VAR B

. Exposure to litigation.
Manufacturers have to
adapt the tightened law and
regulations issued by the
government due to climate
change, and they have the risk
of litigation once they failed to
obligate the new rules.

- FRER - MREREEE - &
EE W/AEER AT A M8 E B
RENERRER - —BREEE
SPETAR A - RIEEREF AR o

. Enhanced emissions-reporting
obligations. Manufacturers
may have to spend much
time on fulfilling the report
standards to comply the new
obligations.

c IEHERRE R c EEET
EREILER ZRHEERRS
AR ABTTHEIETS -

Operating cost
increases for high
compliance costs
and increased
insurance
premiums for the
Group.

BRRAERS R
S ERER B IR NER
B2 ERANIE I o

Inspection costs
increase for
environmental
emissions.

RGP E1E N
RIS

Monitored the updates

of environmental laws

and regulations and
implemented GHG emissions
calculations in advance.

ERIRIBAELERNER
EP TE)EIIJ ETRERES
Eyﬂl‘jﬁ = °

Environmental emission data
were verified by third-party
laboratories or consultants.

REHNBERF=7TE%R
EHREEREETRE °
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Climate-related risk description
KARAERA RS (Y FE ak

Financial Impact

)

E/a

Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZERBRMEIRNEE

Technology risk
BTk

. Developing the low carbon
energy-saving products and
energy saving technologies,
the capital investment
and R&D expense increase
consequently.

. BRI ET B EE o R BN BE X
- BAREERAEERBE 2
B e

. More green building strategies
with low-carbon, energy-
saving technologies are
adopted by industry peers.
Lagging behind may weaken
our competitive edges.

. FEHRM - SERERNEEER
RIS ENRIITERA o RIEHH
‘Al aE R EI SR MNHEF RS -

China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited F Bl % se R 2R AR A 7

Capital investment
in technology
development
iIncreases.

RITHEHANR
Zu0 -

Administrative
costs for daily

operations.
HE&EITHNA
KB e

Planned to invest in the
innovations of energy saving
products.

N

FHEREATREEm AT

X

m
anp
[\1AY
So
il

Examined the feasibility
and efficiency of applying
the latest environmental
technologies.

B2 8 A B AR R BT AT
SLITER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R - B MNEAWE

Climate-related risk description
KR AR LB (Y HE

Financial Impact
B E

Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZSRRMERNEE

Market risk
MiSZER

. More customers are
considering climate-related
risks and opportunities,
which may lead to changes
in customers’ demand for
products.

- EEZNEPEZEA/IGERER
Rigs - AReERE P HEM

. Uncertainty in market signals.
“How environmentally friendly
the product is” becomes one
of the factors to affect the
product selling price.

- MBEERNTHERERE -[ER
MIRFREEWNM | KT EE
mEBENREELZ— -

. Increased cost of
raw materials. More
environmentally-friendly
raw materials may be much
expensive, which may increase
the cost.

o RMERARIEN - BREMR
MEFIBEEMBE - KM
B o

. Revenue decreases
for the change in
revenue mix and
sources.

« BAEBRIIRE
BB AR D

. Administrative
costs increase for
compliance and
sales drop for non-
environmentally
friendly product
design.

« BRITHAARE
- FERREmHR
STEBUEE TR -

. Production cost
increases due to
changing input
prices and output
requirements.

- BRABRERELS
EME L EHEE
P ZRSE AN ©

. Tightened the control of the
environmental hazardous
materials in our products
and studied the application
of recycled materials.

© IR RMEMTHIRRE
EMEEH R A 8L
MR o

. Bought and selected
different green materials
for the raw materials of the
products.

. BERERTRAZEMEHE
BEQHEME -

. Reduce and simplify the
packaging of the products,
to lower the unnecessary
costs.

© BRPRBEEMEE - A
AR EHI AN o
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Climate-related risk description
KARAERA RS (Y FE ak

Financial Impact
E\Zr 5{/ =

Steps taken to manage the risks
AEEZERBRMEIRNEE

Reputational risk

=8
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Unable to fulfil the

expectations of the customers,

damage the Group’s
reputation and image.

REEMEREFPHE BEAE
EHBERR -

Stigmatization of our
business sector, such as
more stakeholder concern or

negative stakeholder feedback

on the product designed in a
less environmentally-friendly
way.

BRI EBEFIH5 R - m
BABNRET AR NER
NEZFHNERIREESD
EREE -

. Revenue decreases
from decreased
demand for goods
and the decrease
in production
capacity.

. EmBHIEL RESE
TR ARD o

. Operating costs
increases from
negative impacts
on workforce
management and
planning.

. BBHEERAEN
B EYERELER
AN -

Supported the green
productions.

XFREBEmM °

Corporate sustainability
responsibility policy was
adopted by fulfilling the
social responsibility by
organizing more activities
or executing actions to
demonstrate how we place
importance on climate
change.

B EARERRE TR
R BRAEKRE Z R
RITEBRARMYERIEE (L
BWER - NtEITHEEE -
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During the reporting period, the primary climate-
related opportunities and the corresponding financial

impacts were as follows:

Description of climate-related opportunities

RIRAE BB M AR A

R EHRE - T28RENE
P B R H RO BEE L

2

Financial Impact

Resource efficiency
BRM =

. Reduce more packaging material usage
WA AR SRR
. Reduce water usage and consumption

B KB IRE 8 N B 7E

Energy source

RETR R

. Use of lower-emission fuel sources
158 FRAEHE AR ZROIR

. Use of supportive policy incentives
FERRFIEBRIE

. Use of new technologies
5 ARl

Products and services

7 in MRS

. Development of climate adaptation and
insurance risk solutions
h] T S M 8 I AR B L B e R 7 2R

. Ability to diversify busmess activities

ZI LR RS EE

Markets
mi5

. Access to new markets
EAFTIS

Operating cost reduces through efficiency gains
and cost reductions
MBI PR AR D & B AN

Operating cost reduces through use of lowest
cost abatement

R RIEARAREBER D & &R

Returns on investment in low-emission
technology

KR BT AR & Bl 3R

Revenue increases through new solutions

to adaptations needs, such as insurance risk
transfer products and services
FRNRRRARERER KRG SERES R
EARR T 28 I

Revenue increases through access to new and
emerging markets
7R AT S BT 5 AN A
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Financial Impact

RIZEEHE N AR g 37
Resilience
gE M

. Participation in renewable energy programs .
and adoption of energy-efficiency measures
SR B A B IRET I R EKERER AR 1 e

. Resource substitution or diversification
BERER%Z T

Metrics and Target

Our Group adopts the key metrics to assess and
manage climate-related risks and opportunities. The
energy consumption and GHG emissions indicators
are the key metrics used to assess and manage
relevant climate-related risks where we consider
such information to be material and crucial for
evaluating the impact of our operation on global
climate change during the reporting period. Our
Group regularly tracks our energy consumption and
GHG emissions indicators to assess the effectiveness
of emission reduction initiatives, as well as set targets
to contribute to our effort to have minimal impact on
global warming.

The details of the time frames over which the target
applies and the base year from which progress is
measured are described in section Al: “Emissions”
and section A2: "Use of Resources” of this Report.
Our Group adopts an absolute target to manage
climate-related risks, opportunities and performance.

Market valuation increases through resilience
planning, such as infrastructure, land and

buildings
BIRMERERGE - L3 MAETFE AR BN
mighE

Reliability of supply chain and ability to operate
under various condition increase

HEER S RESEGRE TLENR NIER
Revenue increases through new products and
services related to ensuring resiliency

BB ERE AR I E R AR IE A

HEZERAZE

REBERKNBEREGEREN
BREDSAREEN el P
BB WRMARSBEHEEN
REMEBRBSHEE 2
BRREZICEENFEME
BEANEES - AIERER
B ZE R (GHO) BE B IR
TyRM A M EEHER K
HER R ARG ST -
RS B E HA B M BETROB FE I
BERBERERA G
PR N - YRR B
B REEREHERER
MFEELER -

EHERRENRREIERR
AAEERNEEFNFBH
AR E S AVER [BERR | &
FAETERNA] - AEH
ERMES B IR R AR
HE BB S B DA B R3R
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B.

SOCIAL ASPECTS

BI.

EMPLOYMENT

Quality talents are the Group’s valuable assets for
maintaining business sustainability. The Group has
implemented practices in accordance with our “Staff
Handbook” with respect to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
welfare and other benefits which comply with the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Labour Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other relevant
laws and regulations of Hong Konag.

Equal opportunity

The Group places a high priority on achieving equality of
opportunity for all employees in relation to all personnel
matters including recruitment, training, promotion, transfer,
benefits and dismissal. The dignity and individuality
of each employee are respected, and the privacy and
confidentiality of employee records are safeguarded. The
performance of employees is assessed solely according to
their individual ability to meet job requirements.

Promotion and appraisal

The Group offers internal promotion to employees,
whenever possible, within the Group. Promotion to a higher
grade normally depends on the availability of vacancy,
individual performance and potential to take up the new
position.

The Group provides an open, challenging and participative
environment for all employees. We aim to provide
opportunities for the development of the skills of
employees to the fullest extent possible, consistent with the
needs of the Group. Job performance is reviewed annually,
and this serves as an opportunity for the supervisor to
evaluate employee’s performance in an objective and open
manner, to discuss concerns, strengths and suggestions
for further improvement. Employees’ remuneration and
pay scale adjustments are made reference to individual’'s
performance and appraisal results, industrial standards and
market trend.

B.

HEHE

Bl.

(]

BEAT —RAKERITERAHE
MNEEEE - AKEERIEINER
TFi] BEieA B kR - 5
RAEET - TIERE - BREY - FF
e - 2t RIERRENRE
EEBTHENER  MEERK
BFHET(hEARKNES S
E)APEARKNMBESHER
R RBREMABREAREROR

;'_Eo

FEHE

BREER  Hl - ' BE
wBHRBERENNAEREEE
B ARESEERER2EES
Henst SREENEERENE
KESEERESNEAZRKE
FLBSEIREE - BB WEARRR
BRBERSmE TIEZRMEENE
TTaHE °

BA RIS
A PEE S R AR B R A %
BaONBET - BAEEBMLA
PIBHBURR BAIZ0 - BARS
R BRI H RS -

AEERRERERRT—ET2
HEAFBFROIRE - HFIEHERHE
e FAERNRAREERES
HAREET RO - TEXRR
RETTFE R - Mt A ERHN
HeLEB L T A GEEN
RI - WA wWAFREHOME - 8
NREZ o BB EF B N S 45
T2REARREFGEER 175
RERTIGBEELHAE -
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Employee welfare

For the Hong Kong subsidiaries, the Group offers special
arrangements to employees to leave work early on
important traditional days which are not public holidays
such as the Mid-Autumn Festival, Winter Solstice,
Christmas Eve and Chinese New Year’s Eve. The Group
regularly organises internal events to strengthen the sense
of belonging within the Group and boost communication
transparency among all levels of employees.

The Group strives to create a fair and inclusive workplace
where all its employees are treated with dignity and
respect. The Group provides equal opportunity in all
aspects of employment and prohibits discrimination or
harassment against any individual on their gender, age,
nationality, marital status, disability, race, colour, religion
and any other characteristics protected by the relevant
laws.

The Group is in strict compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong, including the
Labour Law of the PRC, the Labour Contract Law of the
PRC, the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Cap. 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 602 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). During the reporting period, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
those applicable laws and regulations.
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BEEF

REBMBARME  ~AEBARE
BYERRRILHE - LMERENIIE

BARBHANEZESE A (WF
e~ 22 FLRRERS)RTE
I o ANEBTFEERRBEANTEES -
NIRAZEEENAEENSGE
B Mo E@BRE -

AEEHIRNEE—ERFE B8
MRS EMARIHERIE
BHNEE - ARBEEREBOSE)]
EREFERE W IR KER
BEMABEANMLR - Fie - B
IERGIRON ~ BAK  TBlR B e R
B Z AR IREN T E M
e

AEBBRETTELREENEH
ERRER - BIE(REARKM
BEEEE)  (hEARKTMEL
aEE) - (REED) (FBEDE
57%) - CREIM A E T &&EH])
(BBEDIE485F) ~ (R LAR
ey (BB EDIZE 480 &) (& TR
ARG (BAEERIFE602F) -
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BARTMETHFBERERIERD
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BI1

Total Workforce

As at 31 December 2024, the employee compositions
(in percentage of employees) by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical region were as

follows:

Employee compositions EBEAERK

By gender B RIE D

—  Male - 5

—  Female - i

By age group BERARE D
— 30 or below —  30BREAT
—  31-40 —  31E40B
—  41-50 —  41E50%%
— 51 orabove — 5l
By employment category RIERERE D
—  Senior management - SHEEE
—  Middle management - HREEE
—  General - —®

—  Contract/short term B8,/ EH
By geographical region % ith 3 2 35 Bl o
— PRC — =8

—  Hong Kong - B

R-E-—mE+=-A=+—
H: - EE/HEK(AEEES
LA MR - EIEER -
Fie /R M IE [R5 E] 5 a0
i
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Bl2 EERKHE

REBERHEHAZER
FE MBI &1 12 = 15 B 5 &Y

B1.2 Employment Turnover Rate

Our Group’s employee annual turnover rate
breakdown by gender, age group and geographical

region during the reporting period was as follows:

BESFRALEAMAMAT

2023
Employee turnover rate EERKL=E —E-=
By gender &% B &5
—  Male - BH 20%
—  Female - 38%
By age group RERAERE D
— 30 orbelow —  30REMAT 113%
—  31-40 —  31Z40m% 32%
—  41-50 —  41Z50%% 13%
— 51 orabove —  SIERsAE 18%
By geographical region % 1th 38 35 Bl o
—  PRC — 32%
—  Hong Kong - B 27%
Overall 2 32%
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B2.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group rigorously complies with the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Work Safety” ((FRZE AR
MBE %24 ESE)) and other relevant laws and regulations
of Hong Kong in order to maintain health and safety
working environment. Employment safety rules is included
in the Group’s Staff Handbook for regulating occupational
health and safety and on-the-job training is provided for
the employees in order to minimize the potential risk of
accidents, injuries and exposure in relation to health risks.

The Guangzhou factory obtained Occupational Health
and Safety Certification (ISO-45001) formulated by the
International Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO”).
Thus, there is effective guarantee of a healthy, safe and
stable working environment. Daily operations are inspected
by various departments according to the occupational
health and safety requirements of the respective region.
Any non-compliance will also be identified and rectified
on a timely basis. For the Hong Kong office, we have
implemented the Occupational Health and Safety
Management System, and maintained the operations of the
system to fulfil the requirements of OHSAS45001: 2018.

Besides, the Group has established the Environmental
Health and Safety Steering Committee within the
Occupational Safety and Hygiene Management Committee.
The committee provides management support for the
implementation of this policy and sufficient financial
resources.

Furthermore, the Guangzhou factory has implemented
several workplace safety policies so as to avoid fire and
industrial accidents, these include:

. Fire-fighting facilities like fire extinguishers are well
equipped.

. Designated staff conducts inspection from time to
time so as to ensure the exit passageway is clear and

unblocked.

. Fire drills are organized twice per year.

B2.

REBBRRETF(PEARLTEH
TREEX)RESEMABEERE

RER  NHEFEREZEZHNT
ERIR - AEEB ITFMEHERE
BEEHA - RSB EREREE
Z - HZFMmE B R EERE
NREBREETEERRZERR
KRRt Rk

&N R B B ER 1S B BR A2 2 L 4 4
(HsoJ)%U@ﬁH&%ﬁJi;zimé‘
(ISO-45001) * BfgF - 22 &
ERIERBIRHEB NORE - B
BIRER S IR EB R A
REEZ2RTEHETRE - W RF
A FEBHTETIER - REBW
FRME @ BOMTRERREMNE
BIREBR  WHHHEBEURE
OHSAS45001 : 2018 AR IE °

BN REBBEBELR S REE
ERZEENHIRIREFTERE
PRELREE - ZEBEANICR

MERIBHEEIERT OIS

LSS - BINEE BT Z R TIES

PRZEBER  WBRAXRTES

BB

- EEFEANEFEENRA
R

c BEFABTHUENHERE
2RBGERER -

© BFABMANERE -
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B2.1 Number and Rate of Work-related Fatalities

B2.2

108 China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited Bl aE Rl i3 R B R A 7

Below is our Group’s number of work-related injuries
and fatalities, and the rate of work-related injuries
that occurred in each of the past three years:

Health and Safety
BEREZE

Unit
By

Work-related injuries
EAIXE

Work-related fatalities
ATl

Rate of work-related fatalities
BT Tt %

Lost Days due to Work Injury

cases
1
cases
1

%

%

Below is our Group’s number of lost days due to work

injury of the past three years:

Health and Safety
BREHEZE

Lost days due to work injury
ETHBELTIEAH

Unit 2024
By —E_MF
days 74
AN

B2.1 EITHMHIAS MR

AEBRBE="FIFEHE
MRETIZERIET ABUAR

ATRGEERDT -
2023 2022
TE-=F it 2 i
9 6

B2.2 ETHELRT/ERE

REERBE=FNRAIE

BAITEEHWMT
2023 2022
B —E-=
193 43
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B3.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group places a strong emphasis on the career
development of individual employees. Employees are
encouraged to keep abreast of the changing world and
pursue continuing education, so as to cope with the
rapidly changing society and meet the evolving corporate
development needs.

The Group encourages its employees to participate in
individual continuing education programs which are
related to their job duties, strengthen the professional
career training of its staff teams, promote the professional
expertise of management teams and stimulate the
potential abilities of employees. In addition, in order to
enable new staff to fit into the Group and comprehend the
Group’s policy and corporate culture as soon as possible.

We provide basic orientation training for all new staff and
provide its management personnel and employees with
on-the-job education, training and other opportunities to
improve their skills and knowledge. The Group continues to
intensify its efforts to promote staff training programmes.
This helps provide the necessary protection for talent
reserves for corporate development.

B3.

R Mg

AEE-HERREEEANSERE
R WekEhEES BEEFIWE - 58
#iE AfﬁﬁAE#ﬁﬂﬁEﬁﬁk
HPESRERNOFR -

AERE S8 T2 HEIR T (FRf4E
BRI EAEIEERTE - N2 8 TR
RB R RAEEEBRNER
R KR 3 B T ERE - AN 0
EHEB TREMBRBALEHE
TRASBENBREMEREE -

REBRBPAANE TREABER
Bl AABMANEEAERET
REERHE - Bk
R EE R R AE - AEH
SEMNSRETT R THIIRE - R
ENMBRMFAT BHRHELCER
RIS o
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B3.1 Percentage of Employees Trained B3.1 FilEEBES L

During the reporting period, the percentages REEHAA - ZMERRIERF
of employees received training by gender and HREsMXIEEES L
employment category were as follows: Ul

2023
Training I ZE=F
Percentage of employees trained ZIEEBESH
By gender &% B &5
—  Male - Bk 91%
—  Female - E 110%
By employment category RIERERE D
—  Senior management SREEE 96%
—  Middle management - HREHEE 96%
—  General - —% 104%
—  Contract/short term - A%/ EH 133%
Overall st 104%

During the reporting period, the composition RBEER - B & & fF

of employees received training by gender and BRI S B EE B R
employment category was as follows: ™~

Composition of Employees 2023
Received Training ZIEEER —ET_=
By gender BRI &S

—  Male - BH 29.3%
—  Female - ik 70.7%
By employment category REBERE S

—  Senior management - BHEEE 2.9%
—  Middle management - HhEEEE 5.1%
—  General staff - —% 91.5%
—  Contract/short term - BH/RH 0.5%
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B4.

B3.2 Average Training Hours Completed per Employees

During the reporting period, the average training
hours by gender and employment categories were as
follows:

Training bH |

Average training hours
(hours/employee)

By gender B RIE

— Male - 5K

—  Female - it

By employment category RERERE S
—  Senior management SRERERE
—  Middle management - HEEEE

—  General - %
—  Contract/short term —  AH/EE

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group strictly complies with International Labour
Standards and the PRC’s “Provision on the Prohibition of
Using Child Labour” ({Z£ | F§ & T #R & )). Besides, no
juveniles under 16 years old are recruited.

In order to maintain a harmonious labour relationship, the
Group firmly eradicates any forced labour, employment
discrimination and occupational discrimination. The Group
protects the rights of staff in terms of providing rest and
leave days according to relevant government laws and
regulations. During the reporting period, the Group strictly
complied with laws and regulations relating to employment
and labour practices in the PRC and Hong Kong.

FHZIRE (KR ER)

B4.

B3.2 BREEXTRZ I NI
2
R|EHRA - LR RIERE
¥R 5 2R
N

2023
—=E-=

73.8
35.4
60.6
54.4
14.6
20.0

& TR

&R B BR G ST B 45 TR K A

B IEERETIRE) © oM -
BN IS B IR MGV ETL ©

RRFMBNBSERER - AEEE
IRIABE(IRESE - AR R
BERR - AEESKBBAFNA
FORRNEMR - RERTIRE RIK
BN - RIMEHR - AEER
RETPEREENEERS TE
BIRRBERIER
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BS.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The principal raw materials used in Guangzhou factory
production mainly include ICs, PCBs, plastic, motors
and batteries. At present, the majority of manufacturing
materials are purchased domestically. The factory typically
procures raw materials and components upon receipt of
purchase orders from its customers.

In order to ensure that the raw materials and components
procured are of the requisite standards, our Purchasing
Department is responsible for procurement of raw
materials, and managing the sourcing arrangement for our
supply chain. An approved vendor list is maintained for our
principal raw materials and components and the vendor list
is reviewed periodically.

During the reporting period, the breakdown of suppliers by
geographic region was as follows:

BS.

Number of suppliers HEBHE
By geographic region i & & 5
—  Hong Kong - B
— PRC -
—  Taiwan - A
—  Europe - BN
— USA - =EH
—  Australia - RN
—  lsrael - Bedl
—  Japan - HX
—  Swaziland - I&*
—  Singapore - g
—  Cambodia - SRIEZE
Total e

HiEgEE

BEMNBEERNEZRTHEEE
FRER - ENRIESEIR - B8 - #F)
WREM - BRI KEDEEMH
BEER - TH-BRNEEEFPH
REBFTERRBE RV LA -

RERARBORM B RAFTE
RENRE  REBHABRBRY
P E R R AR L P - T
ERTREZEMHRAMFEIL
RAfrEm B - WE B EET
BB -

RIEHA - BRI D HOHERD
B4R -
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To enhance supply chain management, the Group has
formulated management systems and regulates the
supplier selection process to systematically evaluate and
qualify new suppliers. This enables top notch suppliers to
enter its supply system and become its qualified suppliers,
thereby facilitating its stable procurement development.
According to the Group’s “Standard Operating Procedure”
and quality management system relating to the supplier
management process, the Group is to carefully manage
and selects qualified suppliers and carries out regular
evaluations to safeguard the quality of raw materials. Apart
from the quality, the Group selects the suppliers based on
the price, locations and flexibility. After the comparisons
between various aspects, the supervisor of the department
will choose the most suitable supplier and report to the
Operation Director. Once non-compliance of the supplier
is discovered, the supervisor of the department will inform
the supplier to make corrective actions within a time limit. If
no improvement is made, the supervisor of the department
and the Operation Director have the right to terminate the
cooperation.

Besides, we ensure our product delivery schedules are
properly fulfilled, and establish a foundation for providing
quality products to our customers. Customers become
more concerned about environmental issues and stress
the importance of using environmental-friendly materials.
We will continue to communicate these demands with
our suppliers, strengthen our cooperation with suppliers
regarding their ability to deliver environmentally friendly
materials, coordinate with them in sampling trials, and
work with them to maximize societal benefits.
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B6.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to supplying quality products
and providing quality services that consistently meet or
even exceed our customers’ expectations. The Group
has placed a strong emphasis on quality assurance
and adopted stringent quality assurance procedures at
different stages of its business operation including the pre-
production process, the procurement of raw materials and
components, the monitoring of production processes and
the inspections of finished products to ensure the qualities
meet our standards.

B6.1 Percentage of Total Products Sold or Shipped
subject to Recalls

During the reporting period, neither the products
sold nor shipped (2023: nil) were subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.

B6.2 Customer Relationship Management

Customer satisfaction is the foundation of an
enterprise’s competitiveness, and the Group is to
continuously strive to improve on this aspect. The
Group has a customer-oriented focus and strives
to provide high quality products and services by
continuously addressing the concerns customers are
looking for. A policy “Communication and Service
with Customers Manual” (€ £2 B8 & A9 & 18 & RIS 4E
%32 F ) has been set to standardize the procedure
for customer communication in order to promote
operational consistency and faster responsiveness
to customers’ changing needs. The Group collects
customers’ feedback relating to its products which is
used as an important reference in its constant efforts
to improve product quality and promote customer
satisfaction. The Group is always trying to improve
and handle the complaints or feedback quickly to
resolve any issues. A Customer Services Department
has been set up to maintain ongoing communication
with customers and ensure the Group can provide
excellent service. During the reporting period, 6
cases (2023: 11) of products-related complaints were
received by the Group.
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The Group responded to the cases immediately and
explained to the clients. The situation has improved
after the adjustment of the working schedule of
employees and the increase in consumer service
training.

B6.3 Intellectual Property

Our legal department is in charge of protecting our
intellectual property. In addition to highlighting
and protecting intellectual property and ensuring
we respect the intellectual property of others; we
protect the fair competition environment and comply
with industry standards and criteria. During the
reporting period, the Group had not experienced any
infringement of its intellectual property rights by third
parties. In addition, the Group was not involved in
any material violation, litigation or legal proceedings
for violation of intellectual property rights during the
reporting period.

B6.4 Quality Assurance

The Group’s production facilities have been
successfully transited to the new version of Quality
management systems ISO-9001:2015 and IATF-
16949:2016 certified for the manufacture of printed
circuit board assemblies since 2011. Moreover, the
updates of the two certificates have been obtained in
December 2023. In addition, the Guangzhou factory
was 1SO-13485:2016 certified for Medical Devices
certified 2013 and during the reporting period.

B6.3

B6.4
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The Guangzhou factory has a team that is responsible
for quality control and quality assurance. It also has
an independent quality assurance department that
reports directly to the top management on product
quality matters.

Quality assurance functions are performed
throughout the production processes from the raw
materials and components procurement stages
to product delivery stages, with an aim to ensure
that the products can meet the required national
standards and certain industry standards applicable
to such products. Industry standards for products
adopted by the factory mainly include:

(i) IPC-A-610F Acceptability of Electronics
Assemblies for PCBA workmanship
requirements;

(i) RoHS (Restriction of Hazardous Substances
Directives 2002/95/EC); and
(iii) REACH (Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation

and Restriction of Chemical Substances).

Our products are also in compliance with various
international safety standards including:

(i)  FCC standards — product standards which are
applicable to telephone and IT;

(i) UL standards — standards for product safety;

(iii)y  CSA standards — standards for product safety
and performance;

(iv) China Compulsory Certification — a mandatory
certification system concerning product safety

in China; and

(v) CE — European Union consumer safety, health
or environmental requirements.
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B7.

Most of our products and services that are provided
to our customers are mainly environmentally friendly
and lesser-impacts-to-climate. In addition, Green
Purchasing Policies adopted for the selection of
raw materials for our manufacturing which are
conforming to legislative requirements of RoHS and
REACH.

B6.5 Consumer Data Protection

The Group puts great emphasis on protecting
customer privacy and implements stringent internal
management for marketing activities to safeguard
customer information security. Only authorized staff
is allowed to handle the private consumer data,
and consent must be obtained from the Board to
provide the consumer data to the externals. If the
consumer data is leaked, the Group may pursue legal
responsibility for the relevant staff.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

As corruption is detrimental to fair competition and
corporate integrity, anti-corruption has become one of the
main corporate business ethics principles for many of the
world’s premier enterprises. We advocate honest operation
and fair competition. Besides, we require our staff to
comply with the national laws and regulations, as well
as the Group’s regulations in relation to anti-corruption
practices. To promote compliance in the workplace, we
also focus on anti-corruption and anti-bribery principles for
staff.
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B7.1

B7.2

Number of Concluded Legal Cases Regarding
Corrupt Practices

During the reporting period, the Group did not
receive any non-compliance (2023: nil) with relevant
laws and regulations related to anti-corruption.

Preventive Measures and Whistle-blowing
Procedures

As part of the Group’s efforts to make anti-corruption
an important corporate management culture, it
sets up whistle-blowing channels to help prevent
any misconduct, malpractice and irregularities. All
staff must comply with the Group’s business code
of conduct, which aims to prevent corruption from
a system perspective. The Group also continues
to improve its internal control and monitoring
system. If problems are identified, the Group will
take immediate corrective action and have a zero-
tolerance approach to corruption in order to prevent
irregularities.

B7.1

B7.2
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B7.3 Anti-corruption Training Provided to Directors and B7.3 BEEREIRMHNKRES

Staff

The Group provided training sessions on anti-
corruption to the directors and staff. At the end of the
reporting period, the number of employees received
anti-corruption training and the training hours by
employment category were as follows:

bl

AEEREERETRHA
REFEIRE - RI|E B
R BREBRERESHES
REGEINEEABES
RS EREL ST

2023
Anti-corruption training KRESIE| —EFE-=
Number of employees ZIEE A

received training

—  Board of directors - EFg -
—  Senior management - SREERE 12
—  Middle management - HREHEE 31
—  General staff - —kET 740
Total employees EEHAE 783
Number of training hours ZIRFE
—  Board of directors - EFg -
—  Senior management SRERE 19
—  Middle management - HREREE 61
—  General staff - —fREIT 1,475
Total training hours #4837 2| B B8 1,555

B8. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

B8.1 Focus Areas of Contribution

In terms of community involvement, the Group
continues to organize a corporate social responsibility
program in order to encourage employees to
participate in community services and contribute to
the care needs of the community. For the Shanghai
office, the company places social responsibility on the
importance of business development.

During the reporting period, the Group has applied
“The Caring Company Scheme 2023/24” which
is organised by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service (HKCSS). We look forward to having cross-
sectoral dialogue opportunities, enabling us to gain
a comprehensive understanding of the community’s
needs. By engaging in these dialogues, we can align
our corporate social responsibility (CSR) efforts with
the specific requirements of the community, thereby
maximizing our impact.
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B8.2 Resources Contributed BS.2 FTEI &R
As part of our efforts to promote education, the RIREHE - EMNIMRKZ
Guangzhou factory has established the “migrant [RIFRZ#BEmAETE L
workers’ child education subsidize program” to UWEZHTATFTZOHE - #
support the education of the worker’s children. The [RIFRHERHAUGE] X
table below shows the number of migrant workers mHRIAS KM BER
who benefited from the “migrant workers’ child S

education subsidize program” and the total amount
subsidized to them:

Community Investment Unit 2024 2023

HERE B —E-IEF —EZ=

Number of migrant workers benefited people 246 228

ZmRIAH A

Total amount of subsidy to the workers RMB 249,000 228,000

T AfBLB%E AR¥TT

The Group also supports community development by AEBNEBRSBERE

cash donations. The table below summarises the cash BrEER - TRBAEASE

donated by the Group to different charities during BRE—sREBRAMTRZE

the previous reporting period: SHIBIBEMNIRSE

Cash Donation Unit 2024 2023

ReRE B —E-IEF ZEZ=F

The Hong Kong Council of the Church of Christ HKD 250,000 250,000
— Partnership Fund for the Disadvantaged

EEBEHeEARE —BFHKHES BT

HONG KONG FAMILY — TOGETHER WE BUILD HKD -
RESILIENCE

BARE — £RAAREBRETHE BIT

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service — HKD -

Invitation to Donate in Support of the Caring
Company Scheme

BAMEMBHE - AR BRI BT

7 S B 15T
Total HKD 297,122 250,000
#et BT
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING IRiE - H @ KEARER
INDEX
Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TEHE - -EFEH —REERBERERES E=4:1] BH
A. Environmental
A. EE
Al: Emissions
Al = HERRYD
General Disclosure “Emissions” 64
— MR R [HER
KPI Al1.1 The types of emissions and respective “Emissions — Air Pollutant 66
emissions data Emissions”
BRETUBIZALL  HEUiELE KRR HE IR [HERY) — 2SR5 2
KPI'Al1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas 76
appropriate, intensity Emission”
FRETUEIZAL? RERBEHEMER(WER)EE [HER) — R = RmEBEERY ]
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where  “Emissions — Hazardous Wastes” 78
appropriate, intensity
BREVIEIRALS MELAEEEVRER(WER)TBE [HER) — BEREEY)]
KPI Al.4 Total non — hazardous waste produced and,  “Emissions — Non-hazardous 80
where appropriate, intensity Wastes”
BREVIERALLY MELAERZEEVEER(WER)TBE [HER) — IEREREY) ]
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions “Emissions — Air Pollutant 65, 75
and results achieved Emissions”
“Emissions — Greenhouse Gas
Emission”
FRERIEIRALS mAUREBERENREERAERR [HERY) — ZE 5 R BEmY ]
[HER) — R = REE Y
KPI' Al.6 Description of how hazardous and non — “Emissions — Hazardous and 77,79
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction Non-hazardous Wastes”
initiatives and results achieved
BRBENIERAL RMUAREAENEZEEVNTE REELE [BHY - BELEZEEY]

EMEERAAEKRR
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages

TEEE - -EEH - —REERBARERER E=1:1] Y

A2: Use of Resources

A2 - BIRFA

General Disclosure “Use of Resources” 81

— MR ER [&RA A

KPIA2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by “Use of Resources — Energy 83
type in total and intensity Consumption”

BRENIEZRA2]1  REASSNEERER SMEEREEERT [BRMA - EREE]
&

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity “Use of Resources — Water 84

Consumption”

BRETIEIRA22 BREKEREE [ERFA — KFEE ]

KPI' A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives “Use of Resources — Energy 82
and results achieved Consumption”

FRAERIEIRA23 lseRE ARG E RAERR [ERFMA — selRFEE]

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in “Use of Resources — Water 84
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water Consumption”
efficiency initiatives and results achieved

FRERIEIRA2.4 HEACSKEGER/OR EA B EAHRE - UREA [BERFAA —KkEE
FRK a5t &l R TSR R

KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished “Use of Resources — Packaging 85
products and, if applicable, with reference to  Material”
per unit produced

BREBUERA2S ERGAREMANBER (WER)FEE [BRMA — 28MK

BEE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TEHE  EE- - —REERBRENIERZ =41} B
A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

3 IRBERBARER
General Disclosure “The Environment and Natural 86

Resources”

—AR IR EE RRELBAER]
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of No significant impacts of 86

RASEAE IRIZ A1

A4: Climate Change
A4 RIREE
General Disclosure
—RRHEE

KPI A4.1

RASRAR IR 1R A4.L

activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them
HEBEHEHRERBRERNEATE
EERRERBEMTENTY

Description of the significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken
to manage them

BB RATREEHBEITAEEZENEAR
FEEEE  REFREEEBEEERTE

activities on the environment
and natural resources during the
reporting period

RGN - WEEBEBEIR
BEREREREFEMNERTE

“Climate Change” 87
[ mEE1E ]
“Climate Change” 91

[SRARE L]
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TEEE - -EEH - —REERBARERER E=1:1] Y
B. Social

B. #®&

Employment and Labour Practices

BREREIER

B1: Employment

Bl: [EfE

General Disclosure “Employment” 103
—ARHEE [MEf% ]

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, “Employment” 105

age group and geographical region

FRAERIEEBLL  RUR - EBEER  FREMNRESNE [ERE]
B1AE

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group “Employment” 106
and geographical region

BREDUEIREBL2 RS FRAFIRMESISMEERALE [ERE]

B2: Health and safety

B2 : REREZE

General Disclosure “Health and Safety” 107

— MR R [fEREZ 2 |

KPIB2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities No fatality case occurred in each N/A
that occurred in each of the past three years  of the past three years including
including the reporting year the reporting year

FARRAERIEEB2l BE=F(BEERFR)BFEITHNOAZ NBE=F(BRERFE) LB i
R bt & HIRA T i fEz

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury “Health and Safety” 108

FREBIEEB22 EIBEXAIEBH [fERREZ 2 |

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and “Health and Safety” 107

safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored

FRERIEIEB23 MMM EREET 2R - ARIEHE [REREZ S
MITRERTE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TEHE  EE- - —REERBRENIERZ =41} Y

B3: Development and Training
3 BRKEIET

General Disclosure “Development and Training” 109
— AR TR [E R RiEl ]
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by “Development and Training” 110

gender and employee category

BRENIEEB3L RUMKEERMNESHXIIEERSL [ K&

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per “Development and Training” 111
employee by gender and employee category

BRENIEIEB3.2 RUBIKEEEAES  BREETKXIE  [EREEEI]
PR E

B4: Labour Standards

B4 : TR

General Disclosure “Labour Standards” 111

—RRHEE [ 45 T8 |

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review “Labour Standards” 111
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour

BRENIEIRBAL fdURET MBEOIE AR E T RoRH S [T 4R
T

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such “Labour Standards” 111
practices when discovered

RASRAERIEIEB4.2 MR ERBARERB@IEAMRERS [T

Bz
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TEEE - -EEH - —REERBARERER E=1:1] Y
Operating Practices
EEEH
B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 : g E IR
General Disclosure “Supply Chain Management” 112
—RRHEE [ rEseE g |
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region  “Supply Chain Management” 112
RASRAERIEEBS.l BRI OHEREE [ e E IR |
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging  “Supply Chain Management” 113
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored
BB NIEIEB5.2 A AMERAEEENED - MERTERE [HERERE]
PIREERIEE - U RBERITRERTA
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify “Supply Chain Management” 112
environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored
BBENIEIEBS.3 A AMBNHEREARTNRERM SR [HERERE]
REVIER - LA RARBARIT MBS A
KPI B5.4 Descriptions of practices used to promote “Supply Chain Management” 113

environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored

I TE R E R R B (2 2 2 IR IR EE o LIRS
BB - ARAERIBIT REER A

FASAE KI5 1R B5.4

[ftrEst e |

126 China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited Bl e BRI E BB R A 7



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R g MERWE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TEHRE - -EEH —REERBARENESR E=4:1] Y
B6: Product Responsibility
B6: EmEIE
General Disclosure “Product Responsibility” 114
— MR R [EmEE]
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped  No product sold or shipped 114
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons was subject to recall for safety
and health reasons during the
reporting period
RSB RIEIEB6.1 E%&E‘itguu,ﬁfﬁwﬂ AL EEEERT RWERREEEENCERE
|G oNE ) A% 2 BRI A /B B UL
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related “Product Responsibility 114
complaints received and how they are dealt ~ — Customer Relationship
with Management”
FRENIEIEB6.2 EEENERRREOKRFHAAREE T E [EREE - SPAREE]
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing  “Product Responsibility — 115
and protecting intellectual property rights Intellectual Property”
BB NIEIRB6.3 Rt MR A ERE S e E D [EMET — &EERE]
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and  “Product Responsibility —Quality 115
recall procedures Assurance”
FASRAERIEEB64 B SRTEENEmOKIREF [EmEf - E28E]
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and  “Product Responsibility — 117

RG24 FEIZ B6.5

privacy policies, how they are implemented
and monitored

HaE B E A RHRE RALBECE - ARBER
TRERAE

Consumer Data Protection”
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TEHE  EBEE - —REERBRENIERZ =W B

B7: Anti-corruption

B7 : R&S

General Disclosure “Anti-corruption” 117

— IR [RES

KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding ~ “Anti-corruption” 118

corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the case
FREASUEIEB7.1 MRHREHRNHBETASAEESRETEESEN [RES]
BISIFARFNEE RFRER
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and “Anti-corruption” 118
whistle — blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored
RASRAERIEEB7.2 P EEmRBERRET MBI RE [RES]

BIE

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training “Anti-corruption” 119
provided to directors and staff

FRERIEIER7Z HmlmESZRE TIRENRESET [R&)5]

Community

#HE

B8: Community Investment
B8 : ftEIEE

General Disclosure “Community Investment” 119
—AR IR EE [HtEiE ]
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g., education,  “Community Investment” 119

environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport)

FRERIEIEBSl HIBEREE(HE  BESEE - SHIFRK [HEREKRE]
R - Xk - $858)

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g., money or time)  “Community Investment” 120
to the focus area
FRENIEEBS2 HHEIFHEMBALER(WEELRHE) [tEEE ]
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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The Board is pleased to present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

Details of (i) business review; (ii) principal risks and uncertainties;
(i) future development of the Group’s business; (iv) the Company’s
environmental policies and performance; and (v) the Company’s
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company, are set out respectively in the
“Business overview”, “Key risks and uncertainties”, “Prospects”,
“Environmental, social and corporate responsibility” and “Compliance
with laws and regulations” sections under “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of the annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Group’s Five-year Financial
Summary on pages 274 to 275 of this annual report.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
in relation to its business including health and safety, workplace
conditions, employment and the environment. Details of discussion of
the Group’s environmental policies and performance are set out in this
Environmental Social and Governance (ESG) Report.
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The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

During the year, as far as the Board is aware, there was no material
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on the Group’s business and operations.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2024 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the audited
consolidated financial statements on pages 151 to 154.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements is set out
on pages 274 to 275. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$0.3 million (2023: HK$250,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of the subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise share
premium and accumulated losses/retained profits. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the provisions of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the
Company’s share premium account may be applied by the Company
in paying distributions or dividend to shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the distribution
or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company shall be able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s distributable reserve was
approximately HK$127.2 million.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Related parties transactions of the Group during the Year are
disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report. None of such related party transactions constitutes
connected transaction which is subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement and/or shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, total sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 83.8% of the Group’s sales for the Year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to 53.8%.
Total purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 22.7% of the Group’s cost of sales.

None of Directors, their associates or any substantial shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
listed issuers share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices. The Company has also adopted a share option
scheme to provide additional incentive to its employees. For details,
please see the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman)

Ms. Lin Xiaoshan

Mr. Liu Zhiwei

Ms. Bian Sulan

Mr. Wang Qi (appointed on 24 September 2024)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Li Huiwu
Mr. Wu Chi King
Ms. Zhang Xiulin

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company and code provision A.4 of the Code under Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, Mr. Wang Qi, Mr. Liu Zhiwei, Mr. Lin Dailian and Ms.
Lin Xiaoshan will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received confirmations of independence from Mr. Li
Huiwu, Mr. Wu Chi King and Ms. Zhang Xiulin, and as at the date of this
annual report, the Company still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on pages
53 to 56 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year to which the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under Article 191 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the
directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of
them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attached to any of them. Such permitted indemnity
provision is currently in force and was in force throughout the financial
year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2024, no interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) were held by the Directors
and chief executives of the Company which are required (i) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); (i) pursuant to section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Company contained
in the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

As at 31 December 2024, neither the Directors nor the chief executive
of the Company which has an interest or a short position in the
shares of the Company (the “Shares”) or the underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Upon the completion of Right Issue on 23 November 2021 and the
share consolidation effective on 30 March 2023, the adjustment in
relation to the Right Issue and share consolidation, total 533,309
options are granted to one executive director of the Company and
adjusted exercise price of HK$3.46 per Shares with an exercise period
of 28 July 2021to 27 January 2026.

On 3 November 2023, total 3,450,582 options are granted to two
executive Directors of the Company to subscribe for Shares upon
exercise of such share options at an exercise price of HK$2.5 per
shares with an exercise period of 3 November 2024 to 2 November
2026.
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Percentage of
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pursuant to Share Long or short capital of
Name Capacity Options position the Company
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Lin Dailian Beneficial Owner 2,258,600  Long position 1.01%
MRACESE EmEBA S
Bian Sulan Beneficial Owner 1,725,291  Long position 0.77%
TERE EmEEA S

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, to the knowledge
of the Board, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be: (i) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which the Directors and chief executive were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii) recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or
(iii) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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INTEREST AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO shows the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests, being 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
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Number of Long or 31 December
Name Capacity shares held short position 2024
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CES Development Limited (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 51,760,000 Long position 23.08%
FREEERBRAA (M) ESBEEA e
Mr. Chen Dezhu Held by controlled 51,760,000 Long position 23.08%
BERLE corporation #E
AXEGZESE
China DIFI Holdings Limited (Note 2) Beneficial Owner 9,028,000 Long position 4.03%
FRETSBIERERAR (M2) ERBAA e
Mr. Wang Qi Held by controlled 9,028,000 Long position 4.0%%
THEEE corporation 58)
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Note: e -

1. CES Development Limited (formerly known as China New Retail Holding Group
Limited), which is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liabilities, is wholly

owned by Mr. Chen Dezhu.

2. China DIFI Holdings Limited (formerly known as China Southern International Holdings
Ltd.) which is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liabilities, which hold
by Mr. Wang Qi (being an executive Director), Mr. Zhang Zhikui and Ms. Sun Lingling of
holding approximately 33%, 34% and 33% respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, to the knowledge of
the Directors, no other person (other than a Director or chief executive
of the Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares which would fall to be

disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

1. THREERBERAR(AIETENEEERERERA
A B—RKNEEEMRINBRNERAF] - BEREE
FEZEHE -

2. PR g T S R E R A R 2 & ( AT 8 China Southern
International Holdings Ltd.) & — R & BT MK LN E
PRATE - BEHEEE(RITESE) » Zhang Zhikui 5t £ K
Sun Lingling Z 5 BB 4 33% ~ 34% K2 33% HE2s ©

BEXFAEEEN R _OF+ A
=t—B BEFEMA BEAL(ESHK
ARREBITHRABRIN R SHARRE D
PHEA SR AR RIEHARIERE S LS
EBIEXVERFE 2 MBI D EBARANR R HKEL
RIRE 5 K B E 1501 3 336 Re 8N AR BIR
FENETMANEAEEIORE

Annual Report 3 2024 137



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective associates, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year, none of the Directors or controlling shareholders of
the Company nor their respective associates is considered to have
interests in a business that competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group other than
those businesses where the Directors have been appointed or were
appointed as Directors to represent the interests of the Company.

THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 10 March 2020, the Company has passed the resolution in a
shareholders’” meeting for the termination of the share option scheme
adopted on 31 December 2010 (the “2010 Share Option Scheme”)
and the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2020 Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants (i.e. any director or employee (whether full
time or part time), executives or officers, any advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers, any of the subsidiaries and agents of the Group)
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The 2020
Share Option Scheme became effective on 10 March 2020 and will
remain valid until 10 March 2030. The participants of the 2020 Share
Option Scheme may include directors, employees, consultants,
professionals, customers, suppliers, agents, business or joint venture
partners, advisors and contractors of the Group or a company in
which the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company.
An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted within 21 days from
the date on which an option is offered to an eligible participant and
a non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 in favour of the Company as
consideration for the grant thereof. The subscription price for any
share under the 2020 Share Option Scheme will be a price determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion and notified to each grantee
and will be not less than the highest of (i) the closing price of a share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the relevant option; (ii) an amount equivalent to the average
closing price of the share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the relevant option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the date of the grant.
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
New Share Option Scheme and any other schemes involving the issue
or grant of options or similar rights over Shares or other securities by
the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares in issue
from time to time. Notwithstanding anything contrary to the terms of
the 2020 Share Option Scheme, no options may be granted under any
scheme of the Company if this will result in the said 30% limit being
exceeded.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options already granted or to be granted to each participant under
the 2020 Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including exercised and outstanding share options)
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
should not exceed 1% aggregate of the shares in issue as at the date
of such grant. Any grant of further options above this 1% limit shall be
subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company at general
meetings, with such participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the existing scheme
mandate limit of the 2020 Share Option Scheme which was refreshed
on 31 May 2021 is 51,353,857 Shares. Since the adoption of the 2020
Share Option Scheme and up to this report date, and taking into
account the Right Issues which completed on 23 November 2021 and
the share consolidation of the Company which took effect on 30 March
2023, the Company has granted options relating to 8,998,969 Shares
under the 2020 Share Option Scheme representing approximately
5.16% of the total issued Shares as at this report date, of which options
relating to 3,098,279 Shares are valid and outstanding, and options
relating to 5,332,800 Shares had been exercised, options relating
567,890 Shares had been lapsed. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one share of HK$0.2 each of the Company.
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Pursuant to the terms of the 2020 Share Option Scheme, the Board
may at any time terminate the operation of the 2020 Share Option
Scheme, and in such event, no further options will be offered but the
provisions of the 2020 Share Option Scheme shall remain in force in all
other respects to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of
the options granted prior to the termination.

As the Share Consolidation had taken effect on 30 March 2023,
adjustments were made to the exercise price and the number of shares
of the Company falling to be issued in respect of the outstanding
share options in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 2020
Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2024, there were Share Options for 2,621,296
shares (after Share Consolidation) valid and outstanding under the
2020 Share Option Scheme.

On 8 June 2023, the Company passed the resolution in a shareholders’
meeting for the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2023
Share Option Scheme”) and adoption of the 2023 share award plan
(the “2023 Share Award Plan”) for the purpose of providing the
Company with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to the
directors and employees of the Group and for such other purposes as
the Directors may approve from time to time. For detailed information,
please refer to the circular of the Company dated 11 May 2023 and the
announcement of the Company dated 8 June 2023.

The 2023 Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2023 Share Option Scheme is to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions that eligible participants (the “Eligible
Participants”) have made or may make to the Group, and to provide
the Eligible Participants with an opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company with the view to achieving the principal
objectives of (a) motivating the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (b)
attract and retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business relationship
with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are, will or expected
to be beneficial to the Group. A summary of the principal rules of
the 2023 Share Option Scheme is set out in Appendix Ill to the AGM
circular of the Company dated 11 May 2023 (the “AGM Circular”). The
Directors believe that the provisions as well as such other terms as
may be determined by the Board, will serve to protect the value of the
Company as well as to achieve the purpose of the 2023 Share Option
Scheme.
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None of the Directors is a trustee of the 2023 Share Option Scheme
or has a direct or indirect interest in the trustees of the 2023 Share
Option Scheme (if any). There is no trustee appointed for the purposes
of the 2023 Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2024, there were share Options for 15,695,082
shares (after Share Consolidation) valid and outstanding under 2023
Share Option Scheme.

The 2023 Share Award Plan

The purpose and objective of the 2023 Share Award Plan, which
involves the issue or repurchase of Shares, are: (i) to recognise and
reward the contribution of certain Eligible Participants to the growth
and development of the Group and to give incentives thereto in order
to retain them for continual operation and development of the Group;
and (ii) to attract suitable personnel for further development of the
Group. The reason for the Company to adopt the 2023 Share Award
Scheme is because it provides for the award of Awarded Shares to
Eligible Participants, who are not required to pay for those Shares
either on grant or on vesting of the award.

A summary of the principal rules of the 2023 Share Award Plan is set
out in Appendix IV to the AGM Circular. The Directors believe that the
provisions as well as such other terms as may be determined by the
Board, will serve to protect the value of the Company as well as to
achieve the purpose of the 2023 Share Award Plan.

None of the Directors is a trustee of the 2023 Share Award Plan or has
a direct or indirect interest in the trustees of the 2023 Share Award
Plan. Tricor Services Limited has been appointed as trustee for the
purposes of the 2023 Share Award Plan.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued in
respect of all share options and all share awards to be granted under
the 2023 Share Option Scheme and the 2023 Share Award Plan of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of adoption. Pursuant to Rule
17.07(3) of the Listing Rules, as at 31 December 2024 and the date of
this report, the total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued under the 2023 Share Option Scheme and the 2023 Share
Award Plan is 1,557,836 shares.
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The total number of Share that may be issued in respect of options
granted under all schemes of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2024 divided by the weighted average number of Shares in
issue for the year ended 31 December 2024 was approximately 8.8%.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for
issue under the share option scheme was 18,316,378, representing
approximately 8.2% of the issue shares of the Company as at such
date.

The number of share options available for grant under the 2023 Share
Option Scheme were 1,557,836 as at 1 January 2024 and 31 December
2024, respectively (taking into account the Share Consolidation).

With the effectiveness of the new Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
with effect from 1 January 2023, the Company shall comply with
the relevant rules of the new Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules under
the transitional arrangements before the Share Option Scheme is
amended to comply with the new Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in section
headed “Management Discussion And Analysis” of 2024 Annual
Report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Company has participated in an approved Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all its employees
in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Company in an independently-administered fund. The
Company’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme. The Company’s contributions
to the MPF Scheme are recognised as an expense in the statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, no forfeited contribution to the
retirement benefits scheme was credited to the statement of profit or
loss (2023: nil).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Since the Listing Date,
the Company has complied with the code provisions of the Code, save
for the exceptions explained in the Corporate Governance Report in
this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
annual report as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation to which the
Shareholders are entitled by reason of their holding of the Shares.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed above, there was no other material events after the
reporting period up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024 have been audited by McMillan Woods (Hong
Kong) CPA Limited who retires and, being eligible, offers themselves
for re- appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lin Dailian
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 April 2025

TEER

AR B R LR RIMT 8+ <7 AP & A0 <7
A - B LT EBAR - RAEE &Rl
ST RIS - EARFRACEE A RS A E
BRSO o

RARNZFRE

BARRAERZARERRESZHAE RN
AEFEH - I EMRAB08IKZ BN AR
AR BT R HD2%HRRA LA

% SR

AR AR BER A A D =4 (E[
HIEER

HERREM

B L EEE S
REHRRER -

HEARSESGELME

2B

AEBHE-Z-_MF+_A=+—HLFE
MZE M BERERCHRS (B8) SR EHAT
BERAAEZ RS (BB GAMEBMEAR
NARERME - A BRUEENAR A EERE
BEREG EERET-

RRESEE

MACHSE
FRE

a5
“E-RFMA=FH

Annual Report 3 2024 143



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B %A RS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA ENERGY STORAGE TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Energy Storage Technology Development Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 151 to 273, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“"HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

PR T F IR

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement, FARFHETEABERFINIELE - RAR
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial Y ABEZ GEMEBRERBHTHAEE
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the 7 EIE - HIEHFEA M RRBEETE
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a W ERERREREEZE  MIASHES
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a HEEXEBZER - R T2 @RS FE
separate opinion on this matter. The key audit matter we identified is % :

as follows:

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRMPETENROMEERRETSE

Impairment of loans to other parties and other
receivables

B H fth A 4 BB R H P W SRR R B

Refer to notes 6(b), 25 and 26 of the consolidated financial
statements.
SRR G M IEMmRMTE6(0), 25 % 26 °

Loans to other parties and other receivables represent a
significant portion of the Group’s assets. A loss allowance
for 12-month or lifetime expected credit loss (“ECL”) is
made on all loans to other parties and other receivables.

MEMATEHNERREMERZKIENE EXEEEENSE
Z55 o A MEMATIEHOER R EAMRKKIES B 5
RI2MEAREEREEEE(AREEEIE])rEEERE -

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has loans to
independent third parties and individual with outstanding
principal and accrued interest totaling of approximately
HK$1,163,000 (net of allowance of credit losses of
approximately HK$16,186,000). During the year, reversal
of allowance for ECL of approximately HK$22,579,000
was recognised in profit or loss due to the settlement of
approximately HK$28,635,000.
RZZBZMF+A=+—H ' BEERBLFE=7KE
AMEHBEREAREE RS M EFF B ARTEL /51,163,000
TC(HBR1E BB EE# 416,186,000 7T) - FR  ARER
#128,6350008 7T - RERCBREHEEEEREREL
#322,579,000 % 7T °

Obtaining an understanding of the

Group’s impairment policy and design and

implementation of key internal controls related

to impairment assessment.

T BERENREREREBRRERNGrRER
MBI S BV ERET B B e ©

Checking the supporting documents including
loan agreement, repayment agreement and
repayment record on sampling basis.
HMEREBEERH  EXHHERERCRE
B FE AR o

Evaluating management’s assessment of whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk or the credit risk of the financial asset has
increased to a point that it is considered credit-
impaired since initial recognition of material
loans.
AEEREHVSEAERERAREERRZ
BREEMNZCREENEERREIEINERSE
RIEERENREHNTE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

FAs =R (E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRMETENROMEERREETSE

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has other receivables
of approximately HK$33,918,000 (net of allowance of
credit losses of approximately HK$6,935,000). During the
year, reversal of ECL of approximately HK$7,924,000 was
recognised in profit or loss due to the settlement.

RZZE_NF+ZA=+—H EBEXEEMEKRBEOR
33,918,000/ 7T (1 15 B B 18 8 # £6,935,000/8 7T ) °
FR-AEMNEER RERCBRAEREESEBEROA
7,924,000 % 7T °

With the assistance of an independent external valuer
appointed by the Company, the management is required
to exercise significant judgement in determining whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk or the
credit risk of the financial asset has increased to a point
that it is considered credit-impaired since initial recognition,
and in estimating 12-month and lifetime ECL on the loans
to other parties and other receivables. Accordingly, this is
considered as a key audit matter.
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Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity.
SHEE N ERMERE - e REBE -

With the assistance of our valuation specialists,
assessing the appropriateness of the impairment
models used by management to estimate ECL;
comparing the inputs to the models to external
data; and assessing the appropriateness of any
forward looking adjustments in light of available
information about current and forecast future
economic conditions.
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Assessing the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure
of the allowance for impairment of loans to other
parties and other receivables and the related
credit risk.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liguidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors of the Company in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

+ HEEFEARASERRNBEERE
SRt MAAREREN S EIE -

- HEERABEKESHERNRKREMN
TR - WARBATERAFEARE
BEROFEESFHABREMNEX
THEN  tmAkEsY SKEN
FBKERNEEETARE - WHRMAR
REEEATEEN  ABABEERH
B & PR A I B M BHmER T A
ARBEEN HERKEER TR - A
ERHRMER - RAWERDEREE
ZEEN R E A B ARG EHRE o
Am - REFEIBERAIEEH EF

© FHERAMBHREROBEIERSN &
BRAR BREBEBEEN UREEH
BHREETETERREBXZMER

« RBEYBITREZES UREE B
WE’%&%/ EHBEUMBEMBRNTT
DR ENERE  ERERAMBHmE
BRBRANER - BHMARKES EE
REHRETREFRS MATOERTT

1F e RMERBRMNESERAEERME -

BMBEEZZEEART (HHhEk) tans
AHRERSEZY  EXENTRREZFER 8
PR BRE PR A BEENEAE
REREK -

BATREZZESRIENR  SARMERN
BAEBBEIENERERER  YRFEER
ARER MR ASEF ERIMBILIENFBR
BEREMER - ARAEREE MERBRNITE
EATER AR E e (WER) ©
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B %A RS

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine the matter that was of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and is
therefore the key audit matter. We describe the matter in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sham Tsz Leung Desmond

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P0O8234
24/F, Siu On Centre,

188 Lockhart Road,

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

31March 2025

HREZZESEBNERT - RAIEEHAN
RS EMBERENETRAEZNER -
B RRE FIH - JIIERBEN RS T
MZFER - BRIBERIERTAFAFRE
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HMERMRETEEXFHRERNEHRRE
BEELANDRNE - MRFARETEERS
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HHBEES
HEBEZRI - P08234
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

= =N,

AN
YA A = Eﬁﬁ_

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

Notes

et

Continuing operations HEREER
Revenue WA 8
Cost of sales SHEMA
Gross profit EF
Other income EH Uz A 9
Other gains and losses, net Hiblzs K Ei8 - HEE 10
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAS
Administrative expenses TEREHR
Reversal of impairment losses REMATEFTREEE
on loans to other parties, net B[O - HEE
Provision of impairment losses on trade JEUE 5 8E FORE BB B 18 -
receivables, net e
Reversal (provision) of impairment losses b & U 5K I8 Bl B &5 18 3 )
on other receivables, net (Bfl) - F88
Provision of impairment losses | E EREEBEE
on intangible assets
Research and development expenditure #7522 H
Profit from operations KRR
Finance costs B E R AR 11
Profit before tax BRI A5 F
Income tax expense Ff3fiAX 12
Profit for the year from continuing HEREEKNFERF
operations 13
Discontinued operation ERIEEEEK
(Loss) profit for the year from ERIFEEEBNTE
discontinued operation (E8B)=F 17
Profit for the year FE A
Attributable to: DTS EWN :
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZ PN
Non-controlling interests IEPE R =

2024
—EomE
HK$°000
TR

479,317

(355,716)

123,601

17,926
2,723
(38,406)
(99,076)
22,579
(2,080)
7,924

(7,172)
(12,835)

15,184

(4,829)
10,355

(3,898)

6,457

2023
—E-=4F
HK$ 000
FAT
(Restated)
(1&E7)

491,597

(359,842)

131,755

13,143

8,841
(36,459)
(85,599)

4,466
179
(9,153)

(2,620)
(13,092)

11,103

(3,065)
8,038

(3,157)

4,881

284
5,165
5,257

(92)

5,165
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
reBm AR E

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

2024 2023
—E-ME =%
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
et FHBxT FHETT
(Restated)
(#2&E7)
Earnings per share BRER 18
From continuing and discontinued KEFBELERERIE
operations KT
Basic (HK cents per share) EAR (FREAEL) 3.87 3.06
Diluted (HK cents per share) BE (BB N/A RiE B N/A N B
From continuing operations REFBECEER
Basic (HK cents per share) EAR(FRE) 2.89
Diluted (HK cents per share) g (ZRB ) N/A T F
Profit for the year FEBRN 5,165
Other comprehensive income (expense): HZ2mEUkE (Bx) :
Items that may be reclassified to AEF P EEEmmIER
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating MEBINETE 2 B R AR
foreign operations (6,991)
Reclassification of cumulative translation H & —EEt& A5 RHTE Q7
reserve upon disposal of an associate AR s — A B A A
and subsidiaries and deregistration BEHOBEIIELGE
of a subsidiary (1,159)
Other comprehensive expense FEHMEZERX - HBRBIE
for the year, net of tax (8,150)
Total comprehensive expense for FEXMBAXHAEE
the year (2,985)
Attributable to: UT & A -
Owners of the Company RARER A (2,893)
Non-controlling interests JEVERR = (92)
(2,985)

152 China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited Bl aE Rl 3R B R A 7



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Ra MR

As at 31 December 2024 R=ZT=-WF+=-fF=+—H

Notes
et

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BERZE 19
Right-of-use assets FRELE 20
Intangible assets B E 21
Rental deposits Heke 25
Total non-current assets FRBEEMRE
Current assets RBEE
Inventories VEXCY 23
Trade receivables FEWE Z BRI 24
Prepayments, deposits and I EIE - e R EME SIS

other receivables 25
Loans to other parties AEMATRENER 26
Amounts due from directors W E EFIA 43
Bank and cash balances R1T IR G 5 27
Total current assets REBEEHAE
TOTAL ASSETS EEH#E
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERXRERE
Equity =
Equity attributable to owners RAEHER AL

of the Company
Share capital R 35
Reserves 1S 37
Non-controlling interests JEFERS RS
Total equity AR

2024 2023
—E_MEF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
9,184 14,421
43,529 18,674
22,709 34,113
3,224 3,279
78,646 70,487
45,050 54,660
117,294 145,309
322,185 223,568
1,163 6,949
3,748 3,878
312,051 271,567
801,491 705,931
880,137 776,418
44,858 39,155
491,673 447,508
536,531 486,663
354 2,062
536,885 488,725
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

aRa MR

As at 31 December 2024 R=ZT=-W&+=-fF=+—H

2024 2023
—ECME —E-=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
it FHBxT FHETT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bonds payable FERHES 33 -
Lease liabilities HEaE 30 15,002
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEERE 15,002
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables BT E SRR 28 58,434 76,471
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A M E M IR 29 194,204 179,770
Lease liabilities HEaE 30 10,177 6,894
Borrowings ’g 31 14,300 4,849
Product warranty provisions EmRARE 32 - 696
Bonds payable ERHES 33 20,000 -
Current tax liabilities BNERFETE A fE 4,015 4,011
Total current liabilities REBAEASE 301,130 272,691
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREBEHRE 880,137 776,418

Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2025 and are signed
on its behalf by:

EEeN_T_RF-_A=t+—H#LEXHAT
IAETRBRE -

BIAN Su Lan
TEE

Lin Dailian
PRA B
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

[\\/ N

AREBBE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 H=—F

“HWEF—A=+—BHLEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LGN
Foreign
Share Share currency Non-
Share  premium option Merger  translation Contributed  Statutory Capital Capital - Accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve  contribution losses Total interests equity
BE  ROEEE BREHE  ABRE  EXRE  MAB®  REER  AAEE BAEE BiEE gt FERER  BReE
(note 37 (note37  (note37  (note 37 (o7 (note37  (note37  (note37
(note 35) b)) (b)) (b)) (b)) b)) (b)) Oy b))
Wy (WEy (WEy (WEy Ry BEy WEy (HEY
(Hi35) ) (i) (b)) (b)) X)) (OXw) o) o)
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FEL Tirn TER FEn Tir FER FEL FEL TEL T TEL Tirn FER
At 1 January 2023 RZF==%-8-A 24154 813,592 5577 s 14545 18,298 2502 4215 11280 (53753) 359862 2154 362,016
Total comprehensive expense for the year FERERTER - - (8,150) - - - - 5257 (2893) 9 (2,985)
Issuance of shares upon suoscription (nofe 35(@) NABBEARE (Hiz35) 10352 85,663 - - - - - - - - 9,015 - 9,015
Issuance of shares upon placing (nofe 35(c)  RECEBEFR (W2 330) 4609 26346 - - - - - - - 9% - 309%
Lapsed of share options BRIERH - - (75) - - - - - - 75 - - -
Recognition of equity-settled B REEEIRG
share-based payments BERZAR - - 2,684 - - - - - - - 2,684 - 2,684
Changes in equity for the year FEERED 15001 112,009 1909 - (8,150) - - - - 6032 126801 9) 126709
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 R-B-=£+-A=+-8k
“Z-mE-A-H 3915 925,601 7,486 3171 6,39 1829 2502 4275 11280 (5315000 486,663 2062 488725
Total comprefensive expense for the year FEAAREE (11,595) (3,559) (1,708)
Issuance of shares upon placing REEREARA
(notes 35() and (¢)) (W3ske) 814
Recognition of equity-settled share-based BRIBRESIRS
payments BRI 10,613 10,613
Changes in equity for the year FRERED 3 10,613 (11,595) 8,036 49,868 (1,708)
At 31 December 2024 mE+=A=+-A 962,712 18,09 3m (5,200) 18,298 4215 (523,464) 536,531 354
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
reallemER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

2024
—E-mEF
HK$°000
FHET

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHRERNE

ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R B4 A )
Continuing operations SEICEETS
Discontinued operation EARIEREET
Adjustments for: FE
Provision of impairment losses on B E 5RO EETE
trade receivables, net B FE
(Reversal) provision of impairment H b e X TB B E 18
losses on other receivables, net (B ) 7l - 578
Reversal of impairment mEMATERZ REREIE
losses on loans to other parties, net B[O - HEA
Provision of impairment losses EEEREBERE

on intangible assets

Reversal (provision) of allowance on  TF&ER RO (BE) - F%58
inventories, net

Amortisation of intangible assets A Y

Depreciation of property, Y - BB NRIEITE
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEHEEENE

Finance costs BbE R AN

Gain on disposal of an associate HE—MEE AR 2 WS

Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary — FE#S— I B A a2 k=

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HE—HEWBAR ZEE

(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEDE BENEKEZ
plant and equipment (Uhe) Et8

Interest income on loans to mEMATERZFEUWA
other parties

Bank interest income and bank SRITH B U K RTT I HA
fixed deposit interest income BERF BHA

Compensation from revision of REBETEEEEER
intangible asset term K58

Provision on product warranty, EmRAREE  kEE
net of reversal

Equity-settled share-based payments — DABR#E 45 & LA (5

BERE R

Realised fair value loss on the BAFERAEBR
investment at fair value through ([BAFEFAEBRD®
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) BEZEERAEEE
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2023

—E =
HK$ 000
FAT
(Restated)
(#eE5)

8,038
290

8,328

179
9,153
(4,466)
2,620

(10D
4,647

8,909
15,539
3,065

(6,582)
(120)

82
(3,801)

(8,878)

(51D

2,684



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
el mER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

Operating profit before working

capital changes

Decrease in inventories

Decrease (increase) in trade
receivables

Increase in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Increase in loans to other parties

(Decrease) increase in amounts
due from directors

Decrease in trade payables

Increase (decrease) in accruals
and other payables

FERD
R 5 BRFOR A (BB )

BRI - e REA R
FRIELZ N

MEAM A TEFIEM

FEUNE =28 R ) #8n

e B 2 /R BUR
IR E A M AL BN SRR
OB )

Cash used in operations KETARE
Income tax paid B HErEE
Finance costs paid B X AR E R A

Interest on lease liabilities

HEBERE

Net cash used in operating activities

REEHMAE SRR

2024 2023
—E_mE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(Restated)
(#eE5)

30,747
2,240

(30,291)

(140,623)
(239)

(4,027)
36,285

(18,427)

(124,335)

(1,894)
(953)
(2,112)

(129,294)
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
meEREmER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

2024
—E_ME
HK$°000
FExT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Disposal of an associate & — B & AR
Disposal of subsidiaries HENTE AR
Bank interest received EERTTHE
Repayment from loans to other parties Efh A +EFERK
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE  WENEE
equipment
Proceed on disposal of property, LEWE  BERSREZ
plant and equipment FriS 508
Received of compensation from REEFTEREERRAEE
revision of intangible asset term
Refund of consideration upon BIEEEEE2RERE
termination of intangible assets
Purchase of investment at FVTPL BERATEF ABRNKE
Proceeds from disposal of investment  HE&EIRAFE AN
at FVTPL B FTEFIA
Net cash from investing activities WEEBFSREFE
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2023
—E-=4F
HK$000
FET

6,117

8,878
9,589

(2,792)

69

48,861



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/\‘/ N Iﬁi;ﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

2024

—E_ME

Notes HK$°000
Hiat FHET

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of shares upon

BEEZHRTARE

RRBEBR BT PSR

subscription 35(@a)
Proceeds from issuance of shares upon R ERF R ITIRD T ERIB 35(c),(d)
placing and (e)
35(0).(d)
K(e)
Principal elements of lease payments  FAERN AL EH 39(e)
Borrowings raised E5ER
Repayment of borrowings EEEBR
Bonds payable raised E5RENES
Net cash from financing activities REEHSIRE F5E
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReR B EEYILINTFEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Effect of foreign exchange rate [E R B &
changes
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—HHWEER
AT 1 JANUARY HEEEY 271,567
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=B=+—HW
AT 31 DECEMBER BERESEEY 27 312,051

2023
—E-=4F
HK$000
FET

96,015

30,995
(16,466)

2,800
(11,500)

101,844

21,411

(2,053)

252,209

271,567
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ire B HRRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liability
on 18 May 2010. The address of its registered office is Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands and principal place of business is Flat 5, 19/F,
Tower 3, China Hong Kong City, 33 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to the

consolidated financial statements.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRS Accounting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA”). HKFRS Accounting Standards
comprise HKFRS Accounting Standards; Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“"HKAS”); and Interpretations. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). Material accounting policies adopted by the Group are

disclosed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRS
Accounting Standards that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group.
Note 3 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these consolidated

financial statements.

—IRER

ARARZE-—ZFHA+TNBRE
RAZEREHSTMKLRER R
BRAA] o E & M i 3 B2 #th 3k 7 Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands © &= &
EEMBRIREBNERPHEERBE3S
SR BMEZRI9ESE - ARAIRG
EEEMERSMBRAR (TBRA])
ERLET o

ARABRARRAT - EHBRT
EEEHHRB AT HWRN 2 -

MRBEA

HZEFAMBRRDBEEEGTA
e((BREFMAE]) BHZMAE
REEV S REEN ST ERRER - &
APBHRE LG EABEREMH
WEER G ER  BAGIENE
BEER]DLRE - ZERAMBR
RITTEBRAES MR LT
R B E BB G RBBARERD(FH
bRE)NEEMRTE - AREHERMAZEAN
SETBORNMIFE 4 R -

BERMASTRME T LEE
RIEEV B HmEEN  RFEANAE
EASETHEERERKAHERK
e tRAKEEHBENEXER
S HHR] RARIEET 2 2RI AT S| BUE AT I
BESFHEZETHRNTMERE
EREEFEVBERRARR - BEE
FLERFIRAPRES ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%= A H

sre MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

(@) Application of amendments to HKFRS Accounting

Standards

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2024 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKFRS 16
Hong Kong Interpretation 5

("HK Int 5")(Revised)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

The application of the amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards in the current year had no material impact on
the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

Supplier Finance Arrangements

RN B BT B REEA T

Al BAERT AR

@) EAEEHBREEGEL
(fERTA)

AEBECEERERATHEESS
AEEMNEEMBHRELENS
FPERUEETA - ZFERTARARER
REMBHRRMERN T _HF—
A— Bz &FA /S E HRE R 5
R

BEGHENEIN BEBEIEARDY

S-HES) BESiE)
BEG RSN WERENERDY
(FTA) A

BAABKHRERL  EREERZTH
F165E(BFTA)  HEARE
BREREFEST HHREMZ -

(I&B2E ERAHE AR
F5%))(KE7])  BRERERN
EHEZN IR
BRG RS TR HEBRELH
BEMBREER
FT3 (BFTK)

AERRATEMBRELEN S
RIS AH AR B AF R KB
EEENFBRARRR R, %
ERAMBHRERMBRELEER

Sz 48
=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 3. R BB B HE LR e E

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continued) Al R HAERT AR (48)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards in (o) EBMERRER D BTG
issue but not yet effective WERR T ER R EERTA
The Group has not applied any new standard, amendments AEE W ERBEMAE EME R K
to standards that have been issued but are not yet effective RZZE-MF— A —HRBHEEK
for the financial year beginning 1 January 2024. The new FEERRFELD - EBNEFT o KA
standard, amendments to standards include the following TR - XERERT ] pEER AN EEF
which may be relevant to the Group: B -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

AT BHR 2 %%
WETHBAEX
Amendments to HKAS 21 and HKFRS 1 — Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
BERAGHENF 2R RBATBREENE 15 (BFTA) — SRZ Al LR —E-HF—HA—H
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 — Contract Referencing Nature — 1 January 2026
dependent Electricity
BERVEMEERNF IR LBBUBRELERE 7R (BFTAR) — S RUEKRE —ERF—A—H
BANENED
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 — Classification and Measurement of 1 January 2026
Financial Instruments
BEEVBREERE IR REBMBERELENE 75 (EFTAR) — 2t TAE/ A e =
SR E
Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards — Volume 11 1 January 2026
BEENBREERSHENNFESE - F 111 —ERF—A—H
HKFRS 18 — Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 1 January 2027
BEBPBRMELENE 18 — MBEBRERNERLIFEE R e =
Amendments to HK Int 5 — Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by 1 January 2027
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
BERAREZESHRUEEIR) —MBRENER - BERAHBEUERERER ZEZ+F—H—H
BHRHTEPERN D
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets between To be determined
an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture by the HKICPA
BRI EERNF 10 R BB G ERE 285 (IBF]A) — REEZHHE FEALETE
RESEGECE L BNEEHESHE NEHETE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IRAa

% N

Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ%EWME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continued)

()

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So
far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements except for the new HKFRS Accounting
Standard mentioned below:

HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements”

HKFRS 18 will replace HKAS 1 “Presentation of financial
statements”, introducing new requirements that will help
to achieve comparability of the financial performance of
similar entities and provide more relevant information
and transparency to users. Even though HKFRS 18 will not
impact the recognition or measurement of items in the
consolidated financial statements, HKFRS 18 introduces
significant changes to the presentation of financial
statements, with a focus on information about financial
performance present in the statement of profit or loss,
which will affect how the Group present and disclose
financial performance in the financial statements. The key
changes introduced in HKFRS 18 relate to (i) the structure
of the statement of profit or loss, (ii) required disclosures
for management-defined performance measures (which
are referred to alternative or non-GAAP performance
measures), and (iii) enhanced requirements for aggregation
and disaggregation of information.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the
impact of applying HKFRS 18 on the presentation and the
disclosures of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise

in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed

in note 5.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of

these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s

returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the

holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

4.

EXGHHERER
I F 4R A WIS RER TH AR B S2 A A

e ETXNEAHRRSBHAER
AR o

RATABEMBHRELNGHER 2
MBmRFEMETEEGER - T
FREEEERNEAARESHIBR 2B
TR E L HIET - P MBS B IR A ke
MBI PG EMBRRBEAX
Z R R AR 2 EE - MR SRR o

MAEZEHEEMBERREMEAZIEXN
SETBOREURAT -

o)

(@ #E

&
AN BHRRBEARA REKE
AEEET -A=1T—H1L 8%
HE - MBRRDASEYHES
il
-
& -

r—b
T
N

EHECER EAKERBESNR
ERXEMEAXERZTR LY
Bl - WHRENBBHEERZEN
M EZFO®RE - DHZERA
BEGE - EXREEHEESHEA
RESDEIEARRE AR B (A1 B R O 3
ERERTEZES) 2R BER

5o REBANHEREGED -

Eu%ﬂ R REEgEREH

BEREEANRBEMZAFEZ
/EETXK@ ERHEABERE
NITEBEREER T SERBZSE
TR -

164 China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited A B e BRI BB R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
NN

%R R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(@)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHHBERER(E)
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and
any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs
are incurred and the services are received. ldentifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum of the
consideration transferred is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is
attributed to the Group.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)
(b) Business combination and goodwill (Continued) (b) EBEHREEE)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value
is added to the sum of the consideration transferred in a
business combination to calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill
impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
a potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU
containing the goodwill is compared to its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed.
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IRA

% N

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

©

Foreign currency translation

®

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of
each reporting period. Gains and losses resulting
from this translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(©)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates
on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHHBERER(E)
(Continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment ) YE BERSRE

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Over the lease term
or 20%-25%

Leasehold improvements

Plant, machinery, moulds and tools 10%-50%
Furniture and equipment 10%-20%
Motor vehicles 18%-33/:%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(e

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHHBERER(E)
(Continued)
(e) Leases (Continued) (e) ME(HE)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Group, which does not have recent third-party
financing; and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term,
country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to
the individual lessee (through recent financing or market
data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease,
then the group entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, and
any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost
of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
except for the right-of-use assets that meet the definition
of investment property are carried at fair value.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)
(e) Leases (Continued) (e) ME(HE)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-
of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate
lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on
the revised lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating
lease.

REEEREBA (K)

ENWARERS RS HREES
BSRELAEORAR LTS
BAFEIE - DS WAATFELD
BRI AEIMEEHA - WA
EREEENRAR -

EARREEFREREEE L R
fEmEBEANE - AAKERBREE
BERTEFERMNDSBGTREE
1t AEEHFEAREREHAE
BHEEITEEE  ERIRIERE
BMELES  MeEHIERE
BE - BHEREN T A EHET
B HEAREENREEFELN
FERE R EERBREEENRE
BEELRET - AlIi AR °

EHERRERLZ2(CHIHAERNR
A BBRENHERBHLERZ(
(HEBR)) - BEREREENE
EANRE - AINEEFEHER
B EZBERAT HEABERERL
EFTNHEEMREEERR - £5
RIERTMR R R EM A HE
¥t E o

KAEEERSHBEA

HAKRERHEA - ERHEENS
fEERET - HEEAREHENL
BHE - HHEBBHEBEENFT
BREMSHBA DA ERLE
o AZEERSBAREME -

Annual Report 3 2024 173
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(f) Intangible assets acquired separately

®

(i)

Intangible assets with defined useful lives —
customer relationship

Customer relationship are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

&%

(i)

SETRRER (F)

KRBT B B

RERAUEAFHNERE
E-EFHE

B P BRI Rt
EEEERIIT - #BiHRE
AR E B A EAF RN
SEMT

Customer relationship 3-6 years REBIE 3-64F
Computer software 3 years EEE LS 34
Intangible assets with defined useful lives — (i) EERACEHAFEFHNERE

exclusive agency rights for real estate projects

The exclusive agency rights represent exclusive right
to sell certain properties in Thailand within agreed
agency periods:

Exclusive agency rights
BRAEE

Agency Period
RIEEH

E-RFHERENBRAE
-
BROEEREHENRE
HANEREHEETYEN
BISAER -

Number of units
BNHE

Level Condominium
(“EAR-1")

from 1 January 2020 to 17 March 2021,
and further extended from 17 March

228 apartments
(both furnished and

(IBxAEE])

LA VIE ("EAR-2")

LAVIE([BxRAERE-2])

The exclusive agency rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

The initial cost includes payments made to project
owner or property developer for the acquisition of

exclusive agency rights.

2021 to 30 November 2025
AN—E-EF-A—BE_E-—F=H
++8 RE—FPH-T-_—F=H+t
RERE-_F-_AF+—H="H

from 18 August 2020 to 24 November 2021
and further extended from 24 November
2021 to 24 May 2023, terminated on
5 September 2024

RZZEZZEFNA+TNREZZ=_—F
+—AZ+WHBE  RE—HPH_T_—F
+—A-F+HNAERE-_E-_=FF1A
“tHE - RZE-EFAARBAKLE

IR B R ER
BN THREMEENL

without decoration)
228ENE
BREETEEE)

77 villas planned to be
constructed

RBERN 77T RANE

BRI IR AR R AT
HMRERBERYIEK

BHRAR

WX EEHFIR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. BEREFTHEEH(E)
(Continued)
(f) Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued) H [ERENEREE (B)
(i) Intangible assets with defined useful lives — (i EFRAUEAFHNERE

exclusive agency rights for real estate projects
(Continued)

The amortisation of exclusive agency rights is
calculated by the number of units sold during the
period over the total number of units granted, after
taking into consideration of any residual value.
The residual value of exclusive agency right is the
estimated amount that the Group would currently
obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting the
estimated costs of disposal, if the assets were already
of the age and in the condition expected at the end
of its useful life.

At each financial reporting period end, the
management will review the forecast of units sold
over the remaining agency period and the estimation
of residual value, and consider whether it is necessary
to adjust the amortised cost shared by each unit.

Intangible assets with defined useful lives —
agency right for testing and measuring equipments
products (“EAR-3")

The agency rights represented (i) exclusive agency
right to distribute a list of testing and measuring
equipments products (the “Products™) and the right
for after-sale service in Hong Kong and in Macau;
and (i) non-exclusive agency right to distribute the
Products and the right for after-sale service in the
regions of Asia outside the mainland China, except
Hong Kong and Macau, within agreed agency periods
from the date of acquisition to 6 December 2031.

The exclusive agency rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

The initial cost includes payments made to an
assignor for the acquisition of the agency right.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHHBERER(E)
(Continued)

(9) Research and development expenditure (90 MWEERAZEZD

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. An internally
generated intangible asset arising from the Group’s
product development activity is recognised only if all of the
following conditions are met:

—  The technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

— Management intends to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

—  There s ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— It can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

— Adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and

—  The expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. Where no internally generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

W

®

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out basis. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead expenditure, and
where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
“FVTPL”) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. BREFBEREE(E)
(Continued)
(i)  Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments () MERARKIEReMIAEE)
(Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

@

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one
of the following measurement categories:

amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI”) — recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of ECL, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the investment
is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss.

FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in
profit or loss.

4.
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4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHHBERER(E)
(Continued)
()  Financial assets (Continued) G EBMEEE)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings.
It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit
or loss as other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECL.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(m) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(n)

(0)

(®)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under HKFRS Accounting
Standards. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings and bonds payable

Borrowings and bonds payable are recognised initially
at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings and bonds payable are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(a) Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Revenue from the sale of electronic products,
medical equipment products and energy storage
products are recognised when control of the goods
has transferred, being when the goods have been
shipped to the customer’s specific location (delivery).
Following delivery, the customer has full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the goods, has the
primary responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to
the goods. A receivable is recognised by the Group
when the goods are delivered to the customer as
this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.

(i) The real estate supply chain services operation
provides two type of services, the real estate
advisory service and real estate purchase service. The
real estate advisory service provides the customer
with real estate investment advice and help them
to source investment opportunities in South East
Asia and Pan Asia markets. Real estate purchase
service provides services for obtaining the legal title
of real estate investment on behalf of customer. The
customer will negotiate the price of the two services
together, and the customer usually pay a lump sum
fee that represents the sum of the consideration of
the two services.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)
(@) Revenue and other income (Continued) (@ WAREMUIA(E)
(i) (Continued) iy (%)

Real estate advisory service and real estate purchase
service are two distinct performance obligations. The
transaction price is allocated to each performance
obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price basis
estimated using the expected cost plus a margin
approach.

The Group recognises revenue from real estate
advisory service and real estate purchase service at a
point in time upon completion of each service.

According to the related terms of real estate purchase
services, the Group has contracted to arrange
delivery and transfer of legal title to the customers
within a period specified in the service agreement.
If the Group fails to fulfil the obligation on time,
the customer has the unilateral right to cancel the
contract, and recover all the payments made to the
Group, together with the interest determined based
on the formula specified in the service agreement.

The Group recognises revenue from real estate
advisory service only to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative
amount of revenue recognised to date will not occur
should the legal title to the subject real estate not
be transferred to the customer within the timeframe
specified in the service agreement.

Management fee, consultancy fee and commission
are recognised when the services are rendered.
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4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. BEBRGFHEEHR(E)
(Continued)
(@) Revenue and other income (Continued) (@ WAREMUA(E)
(iv) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using (iv) FIBIMARELERFIZRERF

the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset.

(v) Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ )
rights to receive payment are established.

(vi) Rental income receivable under operating leases is (vi)
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset.
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() Employee benefits n EEEH

() Employee leave entitlements (i)

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations (ii)

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)
() Employee benefits (Continued) n EEEHE)

(i) Pension obligations (Continued)

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the
employer MPF contributions expected to be offsetted
as a deemed employee contribution towards the LSP
obligation in term of HKAS 19 paragraph 93(a) and
it is measured on a net basis. The estimated amount
of future benefit is determined after deducting
the negative service cost arising from the accrued
benefits derived from the Group’s MPF contributions
that have been vested with employees, which are
deemed to be contributions from the relevant
employees.

(ili) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors and employees.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-
market based vesting conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

®

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at
the time of transaction does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

®

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset
related to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised and a
deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHHBERER(E)
(Continued)
(W) Impairment of non-financial assets W emBEERE

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
If this is the case, recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed
using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU whose
impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the
goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other
assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are credited to
profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the impairment
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)
(v) Impairment of financial assets V) SREERE

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
investments in debt instruments that are measured
at amortised cost, trade receivables, deposits, other
receivables and loans to other parties, as well as on
financial guarantee contracts. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective financial
instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors
operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

—  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)
(v)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued) v) EBMEEREE)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

— an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i)  the financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood
definition or if an external rating is not available, the asset
has an internal rating of “performing”. Performing means
that the counterparty has a strong financial position and
there is no past due amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHHBERER(E)
(Continued)
(v)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued) v) &BMEEREE)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial instrument for
impairment. In assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition
of a financial guarantee contract, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that receivables that
meet either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)
(v)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued) v) EBMEEREE)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

—  the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHHBERER(E)
(Continued)
(v)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued) v) &BMEEREE)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date;
for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes
the amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together
with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down
in the future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-
looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed, the expected loss allowance is the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive
from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets for which simplified approach was
used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4, ERSHBRER(E)
(Continued)

(w) Provisions and contingent liabilities (w) BHERSAREE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability
is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the
higher of:

—  the amount determined in accordance with the ECL
model under HKFRS 9; and

— the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash flows
between the contractual payments required under the
debt instrument and the payments that would be required
without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would
be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ire B HRRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 4, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements (other than those involving estimations) that have
a significant impact on the amounts recognised and to make
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

(i)  Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements (apart from those

involving estimates, which are dealt with below).

(a) Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(v), ECL are measured as an
allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does
not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an
asset has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and

supportable forward looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= A

sre MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(i)  Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

(Continued)

(b) Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options
exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive for the Group
to exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s
operation.

Generally, periods covered by an extension option in
other properties leases have not been included in the
lease liability because the Group could replace the
assets without significant cost or business disruption.
Further information is set out in note 20.

The lease term is reassessed when there is a
significant event or significant change in circumstance
that is within the Group’s control. During the current
financial year, no lease term has been reassessed.

5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ire B HRRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. BARAETREZEME(B)

(Continued)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (i HEF TR ZEZFZERR
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other P ERARE R ETEMRELE
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the A ET T RRBAE &= 2 £ Z R (¥
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing T—UBFEZEERBENET
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets BiEKBERARzERAR)ET
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed N ETER ©
below.
(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and Q) V¥ BMERZBUREH

right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset
is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and
make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred or any indicators that may
affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, in the case of value in use, the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash
flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use
assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the assets
belong. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31
December 2024 was approximately HK$9,184,000
(2023: HK$14,421,000) and HK$43,529,000 (2023:
HK$18,674,000) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= A

sre MR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b) Impairment of agency rights EAR-3

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of the EAR-3 may not be recoverable, the assets
may be considered “impaired”, and an impairment
loss may be recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets. Under HKAS 36, these
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount
is reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and the value in use. In determining the value
in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgements and estimates relating to
future revenue and profit margin. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount. However, actual revenue, profit
margin and pre-tax discount rate may be different
from assumptions which may require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets

affected.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of
EAR-3 was approximately HK$22,009,000 (2023:
HK$31,779,000) and impairment loss on EAR-
3 of approximately HK$6,172,000 (2023: Nil) was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. BERHEREZMEF(E)
(Continued)
(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (i) HETTRABAEZRZ FZHRR (&)
(¢) Impairment of trade receivables, other receivables, (c) FEWESERR - HttEWRE

and loans to other parties

The management of the Group estimates the amount
of impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables, other
receivables and loans to other parties based on their
credit risk. The amount of the impairment loss based
on ECL model is measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected, or being revised downward due to changes
in facts and circumstances, further impairment loss
could be necessary.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of trade
receivables was approximately HK$117,294,000 (net
of allowance for trade receivables of approximately
HK$3,085,000) (2023: HK$145,309,000 (net of
allowance for trade receivables of approximately
HK$1,005,000).

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of other
receivables was approximately HK$33,918,000 (net
of allowance for other receivables of approximately
HK$6,935,000) (2023: HK$11,883,000 (net of
allowance for other receivables of approximately
HK$14,859,000).

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount
of loans to other parties was approximately
HK$1,163,000 (net of allowance for loans to other
parties of approximately HK$16,186,000) (2023:
HK$6,949,000 (net of allowance for loans to other
parties of approximately HK$38,765,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. BERHEREZMEF(E)
(Continued)
(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (i) HEFTEHBAEZEZ EERE(E)
(d) Allowance for slow-moving inventories d) HEEERE

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made
based on the ageing and estimated net realisable
value of inventories. The assessment of the allowance
amount involves judgement and estimates. Where
the actual outcome in future is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and allowance charge/
write-back in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of
inventories was approximated HK$45,050,000 (2023:
HK$54,660,000) net of the accumulated allowance
for slow-moving inventories of approximately
HK$14,842,000 (2023: HK$16,843,000) which was
included in cost of sales.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted is estimated
by independent professional valuer based on the
various assumptions on volatility, life of options,
dividend paid out rate and annual risk-free interest
rate, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions, which generally represent the best
estimate of the fair value of the share options at the
date of grant.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, approximately
HK$10,613,000 (2023: HK$2,684,000) recognised
in profit or loss and correspondingly to share option
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ire B HRRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currencies of the
Group entities. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s profit for the year and equity that would have
been arisen if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of reporting period had changed
at that day, assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

B 75 R e 32

REBXRBEHAXEET KRR : 5
KRR EERR - RBESERNHN
Kk - AEENEERARERERE R
ERE BT S H R TR BB R
UAKEMBERIROBETNZE

(@) SMNERR

AEEFAZETINERR - RE
RABDEBR S BERAEE
BUAREEERZGEERIIE-
7R 5 18 3R B I 4 ) 5E B R L A S
BR5  BEMBENINEE IR
R AEBEEYEREINERR -
FERGEELHIEANINER

B e

PR A A LR B T
A BRI R TR EARR
PR %A MBS - AEEE
¥ 5 U 8 T P A A0 R 0 B
L AT RHR -

Foreign Increase/
currency (decrease) in
strengthened/  consolidated
(weakened) by profit after tax
INEFE BRBIEERERT
(@) M )

HK$000
FET
Year ended 31 December 2024 BE=-ZE-_NWE+=-HA=+—H
IEFEE
Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARB(TARY]) 5%/(5%)  2,684/(2,684)
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_2-_=F+=-A=+—H
H&FE
RMB AR 5%/(5%)  2,547/(2,547)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HEEREE(E)
(b) Credit risk (b) EERR

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (including trade
and other receivables, loans to other parties and amounts
due from directors) and from its financing activities,
including deposits with banks and financial institutions,
foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents is limited because the counterparties
are banks and financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies, for which
the Group considers to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30-
120 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances
that are more than 3 months past due are requested to
settle all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HFEREE(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) ) ERRE)

Trade receivables (Continued) EWE SRR (&)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables AEBZBESENE2HEHEERE
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is calculated SR ERKE Z RN EER
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit B EHEBEHEESBESEERR
loss experience does not indicate significantly different HBEBE - ARASBERBTE
loss patterns for different customer segments, the EEBLRWEBERTRERRE D
loss allowance based on past due status is not further MEBEEXNTFEERER A%
distinguished between the Group’s different customer B fEE—TSEOETREF AR
bases. 2 MR a HAik R T R A 1R -
The following table provides information about the Group’s TR EEREBR T _UF
exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade receivables as at T+ A=T—HEAENEERR KL
31 December 2024: EWESERBHEERENE

B

2024

—B-ME

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEE=R IREAE BEREE
% HK$°000 HK$’000
% FHET TET

Current (not past due) BIHA (R E) 105,895 2,534
1-90 days past due #HEPIE 90 H 13,998 381
91-180 days past due BHINE180 H 315 37
More than 180 days past due #HEFI80 HIA 171 133

120,379 3,085
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HEEREE(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)y EERRE)
Trade receivables (Continued) EWE SRR (&)
2023
—E-=fF
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

EHEE R FREAE R
% HK$'000 HK$000
% THET TET

Current (not past due) BIHA (R HA) 0.10 110,579 106
1-90 days past due #E1Z90H 2.40 34,199 821
91-180 days past due #HEI1E180 H 4.64 1,013 47
More than 180 days past due #HA180 HIA + 5.93 523 31
146,314 1,005
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience EHEERENBE=FNERE
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect BREBE - ZEH KRB BEH
differences between economic conditions during the E U SR B M AEAROR © B RITRCR
period over which the historic data has been collected, MAREBR A EWFIATERFHN
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic LB Z T R MR = BT
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables. K o
The Group has certain concentration of credit risk, as the AEFBASHETEEESRRE
Group’s largest three debtors account for 69.6% (2023: REEEAEBR=XKEBKEAMEZ
84.1%) of trade receivables as at 31 December 2024. E-_MEFE+_A=1t—HHEW
BHERE696%( T - =F:
84.1%) °

Annual Report 3 2024 205



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
AN

%R AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

®)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

6.

R EIE (E)
=ERR (&)
FE W 5 R (4])

R BREKE SRR ER
ZEEBMT

()

At 1 January ®n—A—A

Impairment losses recognised FRERREREIE
for the year

Reversal of allowance P[]

At 31 December R+-—A=+—H

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

All financial assets measured at amortised cost other
than loans to certain other parties and certain other
receivables are considered to have low credit risk, and
the loss allowance recognised during the period was
therefore limited to 12-month expected losses. For loan to
certain other parties and certain other receivables, lifetime
expected losses were recognised if credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition or if they are credit-
impaired.

2024 2023
“ENEFE —E=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
1,005 826
2,080 186

= @)

1,005

BRENASTENERMEE

AEBILEB K AT ENABE LR
BE(AFEEMALTEREET
H ity e YR IR R SN ) 348 B = B R
BRI - Eitt - BIAE R ERR
IR BI A+ @A EHIEE - 3L[A
FEEMALTEREE THEME
WM = - WEERR B 76 E
RUARKEE M MEHRER
BE - AEES AT HENE

1B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HBRRERE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) b) =ERR(E)
Financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued) REBERFTENESREE (F)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment AEEzNEBEERR TGRS
comprises the following categories: FELAT SRR
Other financial assets/
Internal credit rating  Description Trade receivables other items
A E IR Bt BRE SR tieBEE HER
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does  Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
iYEN A RHSEFENRRE - TEEMBHTE 2HESBEEEE -BEF T-HEARSGEESR
ERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
usually settle in full not credit-impaired
BREE ERABEREBRBTEE UYAF—NBER 2HBEHEESE-8F T-EAEHEEFE
BRE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk  Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
since initial recognition through information not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources
Bl BRANBELZEMIINRERGH  FERRAY 2HBHEERE-&8F 2HBHEERE - &
AR AR AR LS In ERE ERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
FB BAEBRETZAECHREERNE FHRHEEFE -8 2UBRHBEEFE - EE
A AE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery
g BREREBAGRENRAS  AEEWEKE BT AME IR T AR

RELZBERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL

assessment:
Internal 12mor
creditrating  lifetime ECL
Note
NE +-fERg2H
REIR  BEREER
Mz
Financial assets at RBSEHAGE
amortised cost HemEE
Other deposits Hhlizs 25 note (i) 12m
Bz iy +=fA
Other receivables Hffelzoa 25 note (i) 12m
B3 i) +=fEA
Stage 2 lifetime ECL
F_RBR2HNES
51!
Credit-impaired
EERME
Loansto other parties  mHEMALER 26 note (i) Stage 2 lifetime ECL
iR i) F-RB2HES
EEBE
Credit-impaired
EERME
Amount due fromnon-  FEMFERRIRIE 25 note (ii) 12m
controlling interest wE
iR1() +=fEA
Amount due fromakey — ER—%ZIE 25 note (ii) 12m
management personnel B A BB
B (i) +-fEA
Amounts due from el EZE 43 note (ii) 12m
directors
() +=fEA
Bank balances BiichEt o 27 note () 12m
MEEG) +=fEA
Notes:
) Bank balances are deposited with financial institutions with high

credit rating and are considered low credit risk financial assets. The
management considers these assets are short-term in nature and the
probability of default is negligible as they are banks with high-credit
ratings. Therefore, no impairment allowance is made on theses balances

6. HERERER

(%)

by FEERRGE)
BRBHRATENERMEE (F)

TREAMYIL TR E#ITEEEE
EEFENAEECRHEENEER
e
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
Gross carrying Loss Gross carrying Loss
amount allowance amount allowance
—E-ME —EC=F
+=B=1+-H +ZA=+-H
EEAE BERE RmiEE BERA
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR Thr TiEx
6,085 -
4,487 -
7,010 (2,115)
(6,445) 15,245 (12,744)
2479 (748)
(16,186) 43,235 (38,017)
5577 -
1,536 -
3,748 3878 -
311,894 270,713 -

i -

0]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(i)

For deposits, amounts due from directors, amount due from a key
management personnel and amount due from non-controlling interest,
the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL. The Group
applies internal credit risk management to assess whether credit risks
has increased significantly since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The credit risk on deposits, amounts
due from directors, amount due from a key management personnel and
amount due from non-controlling interest are limited having considered
the credit quality of the counterparties and the probability of default
is negligible. Therefore, no impairment allowance is made on these
balances.

The Group applies internal credit risk management to assess whether
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, in which
case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. Except for other receivables of
HK$nil (2023: HK$7,010,000) and for loans to other parties of HK$nil
(2023: HK$2,479,000) which are under stage 2 lifetime ECL, other
receivables of HK$6,800,000 (2023: HK$15,245,000) and loans to other
parties of HK$17,349,000 (2023: HK$43,235,000) which are credit-
impaired and ECL has been provided amounting to HK$6,445,000 (2023:
HK$12,744,000) and HK$16,186,000 (2023: HK$38,017,000), respectively,
the credit risk on remaining other receivables of HK$34,053,000 (2023:
HK$4,487,000) with loss allowance of HK$490,000 (2023: HK$nil)
under 12m ECL are limited because the counterparties have no historical
default record and the ECL on these items are considered insignificant.

6.

R EIE (&)
EERR (&)
BRBHRATENERMEE (F)

()

et

@D

iii)

(%)
MRS EKREEHR BB

HEEABRFURR W IFER R K
BME  AREREERT_EAR
HERBRZSEMEBERRE - K&
SERAABEERRER AR
BYFERAREERREEEEE
e ERERT  AEEREREHE
HERER ZRIXSGHF2EE
BERENOMEA] DG - 2E -
REWERFR BR—BEIBEEA
BHAN UGB ERFIRZER
REBRAER o Bt - W EmphZE AR
RRERME -

AEBEANBEERREE - B
TEAVMIERUREERRES
EERM EHBERT  ANEBRE
REHEHEEEBE - BREZMH
B2HBEHEEBENEhERK
BEBT(ZZEZ=4 :7010,000/%
L) RAEMALTERSEEL(ZZ
Z = 12479000 L) S H At
JE U R 18 6,800,000 T(—ZE ==
F 11524500078 7T ) KM E fh A I
B 17,349,000 (=T = = F :
43235000 ) N ERELE D
Bl ET 12 78 HA {5 B /&5 18 5 5 6,445,000
Bt = T = = F 112,744,000/
JC) }16,186,0008 (=T = =4 :
38,017,000 ) AR S H F I
BEOFELLEFBEREENTED
FEEBEBRATK Bt B5tiR
ToEAEHEESEZEREESD
490,000 L (=T ==4F : T/& L)
B8R T A FE U 513 34,053,000 7 7T
— T~ =4 : 4,487,000 L) KI{E
BEEBAR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

®)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance for financial assets
measured at amortised cost during the year is as follows:

R EIE (8)

()

EERR (&)
BRBHRATENERMEE (F)
FR - REHEKAGHENEREE
EIERBRE T

Other receivables Loans to other parties
AW A HEMALTER
Not credit Credit Not credit Credit
Not credit impaired impaired  Not credit impaired impaired
impaired (Lifetime (Lifetime impaired (Lifetime (Lifetime
(12m) ECL) ECL) (12m) ECL) ECL)
BREERE BERE BEEHE BERE
BEERE (2ERE (2HEH EGEAE  (2ERE  (2ERS
(t=fBR) REFR) FEER) (t=ER) FEER) GEER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL THL T T
At 1 January 2023 WZZ-=F-HA-H 215 3991 1,765 53 - 43,178
Transfer a - (3,991) 3,991 (53) 53 -
Amount written off e - - (265) - - -
Impairment losses recognised ~ FREAHERE
for the year - 2,115 7,253 - 695 -
Reversal of allowance BERD (215) - - - - (5,161)
At 31 December 2023 and RZZE-=F+-A
1 January 2024 “+-AR-E-mF
—A-H - 2,115 12,744 - 748 38,017
Impairment losses recognised  £REZREFE
for the year 490 - - - - -
Reversal of allowance ! - (2,115) (6,299) - (748) (21,831)
At 31 December 2024 i S
+ZRA=1+—-8 490 - 6,445 - - 16,186
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

©

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted

cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows:

Weighted
average
interest

rate

MEFIRIE
%
)

At 31 December 2024 R=2=m%F
+=A=t+-8
Trade payables ERESER
Other payables EftERTRIE
Lease liabilities HERE
Borrowings =i
Bonds payable EfES
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=%
TZA=t-8
Trade payables ENEHER -
Other payables B ERFR -
Lease liabilities HEARE 5.95
Borrowings fEE 106

Less than
1year

and on
demand
10T R
REHERE
HK$'000
TER

76,471
9,965
8,204
5365

Between
land

2 years

NM1Z28
HK$°000
TEx

5329

M ERERE (&)
© RBDESER

AEBENBRRBTEH

BEBR

om 77N

B & 18

HORBDESFRE - UEERAEE
MR RPN HEBUARMNERER

AEESRABNAHIEMARS
MEFHBESFTAT -

Between
2and

5 years

Over

5 years

N¥225%
HK$'000
T

BRSF
HK$’000
TiEgn

10,576 1523

Total

undiscounted

cash flows
FHE
RERBAE
HK$'000
TER

76,471
9,965
25,632
5365

Carry

amount

kEE
HK$’000
TER

76,471
9,965
21,89
4,849
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ire B HRRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HFEREE(E)
(d) Interest rate risk (d)  FI=RR R

The Group’s loans to other parties, bonds payable and
borrowings bear interests at fixed interest rates and
therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its
bank deposits. These deposits bear interests at variable
rates varied with the then prevailing market condition.
At 31 December 2024 and 2023, the management of the
Group considers that the exposure to the Group arising
from interest rate risk is limited and no sensitivity analysis
is therefore prepared.

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December (e)

Financial assets: ETRMEE -
Financial assets measured REEK AT ENEREE
at amortised cost

Financial liabilities: SEAaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  IREE K AT|EH S FAE

(f)  Fair values ®

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their respective
fair values.

AEEREMALTER  EBNES
RZEEMERFENEE - Bitm
B A FEMXER -

AEBEFAZEBIIEROFER
B o REFRIREZBF KGR - F
KRERMAME - RZZTZWF
KNZB-_=F+-A=+—HB XK
EEEEERAAEEFEBNF)
ERBEBRE - B EEITE
RREDHT °

Rt-A=t—BNEBITEER

2024 2023
—ZE-NE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FH&T

477,447 451,293

159,893 113,181

AFE

AEBERGE MR RAH DR
BERGRAEENERERESS
B R FHERS °

212 China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited F B f# e R 2R BR A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has four operating segments as follows:

EMS Electronic manufacturing services

Securities and Other
Assets Investment
and Others

Equity investment, property agency
service and other operations

Real Estate Supply
Chain Services and
Energy Storage
Products

Real estate advisory service and
real estate purchase service and
energy storage products

Money Lending — Provision of loan services by

licensed corporation

One operation (Marketing and distribution of communications
products) was discontinued in the current year. The segment
information reported does not include any amounts for the
discontinued operation, which is described in more detail in note
17.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include interest
expense, depreciation, equity-settled share-based payments
and unallocated expenses. Segment assets do not include
unallocated bank and cash balances, unallocated property, plant
and equipment, unallocated right-of-use assets and unallocated
prepayments, deposits and other receivables. Segment
liabilities do not include unallocated lease liabilities, unallocated
borrowings, bonds payable and unallocated accruals and other
payables.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if
the sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market
prices.

7 BRE
AEENEZESEBMOT

H

BFRERE — BEFRERS

ErlkEM - RERE X
BENER IR AR TS Ko B A
Hit ey

FHEHREE — FHELKARER

AR5 K R e PSR B IR 15
7 i K fEREE
BB — AEFFAARREM
SR

—HEB(BEFEREHEESH) ERAK
FERNKRILEE - FTIEWm o HERL
EORERIECEEB 2 AMEE &
R BT o

REBNRESTABRETRAER R
REAIREEEBEN - FHHBILE
B RARSEKTEZTRMOEMRE
THER M -

KREDHMEFBREREVBRE
MizZ4FritEARE - D BRI TR
ﬂﬁﬁi e URELEEURD A
WONRERDEFAZ - DHEET
T’E%ﬂ% SERIRTT RIS &8 - RO/
%%»m%&a%\x SEERAEEE
RADEEMNKIE -« 2 R H M EUGR
EOA%E%IT@%% TEREES
B ROEEE  BHEHFRADETE
REBA KA ER I o

nﬂ* H\’ U>

AEBIZE R ™ ELD AHEHEE M EE
AR - BINEE =T E R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER(E)
(a) Information about operating segment profit or loss, assets @) FMRKREBELEER2EEDI

HAHER BERABNER

and liabilities from continuing operations:

Year ended 31 December 2024

Continuing operations

Revenue from external customers

Segment profit/(loss)

Interest income

Interest expense

Depreciation

Amortisation

Other material non-cash items:

Reversal of impairment losses
for loans to other parties, net

(Provision) reversal of impairment
losses for trade receivables, net

Reversal of impairment losses for
other receivables, net

Provision of impairment losses
for intangible assets

Additions to segment non-current
assets

As at 31 December 2024

Segment assets

Segment liabilities

BE-Z-mE+-A=t-H
LEE

BELEER
LEEVEISION

AR/ (EE)

EMEAFREER

RAEMALERNREEER
{EIRE

WE B AERR
(Bfe) D - 38

UG ERRED
F8

EVEAERESRER

NEFRBEERAR

%7
ERE
HK$°000

TR

455,081
36,027
10,376

(2,977
(14,396)

2,473

522,894
248,844

Securities
and other
assets
investment
and others
#ER
HitgE
RERHfl
HK$°000
THET

12,200
(14,227)
18

(34)
(2,313)
(3,598)

21,831

(2,405)

1,924

(6,172)

44,609
29,080

Real estate
supply
chain
services and
energy
HOIER
products
EihE
R
RERER
HK$°000
TEL

(1,000

312,782

26,600
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Money
lending

f&& fact
HK$000 HK$'000
TR TRR

479,317
25,849
10,395
(3,078)

(17,607)
(4,232)
22,579
(2,080)

7,924
(7,172)

2,473

880,296
304,552




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEPER (&)
(a) Information about operating segment profit or loss, assets @) FRKREBELEER2EEDI
and liabilities from continuing operations: (Continued) mASEE BERBENER
€=
Real estate
supply
Securities chain

and other services and

assets energy
investment storage Money
EMS and others products lending Total
(Restated)
(#%5)

ERREM FHE

S BERE  QUEERE
RERS ki REEER fEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TEL TEL TEL

B

Year ended 31 December 2023 BHE-E-=%1+-h=1-H

LFE

Continuing operations HEMEEE
Revenue from external customers — RESNREFMA 444,171 21,333 19,846 247 491,597
Segment profit/(0ss) PEEN/ (BB 30,964 1,529 (11,330) (1,148) 19,815
Interest income MEKRA 8,852 3819 7 - 12678
Interest expense FIERY (1,725) (110) (60) - (1,895)
Depreciation & (15,006) (3,786) (7197) - (19,589)
Amortisation g3 - (4,014 - (633) (4,647)
Other material non-cash items: ApERFREESR
Reversal (provision) of impairment ~ AE A+ EFMBIEEE

losses for loans to other parties, net & (B[E) - $%8 - 5,161 - (695) 4,466
(Provision) reversal of impairment  EUE 5 R FRERFE

losses for trade receivables, net (BB &R - 58 7 (85) - (101) 179
Provision of impairment losses for ~ E UGB RERBAME -

other receivables, net ek - (9.153) - - (9.153)
Provision of impairment losses for ~ EF BEREFHBEE

intangible assets - - (2,620) - (2,620)
Additions to segment non-current D EIERBBELT

assets 2,773 - 19 - 2,792
As at 31 December 2023 R=B-=%+-A=t1-H
Segment assets PHEE 484,320 52,375 252,055 2,430 791,180
Segment liabilities NHEE 20329 45,797 12,149 3 281,73
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER(E)
(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or loss from (b) REFELEER 2 HBRA KR
continuing operations: M BEREER
2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE&T FAET
(Restated)
(F&&E5))
Revenue WA
Total revenue of reportable segments  #4E9 SFUL A 4258 479,317 491,597
Profit or loss A AR
Total profit of reportable segments HEDERFERE 19,815
Unallocated amounts: ROBLERE
Interest expense FEMAZ 1,170)
Depreciation e (4,859)
Equity-settled share-based VARR 45 B LARR 1D B BT A 3R
payments (2,684)
Other unallocated head office Hih RO RBMERERAFHAZ
and corporate expenses (3,064)
Consolidated profit before tax from REFHEKEER ZBRAIGE
continuing operations gl 8,038
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE T —[OF+—

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities: ©

B=+—H1tFE

7. DEERGE)

DEEERBENEE

2024 2023
—E_—E —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$000
FERT FAT
(Restated)
(FE%))

Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments & D EFEELAE 880,296 791,180
Assets relating to discontinued BHERRIEREEB EE

operation 1,047
Elimination of intersegment assets 7> SR8 B EE K 8H (22,982)
Unallocated amounts: ROBLERE -

Bank and cash balances RITRIBESER 6

Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEE 4,567

Right-of-use assets FRREE 1,353

Prepayments, deposits and other  JEfTFIE - 124 KR Hth el F0E

receivables 1,247
Consolidated total assets EEERE 880,137 776,418
2024 2023
—E-EF —E-=
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FABT
(Restated)
(&&E5))

Liabilities afs
Total liabilities of reportable segments R4 5 P& (E4E58 304,552 281,273
Liabilities relating to discontinued BHEBRIIEEEB AR

operation - 22,940
Elimination of intersegment liabilities 43 ZRf8 & &K 8 (3,837) (22,982)
Unallocated amounts: ROBLERE

Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R H A FE TR 2,831 568

Borrowings BE 14,300 4,300

Bonds payable FERHES 25,041 -

Lease liabilities HEAE k{1 1,594
Consolidated total liabilities LEBEBE 343,252 287,693
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ire B HRRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(d) Geographical information:

7.

The Group’s revenue from external customers by location
of operations and information about its non-current assets

by location are detailed below:

D EPER ()

C))

(Continuing operations)
Revenue
The People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) (including Hong Kong)
United States of America (“U.S.A.”)

(BREEXEK)

L'ON

hEARAME (THE])
(BRELE)

EMEERE (%)

Switzerland st
France VR
Belgium [Eallis;
Thailand =H
Malaysia BRI
Brazil [ayi]
Others Efb
Consolidated total R HBEE
Non-current assets FREBEE
The PRC (including Hong Kong) R (BIEEE)
Consolidated total REHEEE

SR AR -
AEEREIKEPREB
815 AL R PR 5 2 3
RBEERR AR

2024 2023
—E-mEF —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH&TT
(Restated)

(F&&E7)

56,729 84,928
99,263 112,459
62,894 55,882
92,748 72,272
33,232 46,462
27,103 13,034
9,816 22,167
16,812 7,742
80,720 76,651
479,317 491,597
2024 2023
—E-MEF =5
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
70,487

70,487
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. HHERE)
(e) Revenue from major customers: () KREFEERFHRA :
An analysis of revenue from major customers which RAEBRAINSHALLHEER
account for 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue is as FRASTHOT
follows:
2024 2023
—EF_pmF = =
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
EMS segment BETRERED
Customer A ZEA 230,641 235,380
Customer B ZFEB 76,718 68,880
8. REVENUE 8. A
Disaggregation of revenue W A7 Hr
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by REEBERSLERPREERASWK
major products or service lines for the year from continuing ANERTEERIRBIEE DFWOT -

operations is as follows:

2024 2023
—EWNE —EB=F
HK$°000 HK$000
FERT FAT
(Restated)
(f &%)
Revenue from contracts with customers B& B FREXERE155%
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HEEANESSHWRA
Disaggregated by major products BEBERIRBIEE DK
or service lines
— Sales of goods —HESMm 475,206 483,200
— Provision of real estate supply — IR E i E R R
chain service 3,955 8,150
479,161 491,350
Revenue from other sources B HAFRA A
Rental income WA = 8
Loan interest income BRA B WA 156 239
479,317 491,597
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

8.  REVENUE (Continued) 8.
Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and
services and at a point in time in the following major product
lines and geographical regions:

WA (&)
WAR T (&)

ZNER BHE T 51 E B EE an AR M b B [ I 9R
A-KRMEREMEREELRA

Real estate supply

Electronic Securities and other chain services and energy storage
manufacturing services assets investment and others products Money lending Total
REREAMEERE FEHEHERRS
BPEERE Rt REHER 8 a3t

2024 2023 2024 2003 2024
TECME Pl IO WLl CI-ME
HK$:000 TGO HK$000 OO0 HK$'000
T T F#n TEn TERL

Primary geographical markets ~ TEHEWIE

~The PRC il 32,493 37502 12,200 ‘ 11,880
-USA -%8 99,263 112459 -

— Switzerland -t 62,804 55,68
~ France — 48 92,748 1.1
—Belgium - Wl B3 4,462
~ Thailand -5 21,103 13,034

— Malaysia - ERAS 9,816 2167

— Brazil -Bf 16,812 7,742

~ Others -t 80,720 76,651 - - -
Segment revenue LN 455,081 wan 12,200 27333

Revenue from external customers — RESNERERA

Timing of revenue recognition AR ZEE

455,081 4417 12,200 21,333
Products and services transferred - E%EH

atapointintime EmREHK 455,081 41 12,200 27333 11,880

Services transferred over time REBEBNRE
Total ot 455,081 44417 12,200 21,333

The transfer goods and services are for periods of one year or
less. The Group elected to apply the practical expedient. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

11,880 19,846
11,880 19,846

11,880 19,846

2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
ey CIoMF EaEnd CS-/E R

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Thr T T TEn Th
(Restated)
(& &50)

56,729 84,928
99,263 112,459
62,804 55,882
92,748 12272
33,23 46462
21,103 13,034
9,816 22167
16,812 1742
80,720 76,651

479317 491,597

479317 491,597

- N oo RS
156 0 156 u

19,846

479,317 491,597

BREEmARGHARS—FHAT -
AEEEERABERRENE - BBE
B EERESRAAFT - PEETZ
FRBITENNR ZERLARTE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. EmUA
2024 2023
—E_MF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$000
TExT FET
(Restated)
(#e&E7)
Continuing operations BEREER
Interest income on: AT BEEFAEHFBUA :
Bank deposits IRITIFR 1,702
Bank fixed deposits IRITEEFH 7,175
Loan to Individual D mEADER 1,545
Loan to Independent Third Party C MBYE=7TCER 2,256
Total interest income MBI A LBE 12,678
Government subsidy (Note) BIF&B) (B at) 139
Sale of scrap materials & RERL 89
Compensation from revision of intangible & B {& 5] 82 & B (&R
asset term BEfE -
Other HAth 237
13,143
Note: The amount mainly represents service trade subsidy and employment stability Kiat - ZE2BTERREPRBTNREE S H
from the PRC government. During the year ended 31 December 2024, an amount BB ERME c REE T _NF+=A
of approximately HK$115,000(2023: 80,000) was recognised as other income. =t+—HBLFE  ELHN5000FT(=ZF

Z =1 :80,00087) R BEMUA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 10. HEmlzmKEE - 55
2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THxT FHT
Continuing operations FEREEK
Gain on disposal of an associate ekl i) kN ey 6,582
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 39(a)) HE&E—RWEBRA Rz
(Ft7F39¢a)) -
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary — M B A R RUEE T 2 W 120
Realised fair value loss on the BAFEFABEHREZ
investment at FVTPL BN AT EEE -
Net foreign exchange gains P& W s F R 2,221
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, HEWE  BELEREZ
plant and equipment e (E18) (82)
8,841
1. FINANCE COSTS N BERKK
2024 2023
—E-mE T =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHT
Continuing operations HFEREEK
Interest expenses on lease liabilities MEaEzAERX 2,112
Interest on borrowings BEZFE 953
Interest on bonds payable B EHZF B -
3,065
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12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax relating to continuing operations has been
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

12.

PSS

FRREREXBHNMEHE N RS
R

2024
—EomE
HK$’000
FERT

2023
—E-=F
HK$000
T
(Restated)
(F&&E5))

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax

Provision for the year FEBE
Over-provision in prior years BEFEHBERE

BIETHIR — BAFIEH

3,410
(288)

3,122

Current tax — Overseas BNEA®IIE — 8 5h

Provision for the year FEBE
Over-provision in prior years BEFEHEREG

35

35

3,157

Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, profits tax rate for
the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of qualifying
corporations established in Hong Kong will be lowered to
8.25% (2023: 8.25%), and profits above that amount will be
subject to the tax rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%). For the other
Hong Kong established subsidiaries, Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretation and
practices in respect thereof.

BEMBHFIERGIE - REBKL L
BB ERE 2,000,000 7T fEZFE
FWFESREZAEREZL2% (2=
F :825%)  MIBBZ L BH =M AFIE
16.5% (—Z = =4F : 16.5%) EOF REF »
REMBEBEXNINWNBRARIME @ &8
FIE BRI ETERBA N H165% (= F
T 1 16.5%) 5HIREME o

Hipith 75 EERDUSE MO IHIBE A AR

SEEEMEBRRENHE  REEH
BRITED] - 2R REHEE -
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12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12. BERAS (&)
The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the P45 554 57 2 BB 5 A g ) SR BA BB R 15
product of profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits BB M E L SENEEERAT -
Tax rate is as follows:
2024 2023
—E_E —Eo=F
HK$°000 HK$000
FExT FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit before tax REFELEEBH

(from continuing operations) R B Ao ) 8,038
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of  $2E MG 2 16.5%

16.5% (2023: 16.5%) TET=F 1 165%) T E 2 FRIE 1,326
Tax effect of income that is not taxable — H/ERTUW AT B2 (4,125)
Tax effect of expenses that are TRIHIR B BB G &

not deductible 5,803
Tax effect of temporary differences REREREZENUBTE

not recognised (48)
Tax effect of tax concession BEMENHRETE (1,099)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEHREERE (288)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses ERBE R ERTIEEEN

not previously recognised M (1,948)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIBEEOBBTE 3,518
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries MiB AT Rz= M T E 18
Income tax expense St 3,157
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13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING 13.

OPERATIONS

The Group’s profit for the year from continuing operations is
stated after charging (crediting) the followings:

2024
—ECmE
HK$’000
FHERT

Auditor’s remuneration
— audit services
— other services

Cost of sales (note (1))
Cost of inventories sold
Allowance on inventories (note (ii))
Reversal of allowance on inventories
(note (1))

Amortisation on EAR-3
Amortisation on computer software
Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Research and development expenditure
(note (iii))
Reversal of impairment losses
on loans to other parties, net
Provision of impairment losses on
trade receivables, net
(Reversal) provision of impairment
losses on other receivables, net
Provision of impairment losses
on intangible assets
Expense relating to short-term lease
Equity-settled share-based payments
(Gain) loss on disposal and written off
of property, plant and equipment

ZEED BN &
— BZRE
— HA AR

2,137
HERA (M D)
BEEFERAN
TFEBHE (A3 (i)
TFEREED (K2 D)

354,558
8,694

(10,695)

352,557
BRI —3 2 A

3,598
BRI 5N 634
W - BB MRIBITE

7,190
EREEENE 12,117
Bt 9% e B B S (A i)
12,835
mEMALTEFREBERD -
FEE (22,579)
e E B BRFORE BB
B RE 2,080
H b MR IR R (B &5 18
(BE) Bt - ¥R (7,924)
B AEREBBRRE
7,172
REHHE MR 2,399

VAR #E # BE DA RS A A B R B 1< 350
(Yzm) B518 (7))

10,613

KEFERERG 2 FEmH

AEEREFELEXB 2 FRENE
B GEA) AT B HEHINWT

2023
—Eo=F
HK$ 000
FAT
(Restated)
(i &E5)

2,327
44

2,371

352,155
12,203

(12,304)

352,054
4,014
633

8,909
15,539

13,092
(4,466)
179
9,153
2,620
1,795

2,684

82
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

13.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING 3. RERFELEEB2FE RN (E)

OPERATIONS (Continued)

Notes: HiaF -

0) During the year ended 31 December 2024, cost of sales includes approximately 0} BE-_ZT-_ME+-_A=+—HIFE ' HEK
HK$72,072,000 (2023: HK$71,083,000) relating to employee benefits expense, $@T§ﬁﬁ§1§;?w7rlﬁ§i%’] 72,072,000 T (=
amounts of which are also included in the respective total amounts disclosed T =4 :71083000/&7T) * ZZ M A
separately above and note 14 to the consolidated financial statements for each X REAVBREMF4ENEESERS
of these types of expenses. HI4RREH o

(D) The Group makes allowance on inventories under respective aged criteria in (i) AEBEHERSEBENORRENNTFEED
different segments. The reversal of such allowance represents the amount of BE - BERIEEEAREEREENTFRES
inventories subsequently used in production or sold. 5o

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2024, research and development iii) HE-Z-NWF+-A=1+—HIFE ' Hix
expenditure includes approximately HK$12,835,000 (2023: HK$13,092,000) MBI HBEEHESRT Ffﬁi%’ﬂZ,SSS,OOO
relating to employee benefits expense, amounts of which are set out in note 14 BIL(ZZ =4 :13,092,00087L) * %5& 5
to the consolidated financial statements. R E B MKRIFE4 o

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14, EERMNAX

2024 2023
—E_MF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FHIT
Employee benefits expense BERIAX (BEEEME) -
(including directors’ emoluments):

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e~ TEAL MORBh 147,220 140,628

Equity-settled share-based payments DA # 45 & LARS 1D
BEREMR 10,613 2,684
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R KEFEF 214K 11,367 11,793
169,200 155,105
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14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued)
Five highest paid individuals:

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included none (2023: none) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented in note 15(a). The emoluments
of the remaining five (2023: five) individuals are set out below:

14.

EEBHA= (&)
nEZEHFAL

$¢F’ CAEERLEREHFALTHE

TEC=FE)EFR HMERWE
15() 25D THRER - S TAK(ZF
Z=F AR ATHMEFINWT

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e~ JEAL MIEBL
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R (K1 Fzt 2L 5%

2024 2023
—E-[mE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

k¥ X:17) 28,989
287 288
33,239 29,277

The emoluments fell within the following band:

BN oIS E

Number of individuals

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000
HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000

2,500,001 7L Z 3,000,000 77T
3,000,001/ 7T % 3,500,00078 7T
5,000,001 7L & 5,500,000 77T
5,500,001/ 7L E 6,000,000 % 7T
6,000,0018 7L £ 6,500,000 /& 7T
6,500,001 70 & 7,000,000 77T
7,000,001% L2 7,500,000 7 7T
7,500,0017% 7T % 8,000,000 7T
8,500,001/ 7L & 9,000,000 7T

Y

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

BHE-Z-_NFR-ZFE-=F+=A
:+*E¢$r’$ﬁl$ﬁﬁfﬁiﬁﬂfiﬂﬂ

Ba A TZREB - ERMAKR
%.ﬁﬂﬂ)\$%@f§ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂﬁf’ﬁ%%ﬂ%
ffE o
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15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director is set out below:

5. EFRRMNMER
(@) EBEHW
SEEHMETIMT -

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s
services as a director, whether of the Company or
its subsidiary undertaking
PMEAEE (BRRAARRENE A 7R 1
{BA RSB (e o

Employer’s
contribution Equity-
toa settled
retirement share-
benefit based
scheme  payments
EE URELE
BHER UREG A
SRR ERNAR
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T

Salaries

ER e
HK$°000
TER

HK$°000
THARL

Name of directors BEfE

Executive directors HITEE

Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) WREELE (£)

Ms. Lin Xiaoshan ML

Mr. Liu Zhiwei ek it

Mr. Li Yinxiang RRELE (i)
Ms. Bian Sulan TEHBLT (i)
Mr, Wang Qi THEE (viir)
Independlent non-executive directors B FHTEE

Mr. Li Huiwu RERLE

Mr. Wu Chi King WL ()
Ms. Zhang Xiu Lin KAWL (vii)
Total for 2024 “ECMESG

228 China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited 2 B8R B R AR A 7

@it
HK$°000
ThR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A + 23

‘Re M BERRN T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)  15.

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of every director is set out below:

BEEEN RS (E)
(@ EFFHFHMGE)
BEESHMEIT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s

services as a director, whether of the Company or
its subsidiary undertaking
FEREZ(ERNAARFENBARER) M
[ELA RIS 2 A5 ey

Employer's
contribution Equity-
toa settled
retirement share-
benefit based
Fees Salaries scheme  payments Total
B LDRiELEER
RINER IR A
ER & HEMEX EROMOR &z
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T T FET T
Name of directors EZpg
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) WRESE(2E) - 2,000 18 338 2,356
Ms. Lin Xiaoshan WERZ L - 600 18 - 618
Mr. Liu Zhiwei AFE L - 1,000 - - 1,000
Mr. Wang Guozhen THELE 0} - 522 5 11 538
Mr. Li Yinxiang TRELE (iif) - 162 - - 162
Ms. Bian Sulan TEHEXL 0) - 100 - 327 497
Independent non-executive directors BV HHTEE
Mr. Chak Chi Shing BEBTE ) 175 - - - 175
Mr. Li Huiwu FERLE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Yang Weidong BREREE (iv) 108 - - - 108
Mr. Wu Chi King RiRR Gt V) 77 - - - 77
Ms. Zhang Xiu Lin wAM T (vii) 6 - - - 6
Total for 2023 bt S 606 4,384 4 676 5,707
Notes: BteE -
O] Resigned on 4 April 2023. ) RoE = =4 A E BT -
@iD Appointed on 12 June 2023. (i) R-B-=FXA+_BHEZRE-
(i) Appointed on 3 March 2023 and resigned on 14 August 2023. @iy RITE-_ZF-A-HEZIER_-Z
—=FN\A+mAFHE -
(iv)  Resigned on 12 June 2023. (v) RZZBE-=FB+-HET-
(v) Resigned on 23 September 2023. o) RoE——GEhA—+= A8 -
(vi)  Appointed on 6 September 2023. ) RZZBEZ=FAANBEZRT-
(vi)  Appointed on 20 December 2023. i)y RZEZ=F+"A-1+REZF-
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15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 15, ZES=1@A kg (&)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EBHMNE)
None of the directors waived any emoluments during the REE-ZT_NFER-_FT-_=F
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. +_ﬂ Z+—HLEFE BEES

MEEAME -

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no BT _ER T _=F1+—

emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors A=Z+—BIL&E  "EBEHER

as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as EMESZHEHE - (EANALRE

compensation for loss of office. B MAREEE M ZE S E AR
BEAH1E -

(b) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings (by BAHAMES  ITHEBNESEE
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate and BHAMER EERNEMER
connected entities E’\Jéﬂ
The information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings ﬁ%@ﬁ’“ﬂiﬁi%“ﬂﬂib{ﬁ%
entered into by the Company or subsidiary undertaking of AT AZER EERNEME
the Company in favour of directors is as follows: EZ2ERMT -

Outstanding Maximum
Total amountatthe  Outstanding  outstanding Provision
amount  beginning of amount at the amount during Amount due  for doubtful
Name of director 3.5 payable the year end of the year the year but not paid debts made Term Interest rate
=47 =%z EARE HmENE
ERSRE  MARERE  MARERE  MimERE KNBE  EHRERE R iz
HKSO00  HKS000 HKS000  HKS000 HK$000 HKSO00  HKS000 HK$000
7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
As at 31 December 2024 R-B-mE
t=A=t-A
Quasi-loans or REFAEERS
credit transactions:
Mr. Lin Dailian PRRE L&

As at 31 December 2023 RIBZZF

tZA=1-B
Quasi-loans or REFTAEERS
credit transactions:
Mr. Lin Dailian WREEE Nil & (149 3878 3878 Nil & Nil & Nil Nil & Nil &
Mr. Wang GuoZhen (Note) TRELE(HL) Nil & 536 (Note)(Hfzz)  (Note)(Hfit) Nil & Nil & Nil& Nil & Nil &
Note: Mr. Wang GuoZhen resigned as director of the Company and Htet - Iﬁ%i%ﬂi$ RIEFTEHNRE
reappointed as key management personnel. The outstanding balance TAITEEEAS - KEBEBRETD
reallocated to amount due from key management personnel. BRI EZEEABTE -
(c) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements (© EENRES -  THHABLHHEKRE
or contracts =
So far disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated financial BERE ISR KT sE 43P i B
statements, no other significant transactions, arrangements MmN ERSERNTEMEEFER
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which AKABABEHPETNHEARAFIES
the Company was a party and in which a director of the MEEZBE S EESBEEEE
Company and the director’s connected party had a material AESN B AR EEEFNEME
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end ARG BHEREH -

of the year or at any time during the year.
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16.

17.

DIVIDENDS

No dividends have been paid or proposed during the year ended
31 December 2024, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2023: Nil).

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year 2024, a Company’s subsidiary namely,
Telefield NA Inc, ceased its business relating to distribution of
communication products operation, which representing the
Group’s distribution of communication products operation
segment (“Discontinued Operation”). The results for the
year from the Discontinued Operation up to the date of
cessation of business are set out below. The comparative
figures in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income have been restated to present the
Discontinued Operation as a discontinued operation.

gy

HE_ZT_NE+_A=1+—HILEFE
MEE IR BIRERE - HEWREH
RUARTMERRBEEAKRE(ZE =
Fom|E) o

ERIERERER

RZZZWFE - XRFIHE AR Telefield
NA INCR IEREF@ O HBAEmMmE
% REBRAEEMBSIBAMNER
WES((BRLEREER]) - BRIEK
EEBNBEEBRIEZEENFAEER
HIWOT c mEERR AN EKE
KO BHTELEY  LEYBRIE
EER RO ET -

2024 2023

—E-E —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TExT FETT

Profit for the year from discontinued RECKRIEEEER
operation ZEFEEHEF

Revenue WA 10,402
Cost of sales SHE A (5,290)

Gross (loss)/profit (E#8)E7 5112

Other income and gains H b g A R W zs 1
Selling expenses HEMY (1,529)
Administrative expenses TEREHR (3,177)
Research and development expenditure  #ff9t & H (117)
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17.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 7. BRIEREER (R

—E_MF
HK$°000
FH T
(Loss) profit before tax BrEE AT (E518) )& 7 (130)
Income tax credit (expense) Frissike (M) 1

(Loss) profit for the year from discontinuedZx A 71 A AJE(G K B B4R IF R &
operation (attributable to owners of the 27 F/E (E518) & 7
Company)

Profit for the year from discontinued RECKRIEREERNEE
operation includes the following: EABEUTER :

Cost of inventories sold EERFERA

Reversal of impairment loss on inventories #EIFEREEE (5T A
(included in other income and gains) HAap A R ES)

Reversal of provision for product warranty, = 1% F B B B % 58
net (included in other income and gains) (Gt AE bl A R U zs)

Staff costs BT

— Salaries and allowances — Fre &oERL

Cash flows from discontinued RECKRILEEERHN
operation: HERE !

Net cash outflows used in operating KEEBFTRIR SR F 5
activities

Net cash inflows from financing activities BVEEBIFTSIE SR AT
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes & & & §) 2/ 2=

Net cash outflows Wemt F58
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2023
—E-=4F
HK$000
FETT

290
(6)

284

5,290

(510)

1,965

(410)
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(390)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE 18.

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on the following:

A F
KEFBREERDRIEEER
BRERAREERBIIZ T AFE

2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHET

Earnings 25
Earnings attributable to owners of ARETESRERGF
the Company for the purpose of ZARRNEHEE ARG EF

basic earnings per share

Number of shares BB E

Weighted average number of ordinary ARETESRERZF
shares for the purpose of calculating 2 E R INE T
basic earnings per share

207,426,836 171,818,161

No diluted earnings per share for years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023 are presented as the exercise price of those options
was higher than the average market price of shares.

HE-_Z-_NFRZZFE-Z=F1+=A
=S+ —BLEFE ARZEEREZT
FERARMDZFHHE WLELT
BREERF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

18.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
From continuing and discontinued operations (Continued)

For the purpose of calculation of basic and diluted earnings per
share for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the share
consolidation being effective on 30 March 2023 was deemed
to be effective throughout the period from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2024.

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic earnings per share from continuing
operations is based on the following:

FREF (8)
REFBECERERIEEEER(B)
BEHEHE_E_NER_T_-=
+ZA=Z=+—BIFEZERERRH
BRAMmME  RZE-_=F=A=+H
ERZBHEHBERAER T _=ZF—
A—Bz—Zf-_WF+-_A=+—HH
Fﬁﬁiﬁ\@( ©

KREFEEEER

RS R 2 SRERBNET
e

Earnings 27

Earnings for the purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share

Loss (profit) for the year form
discontinued operation

&8 Om A)

ARG ESRERENZ 87

KACKRIERERH 2FE

Earnings for the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations

SREERN 28

ARFTERERFELERBZ

2024 2023
—E_MF -
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
5,257

(284)

4,973

The weighted average numbers of ordinary shares used as
denominators in calculating the basic and diluted earnings per
share are the same.

From discontinued operation

Basic loss (2023: earnings) per share from the discontinued
operation is HKO.07 (2023: HKO.17) cents per share, based on
the loss (2023: profit) for the year from discontinued operation
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$129,000 (2023; HK$284,000) and the denominators used
are the same as those detailed above for both basic and diluted
earnings per share.

HEGREARBERANE  BEHR
— RIS EEAS R o

KEERIEEEER

BERNATHEBSABGRESKIELE
EB2FEBB(ZZE_=F : 574
129,000 7T ( — & = = 4 : 284,000
) BFTERMS BE EXXATFLAR
HEERERNREERFNS FHER -
REBRIEEEER 2 FREREE(Z
T=F : BF) AERO0TEWW(ZE
ZZF 0178 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. Y% MWENMRE
Plant,
machinery, Furniture
Leasehold moulds and and Motor
improvements tools equipment vehicles Total
B - Hes -
HEREIR HBARIE BRERE RE @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FTHT FET FHET
Cost D%
At 1 January 2023 RZZE-=F—-HA—H 32,840 97,106 16,346 1,477 147,769
Additions EE 223 2,003 566 - 2,792
Disposal HE - (982) - - (982)
Written off ki) - (1,098) (44) - (1,142)
Exchange differences ERERE (535) (1,991) (164) 6) (2,696)
At 31 December 2023 and RZTZ=F+ZA=1+—HK
1 January 2024 —E-E—-HF—H 32,528 95,038 16,704 1,471 145,741
Additions EE 110 1,707 306 350 2,473
Disposal HE (339) (1,666) (305) - (2,310)
Written off s - - - (438) (438)
Exchange differences ERER (567) (2,218) (199) (8) (2,992)
At 31 December 2024 R-Z-NMFE+-A=1+—H 31,732 92,861 16,506 1,375 142,474
Accumulated depreciation RitHE
At 1 January 2023 —T-=%—F—H 29,538 87,279 8,741 1,153 126,711
Charge for the year EF ZH 2,142 4,461 2,207 99 8,909
Disposal HE - (836) - - (836)
Written off kit - (1,093) (44) - (1,137)
Exchange differences ERERE (509) (1,680) (132) (6) (2,327)
At 31 December 2023 and AZZZ=F+-A=1+—-HEK
1 January 2024 —ZT-NE—f—H 31,171 88,131 10,772 1,246 131,320
Charge for the year FEER 1,083 3,539 2,306 262 7,190
Disposal HE 47) (1,666) (305) - (2,018)
Written off kit - - - (438) (438)
Exchange differences ERERE (563) (2,023) (171) () (2,764)
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-NFE+-A=1+—H 31,644 87,981 12,602 1,063 133,290
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2024 RZEZMF+=-A=1+—H 88 4,880 3,904 312 9,184
At 31 December 2023 RZE_=F+-A=+—H 1,357 6,907 5,932 225 14,421
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 20. EREEE

Leased
properties
HEEF
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2023 R-_BE-_=%F—A—H 33,240
Additions BE 1,995
Depreciation e (15,539)
Deregistration of a subsidiary = il ) WNG] (337)
Exchange differences M =R (685)

At 31 December 2023 and R -_=%F+=-A=+—H
1 January 2024 ;=T Z_MF—HF—H 18,674
Additions BE 38,548
Depreciation we (12,117)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39(a)) HEWNBAR (M 39a)) (126)
Exchange differences PE =R (1,450)
At 31 December 2024 RoZE-NE+=-/B=+—H 43,529
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 20. EREESE (&)

2024 2023
—E-mE —EC-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT

Depreciation expenses on
right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities

EREEEZTERX

12,117 15,539

HEREZHEMAX

(included in finance costs) (T ABE K AN) 3,078 2,112
Expenses relating to short-term lease EREHBHEENRT
(included in cost of sales GITAEEXNARITHER)

and administrative expenses)

2,399 1,795

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$47,258,000 (2023:
HK$21,896,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets
of approximately HK$43,529,000 (2023: HK$18,674,000) as at
31 December 2024. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 39(d).

For both years, the Group leases various offices, factories and
staff quarters for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of one to ten years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

R-_TZ-_WE+-_A=+—H %R
FHEBEBEHA7258008T(ZE-_=
£ 121,896,000 7T ) K A8 B8 &9 = FA #E
& EH1435290008 L (Z T == F -
18,674,000 7T) - R AT ENHEE
BETRHERERIN - BEFHZTHEN
EAHEMELY HEEETBARNER
AR o

HERSROARNFRHNKE
39(d) »

KRR AREREEEHESE
WA IRKREIFES HESOR
—E+FEMEEFHETL - BEGRTIZ
BRI EEER - WEESETRAEK
R Akt = 1O e T H S R A T AT J el 2
RMERER  AEEERAANNERLE
ERKFRHIHITAHHR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

21.

238 China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited F B f# e R 2R BR A 7

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2. BEEE

Customer Computer
relationship EAR-1 EAR-2 EAR-3 software
(note (@) (note (b)) (note (c) (note (d)) (note (e)) Total
EFBR BEAEE- BRAEE-2 BxAEE-3 B st
(Fit @) UELE) (He () (Hrzt @) (Bt ce)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIL THIL THIL THIL THIL THT
Cost R
At 1 January 2023 R-E-=%—F—H 13,707 25,000 27,000 37,800 1,900 105,407
Termination BE - - (27,000) - - (27,000)
At 31 December 2023, RZE-=%+-A=+-8-
1 January 2024 and “EomE-R-HkK
31 December 2024 —EoNE+-A=+—H 13,707 25,000 - 37,800 1,900 78,407
Accumulated amortisation and 23t R HERE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2023 —T-=%—-F—H 13,707 20,680 - 2,007 633 37,027
Amortisation for the year FEEH - - - 4,014 633 4,647
Impairment during the year FERE - 2,620 - - - 2,620
At 31 December 2023 and RIZ-=F+-A=+—H
1 January 2024 k=Z-N&—F—H 13,707 23,300 - 6,021 1,266 44,294
Amortisation for the year FREHH - - - 3,598 634 4,232
Impairment during the year FERE - 1,000 - 6,172 - 7,172
At 31 December 2024 RZE-mME+=-A=+—H 13,707 24,300 - 15,791 1,900 55,698
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2024 RZE-—mM&E+=-A=+—H - 700 - 22,009 - 22,709
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=F+-A=+—H - 1,700 - 31,779 634 34,113
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

21, INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 2. EBREEE)
Notes: Kzt -
@) Customer relationship represents the future economic benefit to the Group (@) BEPBREEEBEHAIBEATPE REBEETE

arising from regular contact between individual customer and the business
entity before business combination. The amortising period of customer
relationship was 3-6 years.

The Group paid HK$25,000,000 to BXG in FY2019 as prepayment and has
reclassified that prepayment as intangible assets in FY2020, which represents
EAR-1 for certain number of apartments (both furnished and without
decoration). Due to the effect of the pandemic, the terms of the EAR-1 were
extended and revised. The Group determines the amortisation of EAR-1 based
on the allocation of costs corresponds to the actual number of units sold during
the reporting period over the total number of units with exclusive agency rights
granted under EAR-1. The Group has the rights to sell the apartments from 1
January 2020 to 17 March 2021. On 1 December 2022, BXG further extended the
appointment of the Group as its exclusive agent to 30 November 2025. Details
of impairment assessment are set out below.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, due to the poor performance of the real
estate supply chain services and energy storage products segment, the
Group performed impairment assessment on the CGU of EAR-1 belongs.
The recoverable amount represented its value in use determined based on
discounted cashflow forecast prepared by the management of the Group.
The Group estimates the value in use of the EAR-1 using a discount rate of
14.7% (2023: 13.1%). The EAR-1 was impaired to its recoverable amount of
approximately HK$700,000 (2023: HK$1,700,000), which is its carrying
value at year end and the impairment of approximately HK$1,000,000 (2023:
HK$2,620,000) has been recognised in profit or loss during the year.

HEEHAREEL N RIEENS - FEIE
R IEGF o

REBR =T — LM BFE ABXGCE fF
25,000,000 B TE RN RBI R T =T
BEESZEANFESHOERENEE 88
FERAB(ERMAREREE)NBRAEE -
HAEBTE  BRAEE IHERETTE
RRIEFT - AEBRBIEREHNS HES M
ERHSEEREBERAREE 1 BENBRAE
1R B8 7 48 SR L (51 48 FE 4 B B 9 B AN 8 O AR OB
KRB 1B AEEEHE T -TF
—A—HBEZZT-Z—F=-A+tHHERE-
RZZT-_=F+=-A—H BXGE—FZFTAE
EEAHBRRE  BREZ-_Z-AF+—A
=10  REBBNFISE TXE -

R-E-—FER-—E-=F+-A=+—H ' H
R E IR SR RS R e E D EP A TE
MAEEHBRREE B ZRESESEN
VERMERT L - AT E S FEEREAEEERER
HAMUBRRERBAETHEREE - AEEIZ
BRIBER147% (— 2 = =4 1 131%) fhat BRI
W INEREE BRAEE —UREZEAK
[B1 & %8 49 700,000 # 7T (=2 = =4 : 1,700,000
PET) - BNAEFREREE BREX)1,000,000 #
TL(ZE = =4 126200008 7T) BERFERIES
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 2. EBREEE)
Notes: (Continued) Bfat - (&)

On 18 August 2020, the Group acquired the EAR-2 from Ratchaphruek
Global Group Co., Ltd. (“Vendor”) for the rights to sell 77 villa units (“Target
Properties”) planned to be constructed under a project (“Project”) of a
developer company (“Developer”). The Group determines the amortisation
of EAR-2 based on the allocation of costs corresponds to the actual number
of units sold during the reporting period over the total number of units with
exclusive agency rights granted under EAR-2. The Group has the rights to sell
the Target Properties for a remaining term of not less than 12 months from 18
August 2020, and may be extended by another 6 months upon expiration. On
19 January 2022, the Developer further extended the appointment of the Group
as its exclusive agent from 24 November 2021 to 24 May 2022. On 17 May 2022,
the Developer further extended the appointment of the Group as it exclusive
agent to 24 May 2023. The Group signed the termination agreement with the
vendor on 9 September 2023 and the remaining consideration of approximately
HK$27,000,000 was refunded on 21 November 2023.

The Group settled approximately HK$37,800,000 by the allotment and issue of
230,000,000 shares of the Company to a scientific instruments manufacturer
(the “Assignor”) in 2022 for an intangible asset, which represents (i) the
exclusive agency right to distribute the Products and the right for after-sale
service in Hong Kong and in Macau; and (ii) the non-exclusive agency right to
distribute the Products and the right for after-sale service in the regions of Asia
outside the mainland China, except Hong Kong and Macau within agreed agency
periods from the date of acquisition to 6 December 2031 under EAR-3. Further
details of impairment assessment of EAR-3 are set out below and in the note
53D(b).

On 30 June 2024 the Group entered into an agreement with the Assignor to
early terminate the minimum revenue guarantee undertake by the Assignor.
In consideration of this early termination, the Assignor paid a compensation of
approximately HK$6,848,000 to the Group during the year ended 31 December
2024.

As at 31 December 2024, due to the early termination of minimum revenue
guarantee abovementioned, the Group performed impairment assessment
on the CGU of EAR-3 belongs. The recoverable amount represented it value
in use determined based on discounted cashflow forecast prepared by the
management of the Group. The Group estimates the value in use of the EAR-
3 using a discount rate of 18.3%. The EAR-3 was impaired to its recoverable
amount of approximately HK$23,600,000 and the impairment of approximately
HK$6,172,000 has been recognised in profit or loss during the year.

Computer software represents software acquired for money lending business
and is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The system software is amortised on a straight-line basis
over a period of 3 years.

R—ZZ_ZTF/\A+NB A£EE
Ratchaphruek Global Group Co., Ltd (.[ B 7 |) EX
BERREE 2 ERHEE—HEEFQA
((REEDEE ([ZFEB DETRERSZNT7
ERIEEn ([BEWE]) - AEERBIEREH
ABEHEENERHBEHRBEBRRNEE 28K
TR BERRIEREA BN L FIHEES R &
RAEERBRNIEE 2008E A5EH#
EZZTF N NA+NBRETLORR2EAD
FIHFHEEEEYE  YRERSATHES6
AR -R=—ZT-—F—A+THhB ZEEE—F
ZAREEEAEBRARENSR =2 =—
F+—AZtTHBEZT-__FHA-FTWB -
REZZB-ZFHA+ER BREE—FEAR
SEEREBRARE  BREZE-FT_=FHA
ZHHE c AEER T =FhANAEES
#&1EE - BRI E 4927,000,000% 7T
RZZE_=F+—A=-+HERE-

RZF-—F  ARFERA BRI BHSIEEE
7 ([ B A 1) Al % % %77 230,000,000 AR A% 1)
& E B £37,800,000%8 T - BEERE
EERREESREZE T =—F+ - BHH
EREBHANBEBRAIZE 30 EEERRM
DIEMRRERRBENNBRARE - KRG
B A PASN M b [ (B8 BORPIER SN 7
HERMERRGENOIFERLIERE - BRA
21 -3 MRERT I O 2 S B #UA T SXHIRE 5GD
(b) °

RZZZWEXRNA=1+H ANEEEEE AT
i RPRIEERAFREHRERARE -
ERERERIENRE BEARBZ_Z /N
FH_A=+—BLEFERALAEEXZAHED
6,848,000 7T °

R-Z-PFE+-—A=+—08 AR REERIE L
MEEBARE - REEEBRRIEBEIHNE
2R EEBLAERETE - ATKESEEIRE
AEHEREMGREZBRREREEUMET
HE FREE - NEEIN183% 2 BB RHBR
RIBE—INFEREMB - BRRBE-IDHRES
H AUy [a 6 5B 49 23,600,000 * 4 A4 6,172,000
BT BEBERERFHER © £91591,0008 TH)
B0 BRE A SR E F A B ER -

BREHEANEEBBEENEMN - URARE
A R REDRER AR - FRRIHRE
AN SFE R A
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. RBRARIRIEE
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2024 are as R-_ZE-_NFE+_-_A=+—HHEBRA
follows: BFEIBIT
Place of incorporation/  Issued and paid up share Percentage of ownership interest/
Name of subsidiary establishment/operation capital/registered capital voting power/profit shating Principal activities
FMRL/ BRATRARRE/ fEERER/
HWEAREE R/ B ZREX ZR/EHNAMEE AN TEER

2024 2023
“B-ME - S
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
EE ik 23 i

Charm Year International Limited British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares 100% - 100% - Investment holding
EIFEBARAR ("BV.L") of US$1 each REZR
ERRIES 00 REREEIETH
(XBRZES)) LBk
China Khan Limited BV 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
ERARAR ERRAEE of US$1 each REER
100 RERARIETH
Natural Perseverance Limited BV 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
REBRAR RERES of US§1 each REER
100 RBRAERIZTH
Lk
Powerled Limited BV 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
EEERAR RBRAEE of US§1 each AR
00 REREEIETH
Sheer Victory Limited BV 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
ERRAEE of US$1 each REER
100 RBRAERIETH
Dayshine Global Investments Limited BV Tordinary share - 100%  Inactive
RERIES of US§1 each ERLK
IREREEIETH
LBk
Ever Billion Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HKS$! - 100%  Investment holding
BEEXARAR B IBTHEBER REER
Link-Asia International Cell Technology Hong Kong Ordinary share of HKS$! - 100%  Investment holding
Group Limited B BT ERR AR
ROERARRREEERAR
Be Smart Finance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Provision of loan services
£ IATHLEER REETRS
Link-Asia International Hong Kong Ordinary share of HKS$! - 100%  Inactive
Electronic Technology Limited B 1AL AR ERLK

RoBRETHRERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

Issued and paid up share

Name of subsidiary establishment/operation capital/registered capital
FMARL/ BRATRARRE/
WEAR R R/ B ZREX
Sino Achieve Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of
FEERAR X HK$5,000,000
5,000,000 LA EEMR
Space Wisdom Limited BV Tordinary share of
BRARAR EERAEE US$1 each
IREREEIETH
Talent-Asia Holdings Co. Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of
RERDERERAR Bb HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 B A @M%
Talent-Asia GC Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of
REAEARAR B HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 LA EER
Telefield Holdings Limited BV.. 410,000 ordinary shares
EERAEE of US$T each
410000k BRE(BE1ZTH
Telefield Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of
FEERAR BE HK$20,000,000 and
non-voting deferred
shares of HK$5,000,000
20,000,000 LM LK
55,000,000 T
BRERELRNR
Telefield Medical Devices Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of
FERESNBRAA B HK$1,000
1000 BT E @R
Telefield Universal Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of
HERLERAT) B HK$15,600,000
15,600,000/ 5 A E R

22. RHBRARIMEE (&)

Percentage of ownership interest/
voting power/profit shating

fERRS/
E/BNAEES

2024 2023
“B-ME 5=

Direct Indirect Direct
EE ik EE

£

Indirect
R

Principal activities

IEER

- 100% =
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100%

100%

100%

5%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Investment holding
and trading
REBRKES

Inactive

BEEH

Investment holding and
provision of real estate
advisory service and real
estate purchase service

REBRRESEREHE
FaRENEnE
BERYG

Provision of real
estate advisory service
and real estate purchase
service
REEMELARBEN
RIERERK

Investment holding

Investment holding,
electronic manufacturing
services for
telecommunications,
security, car electronics,
home appliances,
other consumer and
industrial electronic
products

RERR B8R R%-
AEETER RE -
HEEBRIZET
ERNETRERE

Inactive

TER

Investment holding and
trading of
telecommunication
products

RERREEANERES
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/  Issued and paid up share
Name of subsidiary establishment/operation capital/registered capital
FMARL/ BRARARRE/
WEAR R R/ B ZRER
Telefield NA Inc. USA Share capital of
E35] US$2,000,000
JR752,000,000% T
Well Dragon Electronics Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of
BEEFARAH Bk HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 LA AR
Sota Acoustics Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1
BREEEERATA B 1BTHEER
Link-Asia International Assisted Hong Kong Ordinary share of HKS$!
Reproductive Technology Group B IBTHEER
Limited
REEEBNEENRERERAR
Guangzhou Telefield Limited ("GTL")* PRC Registered capital of
BENPEETERAR(BMHE]) e US$11,060,000
FHMEAT1,060,000F T
Guangzhou Zhong Sui Limited* PRC Registered capital of
EMPEETERAR FE US$1,500,000
FHMER1500000% T
Guangzhou Zhuo Feng Plastics PRC Registered capital of
Co,, Limited* FE 1S$2,000,000
BEMNEEBHARERA & A2000000% T
Huashi Management Consultancy PRC Registered capital of
(Shenzhen) Limited* e RMB300,000,000
EREEZA (RN ERAR FMERARE
300,000,0007T
Ding Cheng Investment PRC Registered capital of
(Yangzhou) Limited* HE RMB200,000,000
SRRE BN BRAF AfERARE
200,000,0007T
Huashi Medical Assistive Technology PRC Registered capital of
(Shenzhen) Limited FE RMB500,000,000
ERBERDRN ORI BERAR AMERARE
500,000,0007T
Shanghai Tiantian Lvke Energy Storage PRC Registered capital of
Technology Limited HE RMB100,000,000
TERBENGENEERAR FRERARK
100,000,000 7

22. RHBRARIMEE (&)

Percentage of ownership interest/
voting power/profit shating

fEEER/
ZR/BHNAMEE AN
2024 2023
—B-ME “BCCE
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect

BE [} E# Ak

Principal activities

TEER

- 100% = 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Trading of business telephone

systems before ceasing

business in 2024
RAUELIEZBAA

BEEHZNED

Manufacturing services of
home appliances, other
consumer and industrial
electronic products

RE EMEERIE
BTERNEERSE

Sale of audio equipment
BRRENHE

Investment holding

Manufacture of
telecommunications
and other products

BAREMERNSE

Manufacture and sale of
consumable electronic
products

HEETEQMEER
HE

Inactive

EEXH

Inactive

BEEB

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

Provision of consultancy
service

REEARS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

22.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/  Issued and paid up share

Name of subsidiary establishment/operation capital/registered capital
FMRL/ BRTRARRE/
WEAR SR R/ B ZREX

Direct

Huanya Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Limited*  PRC Registered capital of

Rk (R BRAF HE RMBI0,000,000
HMTEAARE
10,0000007C

Zhongxixin Trading (Shenzhen) Co., Limited* PRC Registered capital of

FEEHE(RINERAF)! FE RMB200,000
FRERARK
200,0007T
Fast Wealth Holdings Limited HK
ELEEEARAR B

(Acquired on 8 May 2024 at consideration of HK$1)
(R=F-RmERANBRREETYE)

Jiangsu Bize Technology Development PRC Registered capital of

Co,, Limited FE RMB50,000,000
IREERHERARAA FMERARYK
(Incorporated on 4 December 2024) 50,000,0007C

(RZZZWE+Z AL L)

*

English names are for identification purpose.
# Disposal during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Except for Huanya Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Limited which
established in the PRC in the form of limited liability company,
all subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned
enterprises.

As at 31 December 2024, the bank balances of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB and deposited
with banks in the PRC were amounted to approximately
HK$57,207,000 (2023: HK$70,336,000). Conversion of RMB
into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations. However, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

22. RHBRARIMEE (&)

Percentage of ownership interest/
voting power/profit shating

Principal activities

fEkER/
ZR/BHAMEE AN TEER
2023
ZEC=F
Indirect Direct Indirect

[} H#% Ak

51% = 51%  Provision of real estate
advisory services and real
estate purchase service

REEMEZARBERN
EEBERS

100%  Manufacturing services

SUERT

- Investment holding

RERR

- Provision of energy storage
technology development
products
REEREFRTRLER

# HE-_Z-NE+-A=t+—HILEEBHE -

BRETBENEREERRFAKILAR
SEBRCFINBERABN - ABEETH
FRAZEVI B R RIS RIMNEEE R

RZEZMF+ZA=+—H ~5H
B AR B R B A B A A R EHE RF R
PRI ER 7T EV IR 1T A5 84 B 457,207,000
BIL(ZZE = =% : 70,336,000/ 7T) °
ARBRBBINEBEZRBIINEE
bl R 4508 - 0B R IE B IR RAR
R o 2T - AEE AT B BRI ET
HNER 5 2 IRITHIE A R SR E &
eggo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

23. INVENTORIES 23. &

2024 2023
—E-mEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Raw materials R4k 18,255 23,616
Work in progress G 11,782 10,885
Finished goods RIRK B 8,178 11,063
Goods in transit EEE R 6,835 9,096
45,050 54,660

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. RUE FERR

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit.
The credit terms generally range from 30 to 120 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. For new customers,
payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

AEBMEZFTEUNEEHARNETE
E-EEH-—MNTI0ER0K - FH
BEEYEESEERE - FEF KA
FAEMARIE - AEBMB A M A E
FEMGRIB M BRISEE L - EE T HIE N
EHAERR o

RER B EWE SRR GIREE)
FRIRDMTEAT -

0 to 90 days 0ZE90K
91 to 180 days NEIBOK
181 to 365 days 181E 365K
Over 365 days 365 KA

2024 2023
—E-EF —EC=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
98,302 125,406
18,670 18,436
292 946

30 521
117,294 145,309

Further details of credit risk assessment is set out in note 6(b).

EERBRFEAE—F

6(b) °

B8k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24, EWE FERK(E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are AEBREKESERCEREFERAUT
denominated in the following currencies: EHEETHE -

2024 2023

—E-MF ZE=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

T FAT

United States dollars (“USD”) Ex(Ex]) 110,475 126,783

HK$ BT - 14,896

RMB AREE 6,819 3,630

Total CEl 117,294 145,309

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES ~ 25. FEfFIE - & N E b EUCIA

2024 2023
—E-ME T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Prepayments SELNE O 279,426 201,766
Other receivables E Ath e W 50E 33,918 11,883
Purchase and other deposits FEREEMES 7,614 6,085
Amount due from key management BT EEIE A S FE
personnel (Note) (Ktat) 1536
Amount due from non-controlling UG FEFE R A 2 50 IR
interest 4,451 5,577
325,409 226,847
Analysis: AR i
Current portion BIHEAEL 2 322,185 223,568
Non-current portion JEBNERER > 3,224 3,279
325,409 226,847
Note: Disclosed in note 15(b), Mr. Wang GuoZhen resigned as director of the Company HfaF - AR REIS(D) PR EE - EEE A LRI ART
and appointed as a key management personnel. ERWEZTAREEERAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE SRR I A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

26. LOANS TO OTHER PARTIES 26. MEMATER
The Group has engaged external independent valuers to assist REBBIINEBZAEMUAIBERRE
the management to assess the ECL rates at end of reporting FHER R EHRNTEREEBEX -
period
Principal Accrued
balance at interest as at
31December 31 December Cumulative
Name Terms of loan 2024 ECL rate allowance

R-E-WE

+=A=t+-H
e/ 58 BRHR ZhReEH EHEEERR 23Rt @it
HK$°000 % HK$7000 HK$?000
TET ; % FET THET

Independent Third Party C Unsecured, repayable on (0] 6,150 93.29% (12,241) 880
BUE=HC 31 December 2024 and
bears interest of 10% p.a. ("Loan Z”)
BEM AR -E-MET-A=+-AH
BEREEFRI0%:HE ([BRZ))

Individual D Unsecured, repayable on (ii) 93.30% (3,803)
fAAD 31 December 2024 and
bears interest of 16% p.a. ("Loan X")
BEM AR -T-MET-A=+—H
BEREEFR 6% 5 ((EHX))

Independent Third Party F Unsecured, repayable on (iii) 93.42%
BUE=HF 15 September 2021 and
bears interest of 12% p.a. ("Loan W")
AR AR —FNATHA
BEREEFR12%:T 8 ((ERW])

Total Bt (16,186)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

26. LOANS TO OTHER PARTIES (Continued)

26. MEMALER(E)

Principal Accrued
balance at interest as at
31 December 31 December Cumulative
Name Terms of loan 2023 2023 ECL rate allowance Total
R-B-=F RZB-=F
+=ZR=+-B +zZA=+-H
e/ 58 ERRR LR TS BHGEBRZ 25riE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$:000
FAR FAT % TAT AR
Independent Third Party C Unsecured, repayable on 0} 21,150 6,866 88.13% (24,691) 3,325
BUE=HC 31 December 2024 and
bears interest of 10% p.a. ("Loan Z”)
EEM BN -Z-NE+T-A=1-8
BERREFRI0%:E ([BRZ))
Individual D Unsecured, repayable on (ii) 8,500 6,567 87.61% (13,200) 1,867
fAAD 31 December 2024 and
bears interest of 16% p.a. ("Loan X")
EEM BN -Z-NE+T-A=1-8
BERREFRI6%:1E ([ERX])
Independent Third Party F Unsecured, repayable on (i) - 152 82.89% (126) 26
BUEZAF 15 September 2021 and
bears interest of 12% p.a. ("Loan W")
SR BN -_T--FNA+HBEE
RIRERED%:E([ERW])
Others Unsecured, repayable in August 2024, (iv) 2,590 89 30.17% (748) 1,731
Hit and bears interest of 10% p.a.
E/ER ER-ZT-NENAEE
RIBEF|E10%5 8
Total it 32,040 13,674 (38,765) 6,949

248 China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited F B e R 2R BR A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B RS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

26. LOANS TO OTHER PARTIES (Continued) 26. MEMALTERE)

Notes: Kzt -

0) Loan Z was originally due on 21 February 2021, but Independent Third Party 0) BEFRZRER=_T=_—F_A=+—H2I8H

C failed to repay the principal and interest on that day. On 27 April 2022,
Independent Third Party C rescheduled payment by monthly instalments and
the last payment date would be 31 December 2022, with interest calculated at
10% p.a. for the extended period, and was secured by personal guarantee given
by the sole director and sole shareholder of Independent Third Party C. During
the year ended 31 December 2024, an amount of HK$15,000,000 was recovered.
The Group recognised ECL of approximately HK$12,241,000 as credit-impaired
as an default event have been observed.

Loan X was originally due on 30 June 2020, but Individual D failed to repay the
principal and interest on that day. On 30 June 2020, Individual D rescheduled
payment by monthly instalments and the last payment date would be 28
February 2021 with all other terms remain unchanged. During the year ended
31 December 2021, an amount of HK$2,000,000 was recovered. On 22 April
2022, individual D rescheduled payment and the last payment date would
be 30 September 2022, with interest calculated at 16% p.a. for the extended
period. During the year ended 31 December 2024, an amount of HK$11,000,000
was recovered. The Group recognised ECL of approximately HK$3,803,000 as
credit-impaired as default events have been observed.

Loan W was originally due on 15 September 2021, but Independent Third Party
F failed to repay the principal and interest on that day. During the year ended 31
December 2022, Independent Third Party F fully repaid the principal amount of
RMB1,000,000(equivalent to approximately HK$1,225,000). Up to the date of
report, Independent Third Party F did not made any repayment of loan interest
receivables. The Group recognised impairment of approximately HK$142,000 as
they are credit-impaired.

Loans were originally due in 2023. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Group received the loan interest receivables of approximately HK$239,000
and signed loan extension agreement with “Others” and the loans will be repaid
within 1 year. During the year ended 31 December 2024, all outstanding loan
principal and interest were fully recovered. The previously recognised ECL
provision of approximately HK$748,000 was fully reversed during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

BUE=H CRENZBERASRFE - R
T—FMA=++tH BIYS=HCEHET
TRADBHERNEEE  HhSE—SMFTH
AEA-T-_—_F+-_A=+—8  &KRHH
REFERIO%TE  WABTE=FCHE—E
ERE-RRRBEREARRELER  HE-T
ZWFEFZA=+—HBIEFE - JE15000,000
BT ARBHNEHCBE NALEEBH
122410008 TR EBIEERAEERAE -

ERXRER-T-_TFA=THEH  #E
ADKREENZAEEASRAE - RZT =T
FARNA=Z+TH MADEHRITTRANHE
FEEREEK  HPRE - EMFOBHEAZ
T-—F-A=-+N\H  FAEEMEREST
o BE-_T-_—F+-_A=1+—RHLFE"
W [812,000,00087 e RZEZZFMA=—+=
B EADEMRL 7T ERSHE - HPmE—
BRRWABEA-E-_—ENA=TH ITE
BRI EF R 6% B - HEZZT_WEFE+=A
=Z+—A1FE - KE1,000,00087C - ARE
HEHEEE - MAKEEL 3803000 TH
BHEEBEERAEERIE -

BRWRER=-Z=-_—FhLA+HBEEH #
BUB=FFRENZABERASLAE - HE
T ZHF+ZRA=1+—HIFE BIE=
7 FERBEEARS ARK1,000,000 7T (FHERL
12250008 7T) - BEAKEBH BYE=FH
FREREMEBRERAE - ARREZNEER
RME - AR B RERRIEX142,000 87T ©

EFEER_Z_=F5H - AEERHEE=T
Z=F+ A=+ BLEFERIERERF
B.#9239,000/8 7T - W[ Hfth | BHBEREH
ik - MEFER—FNEE - BE-_T_NF
TZA=Z+—BILEE  EREEERES K
FBABURE o 2 BIHERA) 748,000 7 7T 69 78 £
EEEERECRBE_Z-_NF+_A=1+—
B FEREUER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

27. BANK AND CASH BALANCES

27.

RITRIRT AR

2024
—E-mEFE
HK$°000
FHERT

Cash on hand
Fixed deposits
Cash at bank

157
116,728
195,166

Cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated statement of cash flows

312,051

The bank and cash balances of the Group are denominated in the

following currencies:

2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FHEIT

854
117,453
153,260

271,567

AEBRITRES BRI T EEH

B :

2024
—E_MEF
HK$°000
FE&T

usD
HK$
RMB
Others

BT
AR
Hity

219,724
35,059
57,267

1

312,051

As at 31 December 2024, the bank balances of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB and deposited
with banks in the PRC were amounted to approximately
HK$57,207,000 (2023: HK$70,336,000). Conversion of RMB
into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations. However, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

2023
—_E-=

HK$'000
TET

184,947
16,225
70,394

1

271,567

RZEBE-_WNF+—_A=+—H £A£E
B BB B A BIA A R EHE RIF R
F B KSR 1T BV ERTT 45 82 B 49 57,207,000
BT (—T =~ =% :70,336,0008 L) °
AR 550 R INE 78 52 b B HMNE B 1 i
Pl 4 E - SERNESERTERR -
SR - AR B E P E B R A HETTHME
RHZBITHARKE HIRH M E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

28. TRADE PAYABLES

28.

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, is as

FEITE IR

BREZRHNENE S RANRE DN

2024
—E-MEF
HK$°000
FExT

26,695

7,458
17,804

follows: 71N
0 to 90 days 0E90K

91 to 180 days 91E 180K

181 to 365 days 1812 365K

Over 365 days 365 KA

6,477

58,434

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

denominated in the following currencies:

2023
—E-=F
HK$ 000
FET

60,096
1,436
14,925
14

76,471

AEBERNEZERIZFREEEAAT

EHEHE

2024
—ECIF
HK$°000
TR

17,268
37,356
3,754
56

usD ETT
HK$ BT
RMB AREE
Others Hi
Total =

58,434

2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FHETT

48,850
21,384
6,237

76,471
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

29. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 29.

TRIRE M S E A BOR

Accrued salaries EiRE &

Accrued expenses TEIRRIS

Customer deposits BXFPZ®

Amount due to individual A (Note) FEHE A AFRIE (H5E)
Other payables HAth fE T 3R

2024 2023
—E-MEF —E=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#&T FAT
146,275 134,637
18,682 19,681
14,388 15,487

- 4,902

14,859 5,063
194,204 179,770

Note: Individual A is the shareholder and sole director of non-controlling interest. The
amount in non trade nature, which is unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed

repayment term.

30. LEASE LIABILITIES 30.

Kret - EAARIFFZEREROBRRRME—ES - LA
RFEHUE  BERF 2EEEEEERY
iR e

HERE

Present value of
minimum lease payments

ENHEERE
—FR

Lease liabilities payable:
Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

After five years HFENE

F_FEFLF (BEEEMF)

128 A B B 3R
(RRBHEETIIR)

Less: Amount due for settlement within
12 months (shown under current
liabilities)

1218 A 1& 2| R 508
(RIERBBETIIR)

Amount due for settlement after
12 months (shown under non-current
liabilities)

BEEERBZRE
2024 2023
—EF_pmF —ET=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx AT
10,193 6,894
10,312 13,522
26,753 1,480
47,258 21,896

(10,177) (6,894)

15,002

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities ranged from 4.02% to 7.86% (2023: from 2.41% to
9.58%).

FE AR M B & (B HO I T 3938 & £ 5K A
ENFA402%Z786%( — T =45 : 2.41%
Z958%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

31. BORROWINGS 3. BE
2024 2023
—E_MF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$000
TExT FET

Loan from an Independent KEBLE=TTCER(MED)

Third Party G (note (1)) 549

Loans from financial institutions (note (i) K B84 BB E X (H5E D)) 4,300

4,849

Notes: Bt

0) The amount represents loan from an independent third party, which is non- 0) REHEAKRE—BBUE=INER  BEE
interest bearing, unsecured and repayable on demand. AR IR ESREE -

(D) The amount represents loan from financial institutions, which carries interest at (i) ZeBEARECBEBHER  REE MR
a fixed rate, guaranteed by a director of the Company and repayable within one B BAAR—REFEREER—FREE -
year.

Certain borrowings of approximately HK$14,300,000 (2023: BT B E 4143000008 T( T ==

HK$4,300,000) are arranged at fixed interest rates. Borrowings F 1 4,300,000 0) I EE M EFE ©

are denominated in HK$. The directors estimate the fair value EBEHUATHE - ESHAEER

of the Group’s borrowings at 31 December 2024 and 2023 —ECNNFER - E_=F+_A=1+—
approximate to their carrying amounts. BMEENAFEHEEREBERS -
32. PRODUCT WARRANTY PROVISIONS 32. EmRARE

The movement in the Group’s product warranty provisions are AEFERRBBEEFEEEO>TOT

analysed as follows:

2024 2023
—E-ME T =%
HK$°000 HK$000
TExT FET

At 1 January n—H—H 696 1,207

Additional provisions HEIMNEE = 696

Reversal of provisions e p e m| ((3:[9)) (1.207)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 696
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

32.

33.

34,

PRODUCT WARRANTY PROVISIONS (Continued)

The Group has committed to repurchase its products from or
offer replacement of its products to certain distributors when
these distributors receive returned goods from unsatisfied
ultimate consumers. Such kind of provision for product
warranties are recognised based on past experience of level
of repairs and returns, discounted to their present value as
appropriate.

BONDS PAYABLE

On 18 October 2024, the Company issued a bond of
HK$5,000,000 at the rate of 4% per annum with a term of 7
years to an independent third party, which will be due by 17
October 2031.

On 31 December 2024, the Company issued a bond of
HK$20,000,000 at the rate of 3% per four months to an
independent third party, which will be due by 30 April 2025.

The Company has used all of the net proceeds from the bonds
for fulfilling working capital and other general corporate
pUrposes.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, interest expense of
approximately HK$41,000 (2023: HK$Nil) was recognised in
profit or loss.

DEFERRED TAX

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$392,248,000 (2023:
HK$365,488,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset in relation to unused tax losses has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$52,055,000 (2023 HK$53,244,000) that will expire within 5
years. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

32.

33.

34,

E iR ()

EETOHBE TARREFEIURE
B AREAERZFDHERRELEE®
KEHREM - ZEEMRRABRBREE
BMREKFRBELRER  WITHR
EERE@ER) -

JER B

RZZZMNF+A+NAR  KRFR—
AL = J5 875,000,000 T -+ F
BERA%WTFHES AR _T=—
F+A+EHEIE-

RZZBZWFE+=—A=+—H "  AQF
A — % ¥8 3L 5 = 5 % 1720,000,000 %5
T BRAESNMEAINMES  HER
ZERFHA=TRHESH-

RABEREFABRBFREBMIE
LEETREM—REXAE -

BHE_Z-_WHF+-_A=+—H8IF
[E - EREBERRERF B4 41,000
BLT(ZE_=F  TFT) °

EFEFR IR

RBEIR AEERBSARBARES
B4 753922480008 T( — T — =4 :
365,488,000 7T ) + A A A 40K 2K
F o B R AR BETEBIR R 4 AR - AR R
BREBABDATEEENELERIEE
E- ARRBEEERLEENAFANE
R ESIE#49/452,0550008 L (Z 2 - =
% : 53,244,000 7T) ° HA TR IEEE A
fEPR EAEEE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

35. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised: EE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each SRAEE2B LB
At the beginning of the year RER]
Share consolidation (note (b)) Bin& 6 (M wn)

At the end of the year RER
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each SRAEBE2B LB

At the beginning of the year REA
Issuance of shares upon subscription FREEEE 21 TR (F5E (3))
(note (a))

Share consolidation (note (b)) BRI H (1 o))
Issuance of shares upon placing REEERBITRM ()
(notes (c),(d) and (&) k@)

At the end of the year RER

35. A

2024
—E-mE
Number of
shares
RE

7,500,000,000

7,500,000,000

195,773,185

28,516,000

224,289,185

Amount
KX}
HK$°000
THET

1,500,000

1,500,000

2023
—E_=F
Number of
shares Amount
HK$:000
FHET

75,000,000,000 1,500,000
(67,500,000,000) -

7,500,000,000 1,500,000

1,207,691,855 24,154
517,600,000 10,352
(1,552,762,670) -
23,244,000 4,649
195,773,185 39,155
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2024 H=—F

“HFEFZA=+—HLLEE

35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

[C))

()

©

()

©)

On 13 September 2022, the Company entered into the subscription agreement
with China New Retail Holding Group Limited, which conditionally agreed to
allot and issue 517,600,000 new shares at the subscription price of HK$0.1855
per subscription share, resulting in an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$96,015,000. The subscription was completed on 6 February 2023. The
subscription price was HK$0.1855 per share and amounted to approximately
HK$96,015,000, of which HK$10,352,000 and HK$85,663,000 was credited to
the Company’s share capital and share premium accounts, respectively.

On 30 March 2023, the Company implemented a share consolidation on the
basis that every 10 issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each would
be consolidated into 1 consolidated share of HK$0.2 each.

On 20 October 2023, an aggregate of 23,244,000 shares of the Company with
a nominal value of HK$0.2 each has been substantially placed at HK$1.37 per
shares. The net proceeds from the placed shares (after deduction of commission
and other expenses of the placing) amounted to approximately HK$30,995,000.

On 29 April 2024, an aggregate of 11,260,000 shares of the Company with a
nominal value of HK$0.2 each has been substantially placed at HK$1.59 per
share. The net proceeds from the placed shares (after deduction of commission
and other expenses of the placing) amounted to approximately HK$17,534,000.

On 7 October 2024, an aggregate of 17,256,000 shares of the Company with a
nominal value of HK$0.2 each has been substantially placed at HK$1.51 per share.
The net proceeds from the placed shares (after deduction of commission and
other expenses of the placing) amounted to approximately HK$25,273,000.

35.

B (48)

@

(b)

©

(@

(e)

NZZE-—FAA+=A  ARFEFEHTE
TREBAER AR RERE - Bt - PR
TEEREBEERARGKHRAZSKRABESR
08 AR 19 01855 7% 7T Bt 8 & & 17 517,600,000 A%
R - BEEREL AR 96,0150008 7T © RIE
EPEOR-_T-_=F_AXARK - ABEAS
f& 01855 7T + & XY 4 96,015,000 & 7T + E A
10,352,000 7 7T % 85,663,000 B 7T 2 Bl st AR
AR AR R AR 15 5 (B R ©

RZZZ=F=A=1+H ARaZEBI0ORE
MREE 002 T E BT RABITEBRE H AT
REREEO2ETLE HRNIELEE RN E
Bf o

ﬁ’\7777$+ﬁ +8 » & ££23,244,000 A&

NEIRGD (FREE2HE L) EERIEEFRI37
BTEE - B R FTS SRIBF R (KRR ER S
s REMB) )4 30,995000 87T ©

RZZZWHFMEABZ+1H - A #£1260,000 %
AR (BREEC2E L) B EARIEFA59
BILEE - RERMDMSRIRFE(EMKRES
e RHEMAX)K7517,534,0008 T

RZZ-MF+AtR - &#£17,256000 AR
ARG (BREMEO02/ET) B EARIZFRISIE
TEE o BLE R TSR IEF %8 (MR AL &1
& REAMBY) 45252730008 7T ©
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall

strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,

redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by
adjusted capital. Total debt comprises borrowings (except for
bank overdrafts). Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity (i.e. share capital, retained profits/accumulated losses and

other reserves) except for non-controlling interests.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s strategy,
which was unchanged from 2023, was to maintain the debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio at reasonable level. The debt-to-adjusted

capital ratios at 31 December 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

35. BA(E)

AEEEREANERREHELAKEDN
FEKERD  WEBBERIER
MR RIRRTEREADR - REEE
RERAREE | —F ARt R o

AEBZARLHIETERASR AK
BRELERAANEES RNAMEEN
RERHEEREANERAFLAE - &
MERHBEANGE  AKEARHBR
BRIE - BITHKR - BERD - S5
& BEREGEEKHEEENRE -

AEERBEGHEHBEN L RER
B - R RBEFBRALRHEE
AHAE - REGEREEE(RITEXRK
5N o RFEBEARBIETA #ERR D (A
BeA - REEM,RATHEE R E M)
(GERRERRIN) -

HE-_FT-MNF+_A=1+—HIF
[ AEBEZREE T - = FiFLI
EEE) ABEREHKHEE AL RSE
BREBKE RZBE_MFE_-F
TEF+ A=+ HENEBEERAEK
BEAR R

Total debt 1RIET
Adjusted capital LR E A

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio

EREEREE AL %

2024 2023
—E-WE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH T F&TT
39,341 4,849
536,531 486,663
7.3% 1.0%
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 36. NRBZHBEMRER M FEEED)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company @) AREZEBARRER
2024 2023
—ECOMF —T-=
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
et F#BxT FHT
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment % - R R iR E 754
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 1,353
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RRIMIEE 22 138
2,245
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUYH B A F5KIE 36(0) 237,425 188,706
Amount due from a director B —ZEEIAE 3,718 1,501
Prepayments, deposits, other TERFRIE ~ e - EfbEU
receivables IR 7,762 7,798
Loans to other parties mEAA TIRENER 1,163 5,192
Bank and cash balances RITRIR L% 4,455 1,074
Total current assets REBEEHAE 254,523 204,271
Total assets EEHAE 255,071 206,516
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 6. ARAIZHBEMRAREBEEED
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (#&)
(@) Statement of financial position of the Company (Continued) @) ARATZEBERREK (&)
2024 2023
—E-ME S
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
et FHBxT FHETT
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EahEaE
Equity Pty
Equity attributable to owners ViN/NEIE ¥ PN
of the Company
Share capital [N 35 44,858 39,155
Reserves HE 36(b) 159,776 150,553
Total equity SR 204,634 189,708
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Bonds payable ERHES -
Lease liabilities HeEBa®E -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEHALE -
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R E MBI RIR 10,731 10,914
Lease liabilities HEaE 271 1,594
Borrowings gE 14,300 4,300
Bonds payable B ES 20,000 -
Total current liabilities FREEEAE 45,302 16,808
Total equity and liabilities ERRkEEHEE 255,071 206,516

Approved by the Board of Directors on and are signed on
31March 2025 its behalf by:

BEeN_T-_RF=A=+—H
AL R FIIATRBERS

BIAN Sulan
TEHE

Lin Dailian
PRAC BB
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36.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

36. ANRBZMBIRI KR N E B

(%)
0 AT

Share Share
premium option Merger Capital ~ Accumulated
account reserve reserve  contribution losses Total
REEE  BRERE L1 BExiE it @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
T T TAx T T AL
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-=f-f-H 813,592 5577 3171 11,280 (682,869) 150,751
Total comprehensive expense for the year EERAMTLE - - - - (114,891) (114,891)
Recognition of equity-settled BT\ R E DA R ) BT

share-based payments PAER - 2,684 - - - 2,684
Issuance of shares upon subscriptions RRBBRETRA (W3 356)

(note 35 (a)) 85,063 - - - - 85,663
Issuance of shares upon placing (note 35 (¢))  REEEBH{TRG (# 35(0) 26,346 - - - 26346
Lapsed of share options BIRELH - (775) - - 775 -
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 WZE-=%+-f=1-H

RZZ-mE-A-A 925,601 7,486 317 11,280 (796,985) 150,553
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRRERYLE B - - - (38,501) (38,501)
Issuance of shares upon placing REERBIRG (WD K@)

(notes 35 (d) and (e)) 11 - - - - 3711
Recognition of equity-settled BARELEZ AR AELE

share-based payments AT S - 10,613 - - - 10,613
At 31 December 2024 R-E-mE+-A=+-H 962,712 18,099 3171 11,280 (835,488) 159,776

(c) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest

free and have no fixed terms of repayments.

(© REHEBA
K BAETE IR R o
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37. RESERVES 37. f#iE
(@ Group (a) ~A&E
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements rEERFEBELAEEHNGESE
therein are presented in the consolidated statement mNEMEERER RS ER
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and BRNZZ o

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (b) FEBEMEEREN

(i) Share premium account i) RORER
Share premium represents the amount of the excess IR imEBRERARD B R
of issue price of the Company’s shares over its par BFTERAEEENSRE -
value.

(ii) Share option reserve (i) BREGREE
The share option reserve represents the fair value BREFEEBREBEZRSVS
of the actual or estimated number of unexercised WMEMNFTAC) AR EEH
share options granted to employees of the Group LARR 0 B E 5 2 A 3RFT R 4R
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy IS BRERE T AEE
adopted for equity-settled share-based payments in EEZRITHEERIMETE
note 4(s) to the consolidated financial statements. BERERE AFE -

(iii) Merger reserve (i) BOHHE
The merger reserve represents the difference AHREERERESEZEAER
between the nominal value of the shares issued by N E) LT D B ENE A R Y
the Company in exchange for the nominal value of EMfiBARBRAEE Z58 -

the share capital of its subsidiaries arising from the
group reorganisation.

(iv) Foreign currency translation reserve (iv) ER#E
The foreign currency translation reserve comprises ERRESRBLEGINER
all foreign exchange differences arising from the PV MEREENEINEE
translation of the financial statements of foreign 2o ZFEBREERE MW
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance K FE4QGDFrE & st R
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(c)(iii) to I o

the consolidated financial statements.
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37. RESERVES (Continued) 37. @ (&)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) (b) FHEEMEERE®(E)
(v) Contributed surplus V) BARERR
The contributed surplus of the Group represents REEBOFARRKERN
the difference between the nominal value of shares —hWNtFREEEEAK

of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group
reorganisation in 1997, over the nominal value
of shares of Telefield Holdings Limited issued in
exchange therefor.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents gains/losses directly
reflect in equity resulted from change of equity
interests in subsidiaries without change of control.

(viii) Capital contribution

The amount represents the difference between
inception fair value and proceeds of non-interest
bearing loan from shareholder, which regarded as
capital contribution.

262 China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited F B e R 2R BR A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

38.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “2020 Share
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations on 10 March 2020. Eligible participants include the
any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, business or joint venture partner or adviser of or
contractor of the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries. The
2020 Share Scheme became effective on 10 March 2020 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group adopted a
new share option scheme (the “2023 Share Scheme”) and 2023
Share Award Plan on 8 June 2023 and terminated the 2020
Share Option Scheme. Upon the 2023 Share Option Scheme is
effective from 8 June 2023, the 2020 Share Option Scheme of
the Company is terminated without prejudice to the rights and
benefits of and attached to any outstanding options which have
been granted under the 2020 Share Option Scheme.

The 2023 Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and
is established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
that Eligible Participants include Employee Participant; Related
Entity Participant; and Service Provider had made or may make
to the Group. Options may be granted to Eligible Participants
under the 2023 Share Option Scheme during the period of 10
years commencing on the effective date of the 2023 Share
Option Scheme.

38.

PARS AR AR EEHE 2 153K
VAR HE A S BB AR AT 81

RZE-_TF=A+H ARAEIT—
EEREFES(( 222 FRATE D
NEfr R AAEBLE 2 KIER
BRiZEEBR2EE GERK2HEER
BARARRANRARKMB AR ZEME
£ -EE BB ZEAL FP-#
MR RE - EBREEBHNERA
SEBEE  —E_EFROFENR-E
—EF=ATHER BRIESITTUE
Bl i&E] GRIKRZBRTFH#EE

EH

o
KBE-F-=E+-A=+—HILF
B ARER-T-SH5A\BRM

—BEHEREGE (2B ==FRB
B R =FRMHEETE - WK
=T TFHREFE - — T =%
BRETER _ZE-ZFNANBER
% ARRM-ZT T FERE S
HRIE B ERBE_T_ZFER
REET B /O (] 8 R 1T 150 O BB AR 4 P
B o5 B BT R i 2 o

T CFEREA SR AR
itE . EERARREABRSEE (R
HREESEE BRERSHEELRE
RUE) BAKRBEL A EIFHNE
Bl- BT - =FBRESAEEM A
REIOFA - AIRE T - ZFHBBE
BRAERSEER TR -
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38.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
in respect of all share options and all share awards to be granted
under the 2023 Share Option Scheme and the 2023 Share
Award Plan of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of adoption.
The maximum number of shares issuable under 2023 Share
Option Scheme and the 2023 Share Award Plan to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of shares options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval.

Share options granted to a Connected Person of the Company
or any of his/her/its Associate must be approved by the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors,
and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of
the share options or the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the Board, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant Option,
which must be a Business Day; (ii) an amount equivalent to
the average closing price of the Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five Business Days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant Option;
and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date of the grant,
when applicable.

38.

AR RERE 2 R (8)
VAR i A R A it 81 (4R)
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

38

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings

Share options outstanding at the 31 December 2024 and 2023
have the following expiry dates and exercise prices:

PARR 10 R EE B 2 ISP (A8

VAR #E A R B it 81 (4R)
BRETHTHAEAZAEREINER
Re EREZHER -

RZE-_NFER_E_=ZF+=_A
:Jr*EI CRARITEERENE R A &
TEEMT -

Original Adjusted Number of adjusted
exercise  exercise price  share options (Note a and b)
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price  (Noteaandb) 2024 2023
BHBOFE SHEBREZE (Wiakb)
HHEH BEH fTESm i@ (HiFakb) =—B-mE —B==%
HK$ HK$
BT &

Directors
S
2020 Share Scheme
ZECRERGHY
28 January 2021 28 January 2021 to 27 July 2021 28 July 2021 to 27 January 2026 0.359 346 135,328 133,328
—E--%-A-t/\R ZEZ-E-AZt)\BE ZEC-EHAZT\RE

ZEC-EtAZTtA ZEIRE-A-TtA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021 to 27 January 2022 28 January 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 346 133,327 133,327
ZF--5-A=1+/\R ZE--§-AZ+/\RZE ZFZZ5-AZ+N\RE

“E-ZF-A-t+A ZEIRE-A-tA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021 to 27 July 2022 28 July 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 346 133,327 133,327
ZEZ-E-AZ+)\H “Z--E-f-t)\BE ZEIZERAZT\RE

- Sk 2l o ZEIRE-A-TtA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021 to 27 January 2023 28 January 2023 to 27 January 2026 0.359 346 133,327 133,327
ZF--5-A=1+/\R ZZ--F-f-t/\RE ZEZ=5-AZ+N\RE

ZE=F-A-t+A ZEIRE-A-tA

533,309 533,309

2023 Share Scheme
“ECCERGHE
3 November 2023 3 November 2023 to 2 November 2024 3 November 2024 to 2 November 2026 2500 2500 3,450,582 3,450,582
“Z-CE+-F=H “F-Z#+-FZRE ZZ-mFT-R=RE

“Z-mF+-AZA ZZZRET-AZH
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 38. AR AER 2N (E)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) VARG I 4E B B IR 8 ()
Original Adjusted Number of adjusted
exercise  exercise price  share options (Note a and b)
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price  (Noteaandb) 2024 2023
THBOFE SHEBREZE (Wakb)
RHBH BB frESm RiTfEE (HiFakb) =—B-mE -B==%
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Employees
[
2020 Share Scheme
“ECEERHGEHE
28 January 2021 28 January 2021 to 27 July 2021 28 July 2021 to 27 January 2026 0.359 3.46 133,328 (note ¢) 133,528 (note ¢)
Z3Z-5-AZf)NA ZE--%-A=tN\RZE e St o s JAN=ES (Bi3Ec) (FzEc)
ZEC-EtAZTtA ZEIRE-A-TtA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021 to 27 January 2022 28 January 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 346 444,262 444,262
ZE2-5-A=1+/\RA Z5--5-AZ+N\RZE ZEZZ5-AZ+N\RE
“EZF-A-t+A ZZRE-AZTHA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021 to 27 July 2022 28 July 2022 to 27 January 2026 0.359 346 133,327 (note ¢) 133,327 (note ¢)
Z3Z-E-AZ1)NA ZE--%-A=tN\RZE ZTZZELAZTNRE (Bi3Ec) (FzEc)
- Sk 2l o ZEIRE-A-TtA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021 to 27 January 2023 28 January 2023 to 27 January 2026 0.359 346 444,263 444,263
ZFZ-5-A=1+/\RA Z5--5-AZ+N\RZE ZEZ=5-AZtN\RE
B = ZECAE-fZH4A
28 January 2021 28 January 2021 to 27 January 2024 28 January 2024 to 27 January 2026 0.359 3.46 466,404 466,404
ZEZ-E-AZ+)\H “Z--E-f-t)\BE ZEIRE-AZ\BE
ZEIME-AZ+tH ZEIRE-A-TtA
28 January 2021 28 January 2021 to 27 January 2025 28 January 2025 to 27 January 2026 0.359 346 466,403 466,403
ZFZ-5-A=1+/\RA Z5--5-AZ+N\RZE ZZZR§-AZTN\RE
ZECRF-A-t+A ZEoRE-ACttA
2,087,987 2,087,987
2023 Share Scheme
“ECCERHEHE
3 November 2023 3 November 2023 to 2 November 2024 3 November 2024 to 2 November 2026 2500 2500 12,244,500 12,244,500
“F-Z#+-FZA “F-Z#+-FZRE ZZ-RFT-R=RE
“Z-RF+-AZA ZZZRET-AZH
18,316,378 18,316,378
Note a:  The number of share options granted and the relevant exercise price are Hista: BERESOBRIERE REMITEBEEELREE
adjusted to reflect the effect of rights issue on 23 November 2021. NRBMAZZE = —F+—A=-+=BHEN¥
8,
Note b:  The number of share options granted, and the relevant exercise price are Ffatb: BRHAERESE REETEESEL R
adjusted to reflect the effect of shares consolidation as defined in note 35(b). DA BR B 5E 35(b) FT R E MR 1D A BHOREE o
Note c: Mr. Wang Guo Zhen resigned as director of the Company and recruited as key Mt TEBEEBTIANREEVEEATZEEA
management personnel. 8o
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

38. AR mERE 2 5K (&)

Details of the movement of share options during the year are as

follows:

Outstanding at the beginning of
the year

Adjustment upon share consolidation

REFHRITE

RERRD A HEHE

during the year
Granted during the year REREH
Lapsed during the year RERKK
Outstanding at the end of the year REREARITE
Exercisable at the end of the year RERAIITE

Number of
share options

BRERE
HK$°000

TRET

18,316,378

18,316,378

VAR #E A R B it 81 (4R)
RERNBREZSFBEALT

2024 2023

ka1 -3 —E-=F
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average
LY I share options — exercise price
piiL; N
THTEE PG E TR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAET FHET
30,982,791 0.346
(27,884,512) N/A
15,695,082 2.500
(476,983) 3.460
18,316,378 2.640
1,688,490 3.460

17,849,975

The options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 1.73 years (2023: 2.73
years) and the adjusted exercise prices of HK$2.64 (2023:
HK$2.64). During the year, approximately HK$10,613,000 (2023:
HK$2,684,000) recognised in profit or loss and correspondingly to

share option reserve.

FA4F 3R 18 AR 17 {65 B AR A A0 0 SE 19 R
BENFHARIIZF(ZE_=F:273
F) KABRTEE R264F T(Z
TZ=ZF 2648 L) RER
10,613,000 7T (ZZE = =4 : 2,684,000
P T ) 18 25 N AR FE 1A B PR R 4 1 P 1

=7
s ©
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

(@) Disposal of subsidiaries

On 18 November 2024, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of 100% equity interests of Zhongxixin Trading
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd and Zhongxixin Trading (Shanghai)
Co. Ltd (collectively referred as the “Disposal Group”)
at a cash consideration of RMB575,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$621,000). The Disposal Group was
principally engaged in trading of electronic products. The
consideration was satisfied by cash on 23 December 2024.
Net assets of the Disposal Group at the date of disposal
were as follows:

39.

¥

A

(a)

fe= A
/

=

RenEBRMEE

HEH B R A

RZZ2ZMNE+—HA+A\RB - K&
EHE—ZBUE =R T —ME
Btk LWHEREEEECRI)
BRARIRFPEEHE (L8 AR
AEGEATHEREE]) 225
#wm ReERERARES75000
TL(HEER#621000 L) - HE
SEIENFEEEETFER - RE
ERZZE-_WMF+_A=+=BMU
ReEXT - RHEBRH  HEEE
ZEEFENT ¢

HK$'000
FHET
Right-of-use-assets FRAEEE 126
Inventories FE 783
Trade and other receivables B E 5 85 51 & E b B W GRIE 2,215
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE 5 1,304
Trade and other payables FETE 2 BR U Eo At JE < 5IE (91D
Lease liabilities HEaE (129)
Current tax liabilities BIEARIE B & ©))
Amount due to the Company AR A RIFUAR (2,770)
Net assets disposed of BHELEFE 615
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries: HEWB QR EIE :
Consideration received by cash BURRERE 621
Net assets disposed of BHEZEESFE (615)
Release of foreign currency translation reserve R 5 s (29)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAREE (23)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: AHEELENRESRAFE
Cash consideration received BURERE 621
Cash and cash equivalents disposed BEHEReMREEEY (1,304)
Net cash outflow WER T FHE (683)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (Continued)

()

©

Disposal of an associate — Shanghai Rongshu Business
Consulting Co., Ltd.

On 23 March 2021, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement to dispose of all its entire 49% equity interest
in Rongshu to the controlling shareholder of the associate
with a consideration of RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$16,443,000). The Group completed the
disposal of 49% equity interest in Rongshu on 7 March 2023
as the agreement condition has been fulfilled. The Group
received RMB5,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,117,000) and RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,353,000) during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2021, respectively. During the
year ended 31 December 2024, the Group received the
remaining consideration of RMB6,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK6,891,000) and there was no outstanding
balance as at 31 December 2024.

Major non-cash transactions

Additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
during the year of approximately HK$38,548,000 (2023:
HK$1,995,000) were financed by lease liabilities of new
lease agreements.

39.

Y

=

()

©

he= A
/

=

R nEBRME(E)

HE—HBERR - LERERD
BB RA R

RZEBE-_—F=ZA=-+=H &%
BiTuRMHEERGE  UARK
15,000,000 7T (% 7 #716,443,000
FEIT) BB M B A B AR AR AR
REEERBENDE 49% AR -
HRBRIEGEENK - AEBER
T =F=-A+tHEAEER
BENIONRE - BHE_T ==
FRZE_—F+ZHA=+—H
IEFE AEEDFIWIRARE
5,500,000 7T (18 & 7 49 6,117,000 7
7t) B AR 3,000,000 7T (FHE R
#93,353,00087T) - AEBREE
2N+ -_A=+—HIFE
A E W # T AR 6,500,000
(HBE M #496,891,000%87T) 2R (E
R-E-_MFE+-_A=+—B#HE
BREE 1o R UCER

FTEHFRERS

FARECRAEEELBEEARG
#738,548000 T ( ZFE = =4 :
1,995,000 % 70) Ty E HE M
HEaGERN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z = -_M&+=-A=+—HIFE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (Continued)

(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.

39.

¥

A

=

mAEREM

EXRMEE)

) BEEFHELZAEHE
AEERREEDMELS 2 8 E
£8 BERSRIBLED B
HIIRT# - MBEEHELNE
& DARAEAERBRNEL
RE RARENEARSRER
POEAREEH I RERE -

Lease Bonds

liabilities Borrowings payable

HEAE B8 ENES

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FHET FH&T

As at 1 January 2023 RZE-_=F—HF—H 37,510 13,565 -

Addition BE 1,995 - -

Net cashflows HWeREF58 (18,578) (8,700) -

Deregistration of a subsidiary 34— B A &) (384) - -

Interest expenses MERX 2,112 - -

Exchange difference PE 5 =R (759) (16) -

As at 31 December 2023 and W Z-ZE-=%+_#4
1 January 2024 =t+t—-HAR-ZT-FE

—H—H 21,896 4,849 -

Addition BE 38,548 - -

Net cashflows WeREF58 (14,581) 10,000 25,000
Disposal of subsidiaries HEM B AT (MFE39a)

(note 39 (a)) (129) - -
Interest expenses FERX 3,078 - 41
Transferred to other payables O &8 %= H {th e {008 - (549) -
Exchange difference PE X =% (1,554) - -
As at 31 December 2024 N-—ZE-_WE+=A8

=+—H 47,258 14,300 25,041
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 39, #ZelRamn=ExMaF(8)
FLOWS (Continued)

(e) Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash (e) FERESRERTMNHESTRIE
flows for leases comprise the following: LATN&IR -

=

2024 2023
—EMF —E=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHET
Within operating cash flows CERSREN 5,477 3,907
Within financing cash flows MERSTEN 16,466
20,373

These amounts relate to the following; ZESTHHUATZEAR -
2023
TEC=4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHEIT
Lease rental paid ENEERS 16,980 20,373

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40. sABEE

The Group and the Company did not have any significant RERB NARRWELERSABE -

contingent liabilities.
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41, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 41, BARIE
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting AEBRIFEHROEAFRENT
period are as follows:
2024 2023
—E-MF ZE=F
HK$°000 HK$000
FHBxT FHEIT
Plant and machinery R K 2s
Contracted but not yet incurred BRIMERESE 280
42, FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT 42. B HEREL)

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had an outstanding
guarantee (the “Guarantee”) with one of the suppliers of an
overseas subsidiary (the “Disposed Subsidiary”), which was
disposed on 7 October 2015, for payment in relation to a sum of
US$2,600,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$20,300,000),
which represents a trade balance under dispute between the
Disposed Subsidiary and the supplier. The supplier subsequently

sold the trade balance to a third party.

During 2017, the Disposed Subsidiary agreed with the third party
for a final settlement by instalment of US$650,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$5,100,000). In this regards, as at 31
December 2021, the Group had an outstanding guarantee of the
sum limited to US$650,000 subject to the full payment of the

final settlement effected by the Disposed Subsidiary.

The Disposed Subsidiary had issued a counter guarantee to
indemnify the Group for any loss in relation to the Guarantee.
The management of the Group after taking legal advise are of
the opinion that it is highly unlikely that liabilities will be brought

against the Group on the above matter.

RZEZWFERZZT_=F+=H
=t+—H AEEHERZZTE—RF+
AtRAEEZEINNBRAR(EHE
MEBAR)) cHEP—RHEBBH R
ENER(ZER]  EE@EINEH
2,600,000 2 7T (#8 & 7 920,300,000 /&
TU) 2R B R EWE A R EZ M
EEzF2ESEH% -  BEREERE D
%féi%mﬁ%%%ZE °

RZZT—+F DHEKHBARBESE
= EN R TNAR -+ 5 BB 5K650,000
%ﬁ(if & 1 495,100,000 7T ) ° 3k itk
5 RZE_—F+=ZA=+—8"
Zl»‘%l%ﬁﬁ'ﬂﬂﬂ%fﬁ%ﬁu%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
650,000 7T * RFELHEMBRARE
PRABE MR FIEmE

ELHEMBRAREMARRELRE
* - AR ERZERMBRA/ARERE
HRMERE - AREZEEBRIBIUA
RERRAR  AEE LKA Lt
SEARERAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z =T -_M&+-_A=+—HIFE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had the following transactions with its related parties
during the year:

43.

FERTRS
BiraMBHRRE i T RENRES
RBRAEHRI > REERFRERES
BIATRS :

Amounts due from directors (note) JEUREE =R E (i)
Amount due from a key management

personnel (note)

el — 2 X 2EEABFIA(MT)

2024 2023
—E-[mEF —EC-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHET
3,748 3,878
1,536

Note: The amounts represent a balance, which is unsecured, interest-free bearing and
repayment on demand.

The details of remuneration of key management personnel,
represents the emoluments of directors of the Company paid
during the year and set out in note 15.

44. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Following the Discontinued Operation as disclosed in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements, which is classified
as discontinued operation under HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”, certain
comparative figures were restated to distinguish the results of
the Discontinued Operation from continuing operations.

45. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2025.

44,

45,

Wi ZEoRERE B8ER 28 RARERE

8o

TREEEKRENHFHNAIARREER
FREINHBME) FBEHNMFEDS °

BT

WERAMBRRMETDRUELEERD
PR e - HERERBE BN BREE
RIS [HFHELERMERBEERD K
IEEEB IR RIEREER - H
% HETHBREFEEFHIIR - AR5
BRI R RSB L RGNS -

HERR S M SRR

EFgeRNEAF=A=+—HB#
RN R IR AR HHRE -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFEMBEHE

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024 and the consolidated assets, liabilities and equity of the Group
as at 31 December 2024 are those set out in the audited financial
statements.

The summary below does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

2024
ZE-OF
HK$°000
TiEgx

AEEBE-_F-ME+=A=+t—RAILF
Em%&%ﬁﬁ$ﬁgﬂ_7_m¢+ A
=+—BWBARE - ABREAENEER
B HRER M o

ATEMEY TERERZIBRRAEND

2023 2022 2021 2020
“To=F —E--fF - ZZE-FF
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$000
THET TET FET TET
(Restated)
(& E51)

491,597 529,251 675,523 595,023
(359,842)  (427,855)  (530,635) (440,31

131,755 101,396 144,888 154,712

21,984 16,321 25,512 9,642
(36,459) (29,988) (29,232) (56,317)
(85599)  (105,039)  (154230)  (178,158)
(20,578) (27,056) (27,619) (82,076)

11,103 (44,366) (40,681)  (152,197)
- 1,098 (12,622)
(3,005) (4,051) (4,169) (4,928)

RESULTS #1i5
Revenue WA 479,317
Cost of sales SHERAR (355,716)
Gross profit EF 123,601
Other income, other gains and Hib A -« iz

losses, net REE - 8 20,649
Selling and distribution expenses HE R R (38,406)
Administrative expenses THER (99,076)
Other operating expenses Hing s & 8,416
Profit (loss) from operations RERT (EE) 15,184
Share of profits (losses) of associates FEfGHE& A 7% (E518) =
Finance costs BUE KA (4,829)
Profit (loss) before tax B?ﬁﬂu = (E8) 10,355
Income tax (expense) credit R (Ax) K (3,898)

8,038 (48,417) (43,752)  (169,747)
(3,157) (3,592) (3,295) (3,323)

Profit (loss) for the year from BELEERVEE

4,881 (52,009) (47,147)  (173,070)

284 - - -

continuing operations BA (E8)

(Loss) profit for the year from EARLREERCFE
discontinued operation (B#8) &R

Profit (loss) for the year FEERF (B8E)

5,165 (52,009) (47,147)  (173,070)
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HFMBHE

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Total assets

Total ligbilities

Non-controlling interests

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
it Sl T T T —F ZCZTZTF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FAET FHT FAEL FHET
T & FH L

/NI =N 8,036 5,257 (54,042) (46,397)  (173,052)
RS (1,708) 92) 2,033 (750) (18)
6,328 5,165 (52,009) (47,147)  (173,070)

BE BERFERES
BEmE 880,137 776,418 659,233 677,978 657,405
AEBE CIRWIPNY  (287,693)  (297,217)  (311,980)  (361,471)
RS (354) (2,062) (2,154) (12D) (472)
536,531 486,663 359,862 365,877 295,462

Note:

discontinued operation above.

The Group ceased its business relating to distribution of communication products
operation during the year ended 31 December 2024. The results of the relevant
subsidiary for the year presented have been reclassified for separate disclosure as

7 o

Kt AEBRBE_T_NFT A=+ HILFERILE
BEEDHBAERNES - ARNBEARRZNFE
MEBEEEFNOR  URLXBUBRBERERLEER

Annual Report 3 2024 275



INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS
REHEAM

LISTING INFORMATION

Listing: Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Stock code: 1143
Ticker Symbol
Reuters: M43 HK
Bloomberg: 1143 HK Equity
KEY DATES
27 January 2011

Listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange

28 March 2024
Announcement of 2023 Annual Results

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER OFFICES
Principal:

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17th Floor

Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.link-asia.com.hk

FHER

£ EBBAR P
A& ACSR 143

% 2= 75 7

FRIFAL 1143.HK

EEE 1143 HK Equity
BFEHF
—ET——F—F=++tH
REBBERZ S LT

—E-MFE=A=-+/\H
N B FEEEE

BPERCE

IR

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman)

Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D
P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay

Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

BESR
BERAFERERAR]
BB

BRIE165
EREEAF D

171

EEhil

www.link-asia.com.hk

276 China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited H B f# Be R 2R BR A 7



HE{EEgEF: : NG
CHINI&E!!?STORZ:{T%C&HJ%GY DEE)IEEN{L)I;IE s e ﬁ====!

i ‘i.lllll

_—

H"‘.lll B |
! [ |

A......-

dEnEEE
——
|

x x r x . 5 . - : ; ;

’!IHEI”H HEI




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	財務摘要
	主席報告書
	管理層討論及分析
	企業管治報告
	董事履歷詳情
	環境、社會及管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務概要
	投資者資料
	封底



